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A} Beport oo the Andit of the Copsolldated Finaneis | Satesacnts
L. Qualifled Cpinien

We have andited the consolidared financial statemnetils of GObre Fabrikalun Tirk Angnim Sirketi ("the
Company™) and ils subsidianes {*the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statements of Anuncial
pogiticn az &t Lecetnber 31, 2021, 2 he consolidited staterments nf incnme, And other eoniprclseisive
ineome, consoldated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for 1he
wear thett ended, at1d niedess 1o the consclidated financial statemenes, inclwding a awrumary of signifcant
pocounting policies.

I our opinion, excepd Tor tee elfexas of he mater on the consolidaled fAngneipl gaemetls Jeseribed 1n
the Basiz for Choalified Opinion paragraph, ibe accomnpanyiog conselidated finencie! statements presont
Fairly, in all mareril respects, the consolidated financial position of e Group as of Dhecember 31, 2021,
and itz congolidated fnancial petformatce and ils consolhidaled cesh flows for the wear then ended n
aeeurlumoe with the Turkish Finaneia] Reporting Stapdards {1TFRES).

2, Baasis for Qoelified Opinion

The floaoeial stateinents of Razi Petrochemicsl Co. ("Razi™), a subsidiary of the Group operaitg in
Iran, which i= consolidated in the accompenying financial statements, have heen awdited by the
compatent auditor, Raz's financial statements and financial information included in thi sccompanying
consolidated financial siatements are presenied based oo Lhe neport dated March 11, 2022. As explained
m note 16 o the fineociel stateroents, there is 8 lawswit Gled in (e local court amountioe w TL
4,282,503, 267 (30,995 billum TRR) (approximately 330 millicn 1I50) against Razi, wha i3 audited by
the auditar of the unit effiliated to the group, allcging excessive pas consumption In the mdependent
audit report prepaced by the umt euditor, it 19 evoded o copeess 6o opinion on the fimancial stolemenis
om the grounds that there is a fundamental wncerlainty rReganling the Tinal outepme o the case, since (he
fimal resull ol lhe case bas not been finaluzed. In the independent audin caport poepored by the undt auditor,
ik % avioided to expresd an opiniom on Lhe fnuneiol statements on the grounds that there is 8 fundamerdal
uncertanly regarding the final ouwtcome of the case, since the final resnlt of the care has mH hoon
Timalized.

In the seevmpanying finaociel stetements, the consalidated swhsidiary Rael recornled s wxpot sales
according to the Contral Bank's exchatpe rale (WIMA) al the peyment dete instead of the Colral Benk's
exchanye rate { M1.A) 81 the dace of sale, Had the adjwstment been reflected in the consolidated financia]
slatérnels, curren peood sules would bave decreased by TL 53,308, (90 (1012 billion TRE), whle
foreign exchange gains would have increased by 1he same wmowni. Hed the eomparative financia)l
stulernents been adjosted, sabes would hawe degressed by TL 3704607341 ARR 7011 hallion),
digtribtion and commission expetises woild heve increased iy T1. 77565682 (IR 1,447 billion) aod
toreipn exchange maine woold have ingreased by TE 293 131,658 (1RE 5 544 billion).
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2. Basks for Cunlibed Opinicn (Con d}

Ag of December 31, 2021, the inventories of Fazi, the comselidated subsidiary of the Group, meluds
SQRTC PAMS Db enlaries snounbing W TT 228 361 406 (aquivale 1o IRE 4,319 billion), related to which
prosduction costs amaounting b TL B9, 145017 (equivalent to TRR 1486 hillion) are recordsed 1o cost of
gatds sold. Thue la chanpges made by Bazi i (e cumment period, vanous reclassification angd adjwstment
changes ave required in the relevont accaunts in order t0 show the inventories and cost of geods snid
carrectly; a5 the inventory purchases were included m \be prepaid capenacs aseount; the amowars were
ticit comeclly mellecled o cost calonlarion during the year; the inventory puchasey in fregm eemcney
ware mol accouated lor using the melevane foreign exchange rates; and theos wene vanuoce devialinos
berween the inventory reguatration system and the inventory Sccounts. [n addition, due to the Jack off
sufficient informarion ebour the purchase dates regarding imvetory purchnses before 200%, it was ngl
possthle o make hyperinflation adjustments o the relevant part of inventories on the basis of price
bidices.

The amannt of claimz from Agricultural Suppon Services Ca and its uniong is TL 532 273,294 (IRR
10067 Billion) regarding which enwetment of govemment dated Seplember 29, 2010, vote mumber S
dated August 22, 201 7 Gretieral Beard ol the Courl Administrative Jusiice, Frecntive Braneh of Judicial
Diepuly of Economic Affairs of ihe Administrative Justice Court and spprovals of 24th moesting of 1he
tmarker regulation work group of Razi under examination repiding the difference between the selling
price of Urea at the requined price and the misimoum price discoversd priee in e mercaniile sxchange
o thve Lagd gix mtonilby, hes been reahized ag inceme. Reganding this manier, the relevant amaunt has not
been collacted, and it Bas ot bewn deteronined how and when it will be collected, and it has no been
possibls tu determine the alfects of poasible coreeations dus 1o the Tuct thet a confirmation lettar was no
recgived for the ¢onfirnation of the relevent balance.

Az of the balanve sheel date, reluted parly reeanciliation and the information regarding the oporations
al Razi's related pamy Worh Star megoested by che compenent auditor conld aor be obsined
Additicmelly, Rozi's atomey stalcingnis, irade roceivables ceconcilistion amounting 10 T1. 83,011,671
{(IBE 1,570 billactiy, tride payables reconcibation amowsting o TL 269061386 (IRE 3.971 billion) and
confirmation of 5ix bank accounts amcunting to TL 2 273,568 [[RE 43 billion) could not be abtained.
Inn the tecomeilialivns vhblained, positive differences amountiog e TL 65563358 (LRKE 1.240) billiva)
and negative diffcrences aounting lo TL 9923125 {TRR 189 hillion) were found,

Peteo Baman Aviran Razi, subsidiary of Kazi, which was consolidated id the aeonmpanying financil
atatements, whizh in ont important for iis Gaameiol statements, iz not ingluded in the consolidation.

e godit was conducred i sucordance wilth the Standards om Independent Avditing published by the
Capital Market Board {"CMB™3 and Standards oo [ndependent Auditing (the "I5A™) issued by the
Public Owersipht Accountmy and Auditing SEndards Awthority (the “POA™) thol are part of Turkish
Standards oo Auditing. Our respansibilifies under these standurds are further deseribed in the “Auditor's
Respemsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of var report. We herehy doelare that
w arg independout of the Connpany in accordance with the Fthical Ruolza for Independent Auditory (e
“Etlical Rules") and the ethical requitements regarding independent eudit in repulatinns issoed by POA
thot are relevanl 0 our audit of the consolideted finapeial statcrents. We have alse fulfilled cur oiher
ethical responsitalities in sccordanes witls the Bhis] Bules and regulationg, We believe that the audii
evidence we huve obluined donng the independent andit provides a sufficient and spproprisie hasiz for
UL g g,
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& Emphass of Maticrs

At explamed tn Node 7, the conzalidated subsidiaty Rasi, which is tonsolidated as of December 31,
2021, has a wade receivable of TL 55411617 (1.4 billion JRR} from the Apriculiueal Support
Services and Natiomal [ran Perrochemival Tnstitutions, apd it is due 1o the sales of urea 1 & significant
amoant and heiains from Lhe previous period Az of the repurt dale, no oollection has been made for the

relevant am ount.

As of December 31, 2021, 1he consolidated subsdiary Raze docs nol have sufficicnt insurance covetage
fow s seoeks amownring 1o TL 664 301 %1% as of the same date.

Do fa the accomulative: inflalion mie of last three years in Iran eaceeding 100% {120%), the comiftercial
trangactions hive bean edjusted aecording 1o e effects of inflation instead of hiswricel cost basis, az
ol the beginning of the aceounting peried of 2020, TAS 29 "Tinoncial Reporting in Highly Infstionary
Econumies™ sandard was applied during the preperation af the financial stements of Razi consolidated
in the accompanying financial statemacnis. Accordinely, the effect of the Bdjustmett of the fingncial
slutements far imflation amounting 10 T1. £%4.409,298 relaled with he prior periods wis reoopmzed in
the opening balences in the cquity i lhe previous vear's prafiis and {le previcus pedod was noc restaled,
Ecgarding Rax's inflaban accounuing, as of Jatwary 1, 2021, opening oquity Tralanees liave been resmsied
I TL111.745.971.

A4 explamed in the Mote 18, the sanctiots iessd by the Unjied Nations oa the Islamic Republic of
Iran senez: 2010 hiave recently been suspended and suzpended 1o a certain extent. However, as a side of
the agreement, the United Siaics has slabed that o had withdrawy fbom (he agresment on Way B, 2018
and waould ceapply the sanclions that bad been cepeuled previnusly, The first part ol the senctions was
pul into effect on Angust 8, 2018 and the scoopd group sanctions, which were put o uperation on
Novernber 4. 2018, will te the subjed! of sanctions for the petroleum. petrolewn producls amd
retrochemical produnts of [ran. (n May 2, 2019, iike United Saies abalished the exemption provided 10
same counonies in trading of petroleum, petralenm products and peonschemocel producls, M compemy
within dhe Group is n suehpectod o any sancliom as of the dae of these copsodidaied finaneial statemonts,
Thiz may aifect the future operations of the Group's subsidiery m this country in the fture. The
erunome: stability of the Islamic Republic of lran depends on the measurcey 1o be taken agaitist ganmctions
and the effects of legal, sdministrative and political developments. These davelapments are ool undey
lhe: comtrol af enmpanies eperating in the country. A8 A resnit, compenies operating (0 this cotntny must
lake inte acecunt some of the rizks thar are oA generally abserved in ofher markets. The atizched
eanzalidzted fnancial slalements include the Group Managemezd's assumptions about The effecla of the
et eenetions applicd on [rat Lo the operations and Diascial posilion of the suhsidiary, The fulwne
seonemic sivalion of the Islamic Republic of Irad may be dufferent from i assuaptions of the Group

Managament.

Since Januacy 28, 212, the Central Bank of the Llamic Repuhlic of Itan hus been implementing a fixed
cxchange rate tegime. All fareign correney-Trscd Lransaclions are taken indo Jegal meeonds oo thess
exchange rates. In the current petiod, the exchange rates veed in fureign exchange-hased transactions in
the: [slae Repubiic of lean ditffer significantly from the fxed exchange rates. In September 2012, a
Foreign Fxeliangs Cenler was established b the administration of the Iran under the supervizian of the
Ceotral Bunk of bran and indicatct saios close 1o the free-market rates hove sterted 10 be explained. The
TAS 21 The Bfled of Changes in Frreipn Cunvenuy Exchange Fates Standard staies Lhal m cgze af
stuations where YArions exchange rutes are availalylc, the Exclianye muie to be wsed js the expeoted
Exchange rate where the related mansactions are realized, and the fature casl fows wall oceur. Tue 1o
the ambiguiry of the exchumge rate regime i Iran and the nacertamty of the exchange utes of the future
cash flows, the Granp Management used 1he mentioned Cender’s announced exchange raes (NIMAY in
e foeei g cucrency valuslion of Razri in the apeompenyiog consclidated Ginancial stalements. Simudacly,
the averaye of the excliange rmies ennounced by the Cenrer was considered i the caloulation of the
pericd averige rates.
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2. Emphasis of Muller {(Cont'd)

Mg explaitied in the Note B and 14, Tabosan Mithendislik Imalat ve Maniaj 4.5, {“Tabusan™), ane of the
cumsartium nartners with whom the Geoup purchased Razi shares applied to the count it 2011 with the
veyuesl tn postpene bankmptey i 2011 whereby the request was rejected by the court, whicl mled on
the hankruptey of Tubosan and the establislmenl wf a banknuptey desk in order 1o transFer wll transactions
to the bankrupicy desk, The Group has become 2 joinr guarnlor oo hehall of Tabasan 10 the Banks
which provided finanoe during the purchase of Razr sharcs and W Tmo Povatizetion Administeation.
Within the scope of thix surety, the Group bas made a payment of FL A5, 7E0.597 o the banks and fhe
Iran Privalizaiion Adminigitation on behalf of Tabosan a5 8 goarartor. Simee the sceumulated dividend
reccivable ol Tubosan's 100358% share in Bael have been transfarred 1o tee bankruptey desk, ibe
Bankropeey Administration paid 11, 25.27T4 225 (o lhe Group on July & 2005 and the ponoipal duc of
TL 5.548 840 on Angust 4, 2016, As of report date the principal and the imlerest reeeivable arising fom
the paymenly made by the Liroup amounted (o TL 36.3%1.022, [he Bankmpley Admunistration will
repay the (rroup's ouistanding recsivables w0 (e exient than il receives the dividend ta be recsived by
Rari frum Tubosan's sharcholding provided the mansfer is made to the bmknupiey desk. The Group
managemett his not cecapnined any provision for this receivable in the prios nor in 1he current pericd
in view of the £aet that the dividend recarvable by 1abosan pertainiog to Bazi shares and ol mor e
and collaterals 1hat wene reostemed to the Geoup by the bank,

As explained in the Mote 18, Iskenderun Tiscal Directarate (“Treasucy™) brought 3 suyit in order io
kypothecate on behalf of pubhe and canee] land eegister of propery awned by the Group having a
surface arca of Jocated it Ilatay, Iskenderun, in ascordance with the Regolotion an Implementativn of
Coastal Law and s provisions since the Shore Edpe Linc passes fheough the aforementioned land, The
net hoak valve of the aloranentivned property is T 150, 128,81 Tes of the balance sheet dare. The Group
lits uppealed against the case in its legal pericd and requested dhe respreparatiun of experts report izsued
towards determining Shore Edpe Ling which ooslilules 8 bese for the case and Tas Gled & countearelsim
for the comprosation of 1he nght to property, by considering Lhar the case may restll it favor of the
Treasury. The luwrzuits wers resulied apains the Company; however, the Company requested a 1evizsion
of the appeal court wilio the legal period and its request wis accepted. The legal process is still onpaing
as of the balince sheet defe, In accordance with the opinions of the legsl sdvisors, the Group
Managetnent kas not recognized any provision for this matter in the eonzolidaled finaociel stalements
al this stage.
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3. Key Audil Maitters

Koy andit mamners are those mallers thot, in oor professional jedgemcnt, were of mout s priGeance in
oy audit of the Moancisl stotements of the cwrrent peeiod. 'These maticrs were addneszed 1o lhe context
of aur andit of e fuanciol slements az a whole, and 10 forming our opinion thereen, and we do not

provicle 3 Separane opiuon o these maikers.

Key andit matter

How our godit adkressed the key wudil mmtier

loventaries

As of Depemnber 31, 2021, the invemtorks
ammmting e T 5015321 850 in e
cotisalidated finaneial setements constiuwic 4
sigmificent portion of e assels in the fhoaneal
slalements, There 15 3 nsk of impeirment of the
elovant prvettories dee w ommsms skeh as
damage, martial or wtal Joss of value or filue o
tecovet dug o devreaze in the sabes price, and

the provivion for inveniogy mopairment inclhades
pratsgcinall exonakes amd asammplioos. These
estimstes and asmmmions ibclade the evahiation
of abow-movme invemories aod the provision o] -
the mom-moving  and  damames]  Dressomes.
Accordingly, inventories ere a key aodit matce,

Explanstions moparding the accouneing pelicies of
Ui Erilomies are presentad in the Mote 2.

eidete’ il B Tl Wiyl i)

ecnmiumic Tactors. Tn peddiion, the colealation of f -

Durng cor mudit, the tollowine mdil procedioes were
applieal in relation 1o msentomies:
- Uinderstarding Uwe somunting policy relued 1o inventony
mnpaurment end evahuphng the appropriatcness of the policy
applisd,
- Inquinies with the Grouep Matwgene aboul the: dsk of
impairmer due to damage, partial or tedal keg of value vl
Failure to roconser due e decrenss in the sales price.
Comparison of the Omeentory mmover e wilh the
PEEVHIG yor
- Fuveluating the adeguacy of the peovision for impeimmen on
ey in the curment period against che inpairmed
Citadning and eimnming ovemtory aEop reparts 89 Lo
whesthir theve is inveuory thal bave 0ot besn Hoving or
damfped for & lomp time during the year-end inventorr
CETIEL,
- Met neabiznble values of siocks were deated on lest busis
tesed oo selling, prices ned of descrunts and we eomphyded
thurl stoschs wene carried in the financial staterments ar farly
reasable velues,

W hoe no matenal findimpm relaied G dhe impaintent of the
invoritary Ay @ wesult of thessd privces|ures.
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4. Key Andit Matters {Cont'd)

Key audit malier

How our sudit sidresaed the key andit macier

Avcownting foc properly, plaot ead cquipmenat oslog
i revaluation method

As explained in detan] o Foatnares 2 and 120 1he
land, wnderground and sorface improvemconts and
buildnge, which arc inchoded in (ke Group's 1anmble
A35cls, are valwed by the reveloation method based
an the valualion reporls prepanad by on independem
teol emlale appraisel company,

As af December 31, 2021, the revalwation uf tang ble
Tixecl amsels hus been considersd az A key audil mattor
by us, sitice che land, underprmund and surface
improvements and bufldings beloagug to the Parent
Company conztitute 4 signilicant part of the Group's
tedal Assers and che walwalion methods applied
include sigoificant estimations and AsuLnptions,

In our audit, the appropriptencgs of Lhe oetlods
used by the valuativn axperts in the afarcmentionsd
valuahon teports, which constitute the basis for the
[oir walues of the relevant tangible fived assets
measured ascording 1w the rvaluabion model, has
been evaluated. The relevance and reasooabloncss
ol the appraisec's fndings aod conclusions, and che
conristency of these findings and conclusicns with
et awlil  evidence, were  reviewed, The
asguniptionis Arad melheds used o the walugtion
repot, the factors pelated 1o the evaloativo of the
methods, whether these azsmumptions and methods
are generally aecepted il the exped's field of
eiperlise, whether they arc consisterl witly the
provisions ol the applicable finaneial roporting
framework, whether they are dependent ¢m the use
of [Eniuted models, and whetherthey are consistent
wilh managemetls assurnptivos and metheds.,
wene questioned.

A5 a resualt of the shdics and eXaminations we have
carfied <ml on the revsluatinn calenlatons o
questicn,  we have  cvalugted  whether  the
estimationa end assumplions wsed o the valoation
Tepidt are within ab aceeptable range of fair valug
ax asueused by the Group's independent valushon
RS,

The acowracy of ihe valualion method used has
becn checksd by evaluaning the molated tangible
mised ilem logether with its intended uoe.

Mniily of Sl Thersios iresssfigey Lal
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2 Key Aodet Matters (Coni'd)

ﬁy Audit maner

| Taw our 1udH sddressed fhe key audit matter

Recoverabdity of wrade recepmbies

As of Degcinber 31, 2021, tade receivahles
amounting 0 T 1,908.401 522 constifule &
signifhicant portticn of total pagets, Chthe other
hand, pravisions for itnpaitment caleulated for
Irade receivables are scoronied for as a resull
ot estintedions made by taking into accoang ihe
pesl Payent periurmanes and
sredilworthipesa information of custmners and
the Traluridy analysis of the receivahics
balances. Tor these reasons, the recoverabilivy
of such recervables 15 an importane issue fr oot
audiL

Explunaticms regarding the aecmurting polives of
the tradc recivables of the Omoup ane presented in
Tt 2.

We perfonmesd the folwing procedures in f2ladon to the
reeonerabwlity aftradkes recervables:

- Understanding dhe Circerp’s process foc collections fram
auseommets ad evaluatmp the aperational cilectivensss of
theue eomtols

+ Uidkerstiundng and evaluaring the cusiomer coliectioms
PATICEYS,

- Anahytical progpdures on aeme of ceenvables and Irade
receivables twmocner dmm, comparing them to the ponc
periad,

=hquiries in melation fo iy despoteslaewsuils with
cusomers, gwuiies wrth legal coameels on owrsEetding
bieagabon in celabem Lo trde 1ocivables,

- Testing & sample of trede receivables dus inom third parties
by obtsining confimostion letters from customcrs using
sarnplmyz methed,

- Teshng scleted collections m the subsequen peried,
Assmang the adequacy of disclaunza of the made
rocivables due fromn thind particg in the fnancial salemens.

W lwel o material fAndings refacad o the Leede reevables
85 8 7egull of fhese procechares,

5) Respoansibilities of Mupagement and Thoge Charged wilh Govermapce for the Finzoeial

Statrments

The Ciwup Managemend 35 reqronsible for the proparstion and fair presenlarion of the consoladated Fencial
sabetnents in acoordance with TERS, and for such inlermsl control as management determmes. is neceasary to
crahle the preparslun of consolidated financial =aicrcats that ane free from material misstuemen, whether

dure ta frand or oo,

The {ircaq managerment is tespunsible Tor the preparation aod tair preserueon of the conaolidated fnatcial
slifermenls in accordance with TFRS, aid for soch imlemna] condrml as management determmings is nocesary o
enablc the preparation of consoladated financial statarents thil ar: fee Tom matecal Toissatemenl whethes

dus Iz fraod ar error,

Ttose charged with povernance une respunsible fir oversseing te Group's consolidad financial repedting

Process.
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6) Awditor's Responsibiity for the Audii of rhe FMnaocisl Staterments

Cour dim. 1= 1o obeein mmazonabbe assorance about whether the conrohdated Bnangal stalements as a whalg ane
fiee from malerial mizstuternem, whether due 10 Eaud of ettt and b issue en mdeperklent auditor’s repor that
mcludes our epinicn, Ressopbhe asirence wqressed as a o wemilt of an mdependear andit condicted in
acganlance with [5A is & high level of assurance bur dues not puarantze that a maedial misstateznenl will always
be datccted. Misstatements cun anse from frand or coroe, Misstatements are cansidened matetial if; iwdivichully
ot m the aggregate, they could reasotubly be axpected bo influcnee the econumic decisions of wsers 1aken on
the bagis ol these finamial staterrsenis.

As parl of an mdependent mudit conducted in scoordance with 154 and ndeperdent aucbung standards
published by the TR, we exencine prafissioual judonend and meintem profesionsl skepicism drughaot
the mudit. We alag:

- Telenfify awd assess the rsks of mutenal misdaement of the consolidated fmancial staiemerts, whetber due
to Fraud o ecne, dessipn and perfint audit procodures responsive 1o thess fisks, and obtain audit evidonce
that is suffeent and appropoate (o provide 8 besis [or car ainian. {The sk of oo defecting 2 muterial
misgtateraent cesulting for frwd 16 higher than for ot resulling from emor, s frawd mey involve collusion,
forpery, mientsanal oemissions, rmisrepresentalions, or the avemide of imternal cotieol.y

(Haain an mderstsnding of Dilonsl courrol rolevant o the awdit i ooder o design audil proceduess that ane
approgeiate n the circumdaness, bl nol [oc ke purpose of expressing an ofxinion o Uie effectiveness of
e Giroup's infermal contml

- Fwaluate the sppropriseness of accounting policies weed wnd the reasonableness of accounting sstimates
emd related disclosunes mads by roangpemen.

Coachwde on the gpptopratenéss of managemcnt™s wse ol the gompe coneem basis of aecouniing wd, basad
1 the sudrt evidenes obiained, whether a tuterial wneertainty exists related 1o evenws or conditions fhar nay
et sigenificam doubt om the Seoup's ahdlity (o conlioee as 2 pome soncem. s conclude thal 8 meterial
uncertainty exists, we an: naguinad 1o drw aterwion in our auditgrs repont 1o te related disclosomes in the
consolidabed Anancial statemends or, if such disclosures are insdoquate, 0 mwedify oo opmum. Cur
conchuzions are based oo the audit svidemes obtained g 1o e dis of cur suditer’s repost However, fulure
evenle or conditions may sause the Ghos ko coase 10 comymIc 3 A gt COmETL

- Fwaluate the overall preseniation, structure and content of the consobduted fineneial staternencs, includitg
e chiselosures, end whother the comsalidates] fnamcial staternents represant e undedyine trunewctions and
DT i & matuest thar achievea far prescotation.

Ot sulfucienn eppeopriste andil evidence reganding (e finmeial menemanan of the attities or business
Rctivices within the Group we express =n opinien on the consolidned Gnancial stalements, We ate
repansible foc the duestion, sipervision ad performance of the groun aodit, We tetnain solely responsihle
Toe o sdit cpinion

- We conimttuicae with thewe charged with govemans reparlmg, among other matters, the plened scope
and iiming of the #wdil el signifcane sudit Ardings, including, any spndficam deficiencics in et
comeel i we sdentify during owr andil,

- We also pevede thosc charged with povormance with a stamemneg thal we have cetoplied with relevant ctlwesl

pexjuiretnenls reperling inkependenoe, and fo cottomoticate with them all relstionships and wher matters
thiat risay reanably b thioghl o bear or our independencs, and whens applicuble, relaved safoguands,

arwir ol O Thes P kel ibeield Lingl
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5 Amditor's Respossibility for the Audit of the Finpaocial Sialements (Conit'd)

From the raters communicaied with (hose clapped with povermance, we determine those mattets Tt
wert of moet Fignilicanee in the audif of the consolidaced financial statenienns of the curment period and
e therefore the key audic matlers. We describe these marters in our Anditor's report unless law ar
regulntion precledes public disclogor; ahout the matter o when, m extremely rare circuinslaies, we
determing that a wadter showld nol be commumcated in our report becanse the adverss conzequences of
dirng so would reasnnahly be cxpecied 10 aulweigh Lhe public interest henefits of such coramumecation.

) Repart on Odber Legal pnd Regnlatory Requlketients

1) In weordunce with paregraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, no significent maier has come 16 our
atcution flat canses us 10 belicve that the Company s boukkeeping wlivities For the period January
1, - Dewember 31, 20200 and financial statements are not io compliance with laws and provisions of
the Ceanpuny s articles of assncialion in refation to Rnoncial reporing.

2) In poenndance with paragmph 4 of Adicle 402 of the TOC, the Board of Dinsclons submitted to us
the feeeszary explanations and provided required documents within the context of audi

3) Auditars” report on Risk Management System and Committee prepared o accordance with paragraph
4 uof Articls 398 of Turkish Comrmercial Code (“TCC™) &102 iz submittad o the Boerd of Dicectors
of ez Coinpany on March 11, H122.

The name of the enpagement partner who supervized and concluded this andil is Jale Akkas.

Lren Badimsiz Denetim &5,
hlember Firm nf e Rk

Engagmnuul Andilor

[stanbul, March 11, 2022

e of Crmst Nesrslon Inbereslgwl Ui
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(Lomvenience travslution of Consolidated Finaocinl Statements oxiplaally issued in Turkish}

GITBRE FABRIKAT AR TIRK ANONIM SiRKET]
Cadsolideted Statements of Financial Position 85 of December 11, 2021
{Amouuls eapressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) uolexs otherwise indicated. )
Audited Audited
Nuics  December 31, 221 December 31, 2021

ASSETS
COITEnL Adsets
Caxh and cash pguivilenrs 5 175 71584 59 Pe0 037
Fizocial imyestmnents 31 19] 032 5% 15087 2E0
Trade receivables

- Tmade reacivables frum reluted partics 30 1.248. 779873 390,462,054

- Trade récevables from third pamies 7 A59.621.649 232137472
CHher receivables

= Citteer receivables from related partiss 1) -- -

- Lhher eeceivables from thicd panies 8 230,134,584 T1. LGB0 %
Invenraries O S5.018321.8350 1389, THT LTS
Prepaid expemses 1M FO0 944 195 103,416 237
Diervative fingncial irstruments 20 au 424,703 -
Asseds related to the eomenn period taxes 25 S2.Wi9 2559 103
Dther euebrenl assels L# Q607 254 AR TIORAT
Current assels 0259 73,24] J.157.837.72%d
Assetn held for sale 27 -- --
Total corrent ganets 0.289. 74,241 LIST.HIT IO
M OH=cUrFEnl S18CtE
Frnaneipl investinants 31 22.967.162 13.744.887
Oriteer reeivables

- THher reccivables Trom dhicd pariies | 1ED3r 471 Q00553
Investments valued by equily method 3 40576001 23,582 630
Invesimen properties 1T 191.478,203 130 5046 Q6
Prroperty, plant aud equipment 12 LOEL. 727045 1 .4585.905.290
Luangible assets L3

Licdwrill 119 358,809 & 572 02

-Cither intangible assels EX.712,134 1B. 711956
Frepaid expeises 10 232022805 0680 425
Deferred tax asscis 28 - 20360 845
Total non-current asaet L TRGET.AED 2011065 657
Total assety 12,0490 891 5165907 951

The scoompanying notes frem an inlepral part of these consoldated financial stitements,

(M



(Conveukeace translation of Censolidatei Financial Statements oripioslly issued in Torkish}

GUBRE FABRIKATLARI TOREK AN Onin skt

Consoldated Statements of Financial Fosition ns of December 31, 2021
{Amorois expressed in Tuckish Lira (" T} unless otherwise indicated.)

_ Auditee Andted
Mxilen Decembar 31, 111 Decemiber 11, 2030
LIABRILITIES
Cwrreal Hmb] Hes
Ehart b borrowan s 6 2559433 555 1LHI A7 426
L3meng poruon el kang-1em barmwings 6 - 5709300
THyle pliratles
- Trade papahies 62 relaced parhes 30 e 240049
- Trude pryables t Chird parties 7 4 R A | 55 T
Feyakles dub 1o empoyee bered]lis 17 THeS, B30 30.867.564
her payahles
~Ciher puyphblee W relaned parties - -
—UAher perehlcd s thicd parties 8 L2, 7THd, 25] 5% aEE TYT
Crcfommed. Saome 10 TG 129 s 5
Laksil fieg relared woAlment peried lox 28 T2 AL Q=3 LET
[hrivalive Foancial instrunents 20 - -
Slurl evm pmsisians
-Shert-term provulond iy employee bengfiks 17 5430517 ZR.0d5 4030
-0 sharl=lcrm provisions 16 LES. LS. 1 F2430767
Lurvedl labIMUes LR A 3. 23 5555
LiahiliEea relared w eeseis held far mle 27 - -
Total correni linblllde B.5%8 9B 356 sl WELY [ ]
Mem-corrani linblLes
Long-r=rm ket wings 6 8.354.465 Tl SHS b
Leng term provigioes
- Leqg-lernm pivoyisicos fur conployee benefie 17 235,104 352 b B20 450
Defers Las Linbidiey 28 TIBH I LD EET %2
Toal ponscorremt Habdl it 431 168156 176303000
Toiml Hatlire hrd e LS b 34, B
Fguity
Sl Capital £ 334.000.000 334.000,000
Acomulzied edes compishmosive incnme f espeEnse ma) oo e
reclpengifoad 1 palil ur bhuea
- Tumgible Fied Asee13 Bixvalusimm Incresses of Invescnes
Walued by Fouity Method b243 1R o
ImpairmesTt oo propeaTy, plan and squiproan Akl ? ] ha) HTIIHZR2
-Deffnisd Penefle pluce re-meanoremen [ocess (2 EL1.5345) {105,445,
Aoommlated gifer sodiprahontive incomes S ekpeac 1 be
rezlngsilied g prafie ar Loss
-Fansign currmey Iranslalion diffaences 332,974,445 {400 420 2ty
Restiggd resery iy fiem profil
- £gal fiaryed 19 33838757 FRESE Y
Btimintd samings f logseg 02128 128 alM 5K 25
Curmar year profLleas 32325635 22,0564 0582
Sharehaldors” eqoiy 1718613959 1,084,154 676
Mon-eonanolluyg we ot 1.309.644.390 682.000.259
Tolal sharohalders' aquiry 4. EIENATE LI63.284. 505
Vatat st awd roitis 13.549.605 691 515894z 951

The aceenpanying noles fomm 8 Irwgral gort af thess eoasalidaed Homcial steseesmt.

)



{Croovenleoce brangintion of Consdidied Financial Statemenis origing iy Bsued (0 1weklab)

GLUARF, FABRIKALART TURK ANONIM SIRKETI

Cuonsolidated Staterments of Proft ar Loss and

Otber Comprebensive Income 83 of December 31, 2021

(Amounts expressed in Torkdsh Lira (“TL™) wolers ttherwize ndicated.)

Auwallledd Audiied
Jaooary | - JAHuary 1 -
Do ubeer 31, Deecember 31,
Mipdes 2021 208
Rakes 21 HpTER 407 513 L T-1 kB e |
Crinse of sales a1 [E1E4 AME A3 i IZT 05275
o peodi 2,584 %074 1204 ans ang
Lieoeral and pdministrotive caplse 22 [238.1 | ddT> CLAMEHLeAL)
kT Rrkesirg, sdling arxl duesributiom expense 22 (3518370081 [4RH.T13.374)
{Hlix upmtog inceme 24 T Ay e LT ETR Y
THher operaiing mrpends 24 12312554, %448 (891,116, 163]
w ﬂ.ﬂ!.ﬂﬂl AT Sk
Tneoome rorn v cearn et activilies 25 S9.6T2.B08 117 M2
Lxpenacs Eram invesmer] aorivitess 25 (214 1dd} 12D
FrafieCloag) fram invermiemis accoumed by squite method 3 L0 47 AAIENTR
Fimance] iovome ' (expeatits] befare operatng praflt L T o LR TL AT
Financiol inemme 26 520086, 3449 ATaD8| . ed2
Finmecinl expmac 26 (e i 7S] Chan 6,1y
Giaina f {loese)] fom ool moeoetacy posicon 26 ELE L] [53.425.554]
Profli befiare daz from condmming operntloms 08, 23, 681 LT1_T9518
- Curenl pericd bk Cexponar) 2B [RIL271.A20 (14559070
- Dheferred e (ekpimad) § ioums el [5E.202.46.5) [ B D
Tatal Lis ferpemse) S ineome [L%E.A74.20%) 55,141 x|
Met poried prafit [ foss) [CRTET 415,160,128
THetribatioa of income / {loa) for e perind
Han-conrallicg micrest (5} 336257 154 012 4k
Arinbulable 1o ecuity holders of 1he parent 523,125,635 262 ALTE A
Lot peer share [k 29 1,566 0,785
{ther comprobiesilve income
liem1 nat o be redesdfed o profit or e TR
Creperty, plan] e eyuipoooet naaloelien ingreases 12 L% 377 4K "
Tnxes on acher eoibpralimnsive income L} [25.H57.744] =
Autveral geinlessh arivirg fom defioed bt plars L7 12,142,989 T 43|
Tux efties of oiher comprelicniive come: (exponse) 8 A 2E_S4E; [ 15 T
Itemp i e rectamsified to profht or e
Cheniea in tureney Ins.aCon diffnos 102,223,637 (JE R e i)
Cilier comprehendive (rxpeaye) LB33.431 w7 (156 316018)
Total cxsinprebenslve Inma.l;lugﬂul 130,227,291 189,758,100
Hetribmckom of tecad comsprehensioe Ineome f
Blon-oumerslling inceresss 725.481.686 28.523.154
Equity haldera of e pamet 1365755 MM B3L 22 G

The aecompan )y hiag st himm an inlegral gar of ey consslided ed finenclal atement

(3)
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(Convemlomce tramalacion of Congolidaled ¥ naocial Stxtements ariginally is14ed I Tarkich)

GUBRE FABRIKATARI TIRK ANONIM stRxk Tl
Congalidated Slalcments of Caxh Flows a5 of Decenber 31, 2621

(Amounts cxpressed 10 Turkish Lira (*T1."} onless otherwise indicated.)

Jatuckry 1 - Jonmary 1 —
December 31,  Derember 31,
it 2021 T2}
Coch (Hres fomn opeerating acthvitlic
Morind incoone o (b ) T ) 16,0468, 1 10
Adjusimends to Pempdle nod preDt3an) fer the period
Al peslmerds celaley] 1 Jeprocisive and amartizaliee s I3 FIRWCIEN [ L26.353 158
Hut portmends Bor wdiatribulod poubils of iceescents valyel by syuits methad 5 L0 49 ATy CLE AT
Aol postnueota rolated W provisiom B coeplove: Bl 17 2dB.7i L& R3340 17T
Aidmesment) Plated o inbereel Eromoce 2T 145 TTh AHp
Aotk colaled o inopainzent F sAvet s ¥ 1E57.a44 [A1H1 515}
Adjustmants rlaied in inpainee L ol coeeiable i 3E.51% [ XABE 205
Deferred Erancisl Ingonte = I8%R10 [SE.CH9
Aljurzmarey redidi ko lmwauil pousisian I 11055 5 A0 rELE uEy
Miljuitinm & rrdicd ba corvem pariod o (g .| 138 4 T4 058 55 191,383
Adjverimeats rebaed o beeses (poln) o saly o prupaty,plant and coummen 25 [h.51142K) 45,357
Adjucmenls reluad Lo fur valyvs Leme (igine] on decreadive lranc ol IBwubEs 20 (34474743 o [l
Adjusiments zeluoed o fhic wohee Do {Zacs] v neesmen propeo 25 [51972.22% 1L 1TeA05)
Cash Rown fiark be operntlws aoilvibes before chaoge (s the aseets nod UsblilHes 12436751 A3 SHLI9T
Chungs |m smriong caphal (me)
[cormsr in Tode Teivahles [1.0R4.552 3500 (3009} w5,
Iroremme in ocher raseyables [ LGB 5. 1T Ll LRI
Drecrmaze in imverdned e [3.702.74 1434} (22,565 T3
Increage v e piyabler LER AR 443 242301
Inereard ¢ (ina ) in emplays= bensfir obligaom i T 266 1224 155
In=egin ¢ (devreasn; o dedermed insps T2k 1 5.E4E L3.415350
b ¥ (derreaca) o prepasd e pelie {626 EMLa23) JE4 25T M
h ¥ [Aourema; m oohag bt {20 E55. 3 LA PR LTy
Adjusstmonis related by ogher desrtars in waddng copital ABarx 11 [1dd. 2 5,674
L1t o From the speratoes SR 1k cheoges io marking caphtal . 50 043y H37.014 29
Loz paid 175 &9 0 [ 107,56 St
Tazo rofundy’ [paymenes) 2H 4,358,514 L1 ®an
Tuymmrs relaied <o proviflon i mimlupes bBnelio 17 {97 57T 730 [a0.fgnars
Cath e regarding kovestment nelivith 14336315 SMRET TN
Cgh Aper frem inyestmend activide
Caph var oo fram Lbe purchaces 31 ey, plan| eo squipmne o 0 pddgibie 3t 12,13 [2YE.5T. | 56) {12304 4y]
Carh imBoors fmm e anles, of phuperty ot ol equipmnol s ivegilin asses 17,13 8737 M 154 1235
(Hher inflows (outiloews) of b {181.147 4B5) IH.5H T
Cash flow Gom distorminued spinidicce, net - HAIAT 340
Cuab Moot T Investmoeml activlila (1 54N 79T {4 148471
Ll Naw Trvm Doanolog wete e
Cush indluwa from Mrancing Bipuwings 1079000000 2141 T 40
Laah quitbws frem Frecing bumoeings peymnes (33550439367 [2.JE26M 0L,
_ Cosh flw fram Ansnclag aciiviie [T T 8. 736560}
Netchaxpe In cash cinh equivabents befors 1Tt #f Ferolpn curceney Danalygon
differane: ) {IEAZI 143 3. 65
Ciuth and canh el rnbenis 2y o Jenuarr 1 1 57504, 103 LT A 57 B
_ Furmign curmeney Tmus g i ey E4SEOASEL (112 L3BaiE)
Cagh amdd caali F]LI|\'I|EHII-HIID:|'DHHIJH al 5 11T ATLEIT BE7 S0, 193

The nccompany ing rotes farm an irdegeal purl of these consolidaced finpnesl ALriemenis.
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(Convenltoce ivanslailon nf Comanlidnied FinLnele | Siachmedts orlginally mucd k1 TurkRh)

GUBRE FABRIK AL ARITRK ANONIM SIRKETI
Notea tn the Comsolidaled Finaocial $tatements as of Decembrer 31, 2021
{Amnunis pxpressed in Turkish Lira (*T1.™) onless otherwlse indicated.)

NOLE 1 - GRUUE'S DRGANIZATION AND NATLRE OF OPERATIONS

tiithee Fabeikalan T.A$. {“Gabretag” or “the Compiaty™} and its subsidiaries (altogether referred 1o a3
e Group™) are cornpestd of direct ur indirect four subsidiaries [Decernber 31, J030: Tour) and 1wo
assaciates {December 31, M0 bwa), Glibrctas, cxdablished in 1952, operatez in (he feld af praductian
and merketmg of chernical fettilizers.

The Company conducts the muajority of its operations togelher with Tarkdye Tarem Kredi Kooperatifler
Metkez Birligi (“TTK™ [Twkish Agriculiueal |oan Cooperative Assicdation). The registered head
{Jifiee iz in lstonbul end information abeut the locations of the other producticn Ceilities and offices are
summariesd here helow:

Coerationil unfts Opcratinn dataily

Yeruncs Plast |hrectorate Production ! Porl facilities £ Sornge

Argean Eenional Dircaoogame Salee-madseting ¢ Liquid-powder fertiliesr proclogiion ¢ Sromge
Black fca Beganal Direciorace Aales-rmarketing ! Slorage

Foslern Mediterrancan Regiona| Lhteciomate Sales-marketing / Pory feilies § Storage

Warnara Regional THreclomie Sale=marketing  Storagee

Central Anstalis Ropional Dheeciorae Sales-mack eling

Southeaireen Anatolia Regional Direciorats Salew-oarheling

GAP Begpoonl Directormie Snlea-marketing

Western Mediterransan Regionn| Direororate Saled-marketing

The number of employess of the Company and it subsidiaries for the period ended December 31, 202]
g1 5Ta (Chmember 31, 200y 1, 56090,

23,67% of the shires of the Company arc traded In the Istanbul Stock Exchange and is registered (o the
Coputed Marloet Board (“CMO™.

The shareholders holding 1085 and abowve sharsholding in the Cotnpany's share cepital ave listed belnw:

Deeewnlzer 11, 2021 Dectlrer 31, 2020
Share Share
Maroe _Share % amount Share 9% ampumt
TKK Ua75 85 253 .56B4 a7 LeTR 05 253,684 607
Other — public Bedd 05 BO.315.7341 L2405 fA15,.393
Tatal YUIG00 334000000 (0000 334000.000

1.1 Sobaidiaries

The cottpames, which are included m the scope of cunsolidetion es of Docember 31, 2021 and
Decernher 31, 2020, the direct and itdiveat voting dplis el Gibretay and their affextive parinership rates
(%) and the valid currencies aeconling 9 the counrries of aperation are shewn helow:

Necemboye A1, 31 Decembar 31, 2020

Mame Currencyin Yorlng Ellectbve Yoling ri"ﬂz
™ RIght  Cremerchip Raie  Righr RareiP

Huzi Potmnchemica’ Do, [ F A5 A% 44,504 4%, 50% 44 BR%
Aoryn Phagphorle Jowah G, IHE 43 A7 A% g A% THLE 41 ME%
Tasliy= Hnlinde Rairmrade Fetrokimyn ve . .
g Ticsret 4, 5. TL 4% 4% 4 853 48, 59% 48, 8R%
Gibretay Maden ¥orrinlao 2.5, L 100,00% 100,00% 11,00 | GF], e
Tarkim Buki Kotatis Sanoyi ve Ticars 8.5, TL A0 A0 A0 A0, N 5 40 [
Tarmex Tasam Basad: Bilisam vu
Nefigm EF ameber] AS. T 157534 15,158 15, T8% 15, 7T8%

(6)



(Convembenes trandrtion of Concolidaced Fisanelal Statements orlglually isaued Jm Turkich)

GEUBRE FABRIKALARY TOREK ANONIM SIRKETE
Notes o the Consolidated Filaancizl Statemenis as of Devember 31, 2021
fAmeamy #xpressad in Turkivh Lirs (*TL") unless othernise indicated,)

MOTE 1 - GROUE'S DPRGANLFATIHIN AND NATURE OF OFERATIEINS (Cont’d)
1.1 Subsidiaries (T oot *d)
Eari Petrochomica] g,

Giibretag has panlicipaied in Ragi Peirochemical Cn. {"Razi™) on May 24, 2008, which is located in dran
and conduets he production and sale of Ferilizer and fertilizer raw matertals. The share of Ciibretas in
the share capital of Razi as of the date of balance sheed is 48,3E% (Decemher 31, 2020: 48 8836, Razd
i3 cofisdered 8 ubsidiany erause Gubretag has the nght to sefeet and nominate three of the Byve-nember
Roard of Razi. Also, it hes the conrolling powe cver the aperational management of Razi.

Raintrade Petrokimya ve Dy Tiearet A5, ino Ligeidation.

As of Decomber 31, 2019, Pazi has established Rainade Petrokimya ve Dis Ticaret A5, FRaintrade™)
1 Turkey i order to conduce its sales activitiss owtside lran. Raiturade has commenced 11s operatiom
in April 2011, Razi has 100% shareholding of Rainteade; therefore, the Group has indirect ewmershap af
4E,38% of the shares of Rainlrade. In the Extracmdinary General Assembly of Razi beld et Anpst 19,
2024, il was decided to liquidate Raitrade Petrokimya ve Iy Ticarst A5, amd the relevant Liquidation
procezd has pot besn realized vet es of the repott dale.

Arya Fhasphoric Jeaool Co.

In 2012, Razi has purchased 37 5% of Arya Fhosplode Jonoob Co. (" Arya™), which operstes in the same
region and owes a production facility heving an amual produstion capacity of 126.000 s of
phosphoris coid. In 20M 3, Kazi porchased the remaining 12,5% 0f (he shares und fil by awns Arva, which
resulted as an indicect awnership of 43, 885% for the Group.

Crlibretas Maden Yetinmlan A S,

According ko the Hoard Decision duled Jonuary 22, 2020, il was decided to establish Gabretas
Muden Yatnmlan A5, with a paid in capital of TL $50.000 and 100% of (e shares owned by the Group,
whiene 1the: ineorporation procedurss wers completed with the teade cepiatration effected on March a1,
2020. On Febmary 24, 2031, the 5620t Gold Mine livense with registtarion tuember 82050 and the works
within the seope of the livense were transfarred to Giibmzlay Maden. In the General Asscmbly of (iibreras
Maden dided January 29, 2021, i was docided t0 inerease the copital of te compary to TL 40600000,
and it was fully paid on May &, 202] in cash, Gibretay Maden, which is iwloded in the cansolidation,
conlinaes ity construction activibes Lo start mining sctivities az of (he dawg of the meport.

1.2 AFfiliates

Giibretes has participated i Tarkim Bitki Korumes Sanayi ve Ticaret A8, (“Tarkim™, which optTales
iy agricultursl pesticide sector on Apdl 13, 2009, As of the balancs sheot dale, the shares held by
Gilihretag is 4074 of wral shares of Tarkim (December 31, 2024 40%).

1.3 Other finmncial staterments

The tiroup hae participated af the rave of 15,78% in Tamet Tanm ¥eedi Bilisit ve Detisim Hizmetler
A % ("Tamnet™ whicl 1s « subsidiary of TEE.
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(Conviniange ranabaticon ol Coadoldated Finpocinl Stplements sriglon]ly bBsued I Turklsh)

GLERE FABRIKAL ARI TURE ANONIM SIRKETT
Nodes i the Consolidated Fimancinl Séatements as of December 31, 2021
(Amounts expressed jo Torkich Lira (*TL") unlass otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - GROUTS ORGANIZATION AND NATUHE OF OPERATIONS {Cont'd)
1.4 The approval of the consolldaled Noancinl slalcmenb

The comsolidated finansial statettents have beeh appeored by the Board of [Hrectors and aatherized t
b i5ued vo March 117, 2022, The General Assembly has the power o amend e consolidared foancral
ulalerrinls.

NOTE 2 - EBASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL
RTATEMENTS

1.1 Basis of presentation
Finadcial Reporting Standerdy

The Company and its aubsidiaries located in Turkey record end prepare their siahetory books of aceounts
and their statutary financial siatements in ling with {he Turkish Commercial Code (10177 and
fceoanting principles stalel by the 1ax legislation. The subsidiaries based in [ran keep their boaks of
accournts and prepare their Onancial statements in e cumeney of Iranisn Risl "TRR"} in sceordance
with the prénvailine cegulation in Iran.

‘Ihe accompanying conswlidated financial statements of the Group have béen prepared n accordance
willy 111 ¢onumuogué numbered T-14,1 “Communiqué on the Principles of Financial Repotting [
Capital Markets” {“the Comanuniqué™ annowiced by Public Oversight Accounting and Awditing
Slundards Authenty of Turkey ("FOA™ oo Juie 13, 2013 which is published oo Official Garette
mumberad 567G in order 1o comply with Turkish Accounting Sandards ¢ Turkish Financial Repurling
Handards {“TFRE™) and interpeetations prepared in complisnce with international standasds, These
standards ave upduled 1o parallel o the changes made in Intermational Financial Reportitg Standards
“TFRE™.

Thee consolidated Ananvin] statements have besn prepared with historical cost principal sxcluding the
revaiuation of fand and buildings prezented io property plant and equipment, mvesiment and dorivalive
financial instrumente stated at fair valoe a5 meagared on the balasce shest dare. However due 1o the
accumylative inflation rare of lasl thres: years in lun excesding 10084 {120%, 1he financial statements
Lave been prepared ascounting the affects of inflaticn instesd ol lisorcal vast basis, as of the beginaing
of the accounting period of 2020, TAS 2% "Financial Reporting it Highly Tiallolionary Ecunvmies”
standard was spplicd during e pregaration uf e Gnanciul stolements of the subridiary in fean,

(roing {"oncern
The Group has prepared its cansolidsted finascial @ stenenls considering the gring conesm concepl
Netting’ THEseL

Firwncial assets and lishilives gre offser and repererd] in the nel emount when 1hera is 2 legolly
cnforeeable ight or when there is an intention to setle the assets and liabilities oo e nel hasis or realie
(bt awsets and settle the fiabilites simultanemsly,

®



(Convenlenwes tradalatan of Coazodldeted Flapichl Satedionin oriploslly imeed Io Turfdal

:{BRE FABRIKALARI TURE ANCNIM SRKETT
Noles io the Consalidated Financisl Statements 21 of December 31, 2021
EAmmmts pxpregied In Turldeh Liva (“CL") unless atheraise indicated )

NOTE 2 - BEANIS OF PRESENTATION OF COMBOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
(- ontinned)

2.1 Basis of preacotation (Contdnned}
Comparative Information and Restatemeni of the Prior Perlod Floancial Sialements

The conuplidated financial statements of the Group include comparative financial itformation 4 eneble
the determinatiom of 1remds o e Grancial position and pecformanee. Corparative figures ane
reclassified where necessary, te vonform o changes in preseitation in the cumenl penod financigl
statements and the significant changes are explaincd

Fooctoonl Currency

The hnatewl statemenk of the ertities of the Group are presented m Jocil curnescies anctional
currency”} of the economis zones they operate in. All of the financiol position and aperational cesults of
the: emities are presenied in Turkish Lice (“1L") whoch iz fonctional cutrsney of the Company znd
preseiancn curmeney of the condensed consolidated Miancial statements,

The Bmecticnal currency of e Company’s subsidiary aperating in Tran 35 anian Biul (“IRRE™} and the
fuoctional curreney af the subsidiarics sold and remwved from the consolidatian in 2020, IGLC Anka
am] IGLLC Dicle, is US Dollae (“USD™). In lran, the exchange rates used in the market for fozaisn
currency-bused trensactions differ significanily fem the enoouneed fixed exchange rates, The Clenter
for Forcign Exchange Transaviivns (“Center™) has heen established under the supervision of the Central
Dank of Iran and the benchmark. rates, which are close i the free marker rates, hove begun o he
annpuneed. In the foreiim comency valustions of Razi, as the enchange rate regime in a0 is arnbismows
andd it ix uneertsin with which exchange rote will be malized in the fiture cash flows, the viear-ctid
exchange rale (S TL.A} unnounced by the Center is used, Simularly, while caloulating the perisd average
exchange rates, (he avetage of the rutes aonouneed hy the Cenrer wat taken mbo consjderation,

Aeegrding 1o TAE 21 Changey in Exchange Kates, e assels and liebilities af the subsidiacies in fureign
countnes are converted 1 Tutkisl Lica wath the parity on the balatee sheet day. Incoms and cxponse
items are translated into Turldzh Lira with the avenlgs exchange rate in the period, Curmency translation
differences resulted Bomn closing and average rate usoge is accounbed under curency translmion
dilfermee: under equicy, Theze translalion differences are recognized as ineome ar lozs at the period.

The comversion rates used ame as follows:

December 31, 2021 Decenaber M, 2kl
Perlod Feriod Pariod FPerivd
Currency Exad AYErRpE End AVErape
IRR/TL AT E T ) 0EIGIZ2305 Q00002874 251

€)



{Coovemirnes tranabuilon of Conseliabed Financhal $tatements orfginally lved {u Turklch)

GUBRE FARRIKALARI TURK ANON M SIRKET1
HNotes to the Consolidated Finnncial Statements &8 of December 31, 2021
(Amoumix expressed i Turkish Liea (<TL") unless otherwise indicated.) .

NOTE 1 - BASE; OF TIHOE TBESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL
STATEMEMTS (Caxc*d)

2.1 Basix of prosentabion {Cant'd)
Restatement vl Previous Perind and Resratement Flowociak $tatements in ifigh Infladien Periods

CMEB declared with the decision taken on barch L7, 2005, that the hated cotipadies upsrating in Tuckey
and propaning financial staternemts for the sceepted tinancial reporting, standards by the Capiatul Markets
Board ("CMI Financial Reponting Standards") wers not subjested (o inflation sceaunting offeetive s
froml Jasuary |, 2005, In the statement made by the Public Oversight Accouniing and Auditing
Standards Awthority on Janwary 20, 2022, Since the cumulative change inthe persal purchasing pewer
of the last theee years according 1o the Consumer Price Index (CPD ik 74,419, it i3 statesd thal there is
w1 need to makee ony adjustments within the seope of TAS 29 a0 the Anencial staterents for 2021, In
this respect, while preparing the financial suements sz of December 31, 2021, no inflanon adjustment
was made according to TAS 29, On dhe olber hand, within the scope of 15% [egislation, infletion
ACCOWLLE 11as béen poslponed starting from the finasnciel ststements duted 31 December 2029, with iles
“Law ao Amending the Tax Procedure Law end the Carmorale Tax Law™, which was acceped o the
agetda of the Turkish Grand MNatonal Asserbly oo Januare 20 2032 Howewer due 1o the accumulative
inflation rate of last three years in bun exceeding 100% §]20%), the financal statcments bave been
prepared accounting Lhe effects of inflation instead of histodesl cost basis, as of the bepiomng of the
accounting pericd of 2020, IAS 29 "Finarcial Reponing i ITighly Inflationary Fennomies™ slandard
wis aprplied during the preparation of the financal stalements of the subsidiary in lman.

Finuncial statements are prepared on the basig of historical cosis of purchases and s3les: thiag, the balimes
shect itemma tial have not yet heen expressed in curreney in the balanee sheet should be converted using
& pencal price index. This alsu should be applying for incoie and expenses. bfongtary assels and
liabilities are not required to be convetred using o peneral price index, i1 they are subject ta price changss
depending on the contract or are cxpressed 85 currect value.

Subsidiariex reparting i a Myperinfladonary currency of rthe parent company In @ now-
toperinfletionury ccaromy

Aotording o TAS 21, when the finaccial siatements and financial infunination of an enlity, whoge
functional correney is the cureney of & hyperintlationary econormy, are converted to the curcency of 2
tieh=tryperinlationary econamvy, compatalive woounts may he thaze presented as curment year amousts
in the relevant, previcus vear's financial statements (ot adjusted according to changes in pepcs level or
Loreign clUfreney in next period).

The ellect of the adjusment of the fancwl setemens for inflstion amownying to 11 394,409 258
refated with the prior perinds was recopnized in the vpening balances in the squity in the previous year's
profits as of Jawery 1, 2020, As of January 1, 2021, the eguity opening halances of the subuidiary have
been corrected by TL 111,745,371 veparding inflation accnunting.

12 Changes in Turkith Fioancipl Reporting Standards (“TFHS™

The pew standards, amendmoents nd inferpreiations which sre effective as 31 Jaouary 1, 2021 are
24 folkows:

The ecounting policies edapted in preparstion of the consolidatod financial slulements a5 at Deceriber
31, 203 ure comaisiens with those of the previows fnancial vear, excent for the adoption of new and
amended TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of Janvary T, 2021,
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(Convenirnce ranslnlou of Coocaliduted Fimanciel Satemenine priginally IMued o Tarkbb}

GUBRE FABRIK AL ART TURK ANCNINE $THI{ETI
Muoten to the Coosolidated Finanelal Statenents aa of Decemhber 31, 2021
{AMmounis expressad in Turkish Lira (“TL™) uniess othe rwviss indicated,)

MOTE I - HASIS OF THE PRESENTATION 0OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS {Cont*d}

%2 Changes in Turkish Fioaocial Repnrting Standards (“TFRS™) {Cant'd)

The new staadurds, amendments nnd interpreiations which are effective ns at Januacy 1, 2021 arc
as tollows (Cont d):

Amendments (o TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and TFRS 16 Interesi Rute Benchmark Reform
— FPlumie 2

In Dezember 2020, THA inttodused md publizhed smendnoent of the Denchmark #a1 Keform - Phaze
2- TFRE 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 anud TFRS 16, which inmodused temporry exermptions m order
to eliminate the cffects vn Knanciel repocting of replacing the benchmurk interest rate (MBOR) with on
altemalive reference interest rate, Businesses will apply thess changes for annual acoounting periods
beginning i oF L0er famuary 1, 2021. This change does not have a material impact o the consolidetsd
finapcial posilion and performonee of the Graup.

Amendmenta i IFRS 16 ‘Leases® — Covid=19 pelated retf concesaivns

Effectve fram April 1, 2021, {lus change lus been extended to une 2022 a5 of March 31, 2021 Asa
result of coronavirus (COVID-19) pandernic, rent concession have heen pranied to lessess. Such
concessions might lake 8 varigty of forms, including pasment holidays and defeeral of lease PRy,
Oin May 28, 2020, the [ASEH published an amendwent to IFRS 16 Lhat provides an optionol pracheal
expedignl for lessees from #ssessing whether a renc concession related to Covid-1% is a [ease
modification. Lessees san elect to acequant for 4 such mel cuncessians in the same ways #s they would
[ they were npt |eaze modifications. bo many cases, this will resull it ascounting for the conecssion as
variable lease puyments in the period(s) in which the svent or condilion that inggers the ceduced
payTNED GRS,

Standards published but not yet cffectve aud uot eacly adopted

The new stamiarta, inlerpretations and amendmenrs thal have been published as ol the appeoval dade of
the comsolidated financlal siatements but hava net yet enered icto effect for the cumvent reporling penod
and have n heen applied carly by the Group are as foflows, Uiless staled gtherwise, the Group will
make the necessary changes that will aflect ils consalidaied financial sialements und notes after the yew
stamdards and ivtetpestotions come inlg cifest,

TERS J Ametdmeoby — Amendment to References to the Concepinal Framework

POA mede chunpes 1o the TFRS Business Cemnbinetions standard in July 2020, The anendment was
made with the intent to replace the reference to ke old version of the Coneeptual Framework (the 1049
Framewnik) with a reference b2 the cusrent version {Canceptual Framework} released in March 20158,
withaul maierially changing Lhe requirerienis of TERS 3. However, a new parapraph has been added 1o
TERS 3 o define comringent assets that do oot mest the recoghition enterda at the acquisition date. Uhe
emendrmcit will be applied prospestively for anme) eccounting periods begioning on of ke Jamuory
1, 2022, karly application iz perrmtied if the entity inplements all changes jn IFRS standsrls chat refer
toy the Congeptudl Framewerk (Mareh 2018} 2¢ the same Hme or eaclivr, The offects of the g8 change
um the fnancial pasilion aml performance of the Group are being cvalusted.

1)



(Conveniomes fraorindon of Conmolidaied Flantelnl Staiesedts ocigimmlbr imeed In Turklsh)

GORRE FABRIKALART TURK ANONIM Sisexrrt
Motes ko the Consalidated Financial Siatements a2 of December 31, 2021
{Amuunt expressed in Turkish Lirg (#TL™) unless otherwises indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF THE PHRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANTIAL
STATEMENTY {Cont'd)

2,2 Changes in Turkdsh Finaoeis] Reporting Standards (“TFRS™ (Coni*d)
Standards publlehed bl dol yel effectlve and not earky adapted (Cont’d)

Amehdments to 'LFHES 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribubon of Asscts between an Investor
aod its Associate or Jolnt Venture

ln December 2017, POA postponed the offective date of this amendment indefinitely pending
the cutcome of its research project oo the equity method of accounting,. Early application of the
armendinents 13 siill pormitted, The Company will wait until the final amendment o assess the
Imipacts of the chianges.

Ameodmenty to TAS L6 - Frooeeds befioire= Invbed ded Use

I July 2020, POA made changes to TAS 16 Tangible Fixed Assers standaed. With the amendrient,
conepanics do niel allow revenues from the rale of manufacuied products 1o be deducted feom the pos:
ot the tanmble fixed azsct itern, while mokieg a tangible azset fit for its intended wse. Companizs will
oW fecoptize such sules reverme and related costs in proft or loss, The emendment will be applicd for
annual acoounting periods begituing un or alter | Junuary 2022, Changes may be spplisd mtrospeetively
oly for jkerns of property, plant and equiptnent that ace macde available st the beginning or after the
carlicst prezented petiod in compansen with the accounling period in which the endity first applisd the
change. There 19 no cacmption for those whe will apply TERS for the Grst time. The effects of thene
changes on the financial position and performance of the Group ere being exahuated.

Amendnienis ta TAS 37 — Onerous contracts - Cosis of Fulklling 2 Coniract

In July 20260, the FOA tasusd amendroents 0 TAS 37 Provisions, Cotuingent Lisbilities end Cantingent
assels. The amendments issued o TAS 37 which are effeetive for penods begicniog on or afler January
1, 21, 10 specify which costs an colity noeds Lo include 54 -when assessing whether a conlmel is
onerous ar Joss-making znd alse apply o “directly related cost approach”, Amendoments must be applicd
celivspectively to contraers or which an entity has not fulfilled all of is ebligations at the begnmny of
the annual reporting period in which it firet applies the amendments (the dade of initial application).
Farlier application 16 permitted and most be disclosed. The Company is in the process of assessing the
impact nf the amendments on fnancial pasition or performance of the Cotmpany.

‘IFES 17 = The oew Standard for insorance comtracls

The POA wssued TFRE17 in February 2019, a comprehensmve new accounting standard for imsurance
SOBTIACE SOVOTULE Tecrnition and measwremetl, presentalion and disclosyre. TFES | 7 mode] combimes
4 current halance sheod meadueemned of insurance conoact ligbilities with the reeognition of profic over
the period that services are provided, TFRS 17 will become effective for aunna] teporting perings
begrioning an or after January 1, 2023, 53 early applicetion i permitted. The standaed 33 o applicable
‘or the Company and will not have an impact oo the financial position o pevfortacce of the Campeay-
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(Conved #oce truanlntioo of Congalideted Finynclal Statements orlgimaily iveaed Io Turkinh}

GOBRE FABRIKALARI TCRK ANONDM SIRKETH
MNoded o the Cansulidated Finaocial Statements a3 of December 31, 2021
(Amownts rxpresacd in Turkdah Lira (“T1." nniess eenerwise ndicated )

WOTE 1 - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSCLIDATEDR FINANCLAL
STATEMENTS (Contd}

L1, Changes in Turkish Flnancial Reparting Standardy (MTFES™ (Cont*d)
Srandards fzsued but not yet ¢ffevlive and not exrly adopted (Cont*d}

Amendments (o 'TAS 1- Classification of Lizhllitles as Current and MNop-Current
Lilahilitgs

Om Match 12, 2020, the POA ssued amendments to TAS 1 Prescricaction of Fieocial Statements. The
amendments (ssucd o TAS 1 which are effective for penods beginning on or afier Januwary 1, 2023,
clanfy the crivena for the classification of & lability 23 either current o non-murenl Amepdments mus
be applied retrospectively in aoconlance with TAS § Accounting Policies, Chanpes in Ascounting
Estimaley and Errars. Early application i3 permitted, The Cenopany is in the process of assessing the
impact of the ametdtments on fnencial postion or pefommance of the Coppany.

Atunual Inoprovements — 200182020 Cvele

In July 2020, the TARR issacd Aunual [mproveatients o IFRS Stamlards 20182020 Cyele, amending
rhe followings;

-IFRS 1 Firsi-lime 4doplion of intemational Financial Repenting Stardands - Subsidiersy a3 a first-
time adapier; The amendinent peomnity a subsicdiary o messure curnlative iranslation differsnces usme
Lhe amounts reporied by the parent, The amendinen 1% also applisd (o an associals or join vantare,
-IFRS Y Financial Instunetts  Fags in the *10 per cent 1e2t™ lor derscognition of foanciul lehilities:
The smendment clanifics the fees st an entity ineludes when assessing whother the teona of 8 new oc
tuodifred Oaecial hebilily are substantially different from the rerms of the onigiral financial lisbility.
These fees include only twse paid or received between the harmower and the lender, including fess paid
or received by sither hotrower or Tender on (e olters behalf:

&ll of the improvenents made will be applied for the anmual sceounting periods stacting from Taowary
[ 2022 and afer. Bary wpplication is allowed, The itnpacts of the pema standsrds, smendmeits and
mprovereniz on The coaselidared firuneial position snd performnanece o the Group being assessed.

TAS § Amendments — Definilion of acconntiog estinaies

In August HIX, POw published amendrmenty te 'TAS ¥ that introduce 8 pew definition for "accourting
Forecasts”, The amendments published for TAS 8 are valid for annual secounting periods hepinning on
or afler Jarmsry 1, H)23, The anowdmends clanfy the distinglion between changes in weCaunling
extimates and chonges 1 accounting policics and conection of amars. 1t alen claritics bow businesses
can use measurement techtugques aod imputs (o0 mprove sceowting estimates, The amended stapdard
clarifies that the effects of a change in uput ot & charyee in 8 messurement technique oo the wecoumbng
estimate are ehanges in accounking csiimates unless they resnli from a eomection for prier peringd errors,
Tlee previous definition of change in accounling estimate indicated that changes it asseunting estmates
could regult from hew information ot newr developrments, Therefare, sueh changes v tol considered as
curmeclions of ermars. Thig azpect of 1he definition haz been preserved by the UPS. The effects of the said
chalags o the finaneisl position and performance of the Group ere bring svalualed,
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(Comvenact Camnlntion of Conslldeted Flmancin| Statemenin oclgbially loued In Turklyh)

GUBRE FABRIKALART TURK ANGNIM SIRKETL
MNotes to the Consolidsted Flnancial Statements 23 of December 31, 2k 1
{Amonnm expressed in Turkdch Lia (*T'1.™) unless otherwise lnlicated.}

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL
STATEMENTS (Cone*d)

22, Changes in Turkish Financial Reporting Standasds (“TFRS") (Cont'd)
Standards issued hut not yet effcctive and not early adopted {Cont’ &)
TAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of acconnting policies

In August 2021, POA published amendments o TAS 1, providing guidance and examples to help
busicesses apply materiality cstimates w accounting policy dizclosuses. The amendments published it
TAS | are valid foc unmual acommruing periods Bginning on ar after Janvary 1, 2023, Dae 1o the lack of
4 definitien af the term "significant” in TFRX, POA has degided te replace (his cerm with e fieanl"
in the conteat of dizclozing aceovnting policy wformetion. 'Significans is a term delined in TFRS and
is widely understood by users of financial statements acoarditg Io POA [n asseasing the maleriality of
accounting policy infonmation, enlies nesd to consider both the size of teansactions, other events or
conditidss, and {hedr nahwe. In addition, examples of sitarions in which the entity may consider
accounling policy wnformation 1o be imporiat are ineluded. The effecis of ihe zaid change on e
fitwindial posinon and pecfortiaice of the Group are heing cvalusied.

TAS 11 Amendments — Deferred Lax an assets aod liabilities arisiog from a single ransaction

In Aupuat 202], POA published amendmenis to TAS 12 that narrows the seope of the imtial Tecagnition
exwmplion end thus gnsures that fis exemption is not applied to transactivng What result in equal taxable
and deductible temparary differcnces. Avnendments 1o TAS 12 are valid for annoel ACCOUTIRE perinds
boginning on or afier January 1, 2023, Changes require 8 judgment {given applleable tax lawr) whether
sucty deductions erc airbuiable for lax purposes o the recogzized lebility (and intorest expenses] ar
related asget compuoent {and inlerest expense) where payments made on a linbility are tax, deductible,
clarifies that it iz an isgue, This judgment iz importane it determining whether iliers iz ity temporery
difftrenee i initial recagnition of he assed and Bebility. Changas apply to transactions that occut at or
after the beginning of the earliest perind presentod cumparstively. In addition, 1 the begoning of (be
earliest comparative period peasetted, deferred tax aaset (provided thers is sufficiant taxable income)
snd deferred tax bakihty are recognized For all deductible and taxable kanporary differences related 1o
legues and decommissioning, restoration and similar lsbilities. The effects of the suid chenge on the
Fuaneial positon and perfonmases of Lhe Group are being evaluarsd,
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(Convenlcock franalatlen of Cotsellduted Pimaneln| Sotemenis nriginglly ivued in Terkioh)

GIUERFE. FABRIKALARI TTRE ANONIM SIRKFTT
MNotes ta 1he Consalidated Finpacial Statements ag of December 31, 2021
(Amounte exprevsed in Turkiyh Lirg (“TL™} unless otherwise ndicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASLS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS {Cont'd}

2.3  Prociples of Conaclidstion

a) Thewwonsolidated finencial staterscnts for the pedod ended December 311, 2021, have bes prepare!
m accorlance with principles stated on consolidatod financial salements for the wvear cnded
Deeernber 31, 2020 and inelude the financial stotements of Gabretag and those of subsidiaries.

b) Asaof Decernher, 2021, thepe have been nu changey in voung rights or proportion of effective micrest
vn subsidiaries that arg zulyject to consolidation with respect 1o the information stated m the
consolidated Mnancial staternents foc the year cnded Decernber 31, 2020,

¢) The staternend of financial pozition and staement of comprehensive ineome of the fubseidiones are
consolidated on @ Line-by-line basis and the carrying value of e investment held by the Cormpacy
13 eliminated ageinst the eelated eyuily. lotercompeny transactions amd balances betwesn the
Lompany #rsd ita subsidiaries are climinated on consolidation. The cost af and the dividends arfsing
from, shares held by the Company in ils subaidiarics ace clinainsted frvm squity and atatoment of
cotmprahenaive ineome for che year, respectivaly

d) Thenon-controlling sharcholders” stare of the net axsets and rerults for the perod for the subsidiaries
are classified separaiely m the consalidated seatemets of Moonsdal position and stateneats of
comprehengive ineene 85 noen-sontralling mberest

¢} The Company's signilicant interest in affiliates is zcenunied for with equity methed. Affilizes
ecoutited by cquiy method are prestaled in consalidated satemcnt of financial position with
additions ar dedustions of changes on share of the Growp on act assels of the aifiliate awd wilh
dexduction of prowvisions for the decline in the value, The comprehensive invome statement presents
sharcs of finawiel nesults of tha Group’s affiliaces. The changes of the amount, not reflected on
incame ar less of the affiliale, vn the equity of the affiliate cin megquisite an adjusoment om e ot
ook value of the affilietc in proporion of the Groun®s share. The share of the Group fram these
changes is diree(ly aceounted under the Group's equity,

f) Financial assct beeld [or sale in which the 1otal voting rghts of the CGiroup do not have 4 mutenal
It o are nat material 0 the congolidaled Bnancaal stalcments aml whose fair values cargo be
reliably determuned, or not quotod in organized matkets, are measured in the consolidated Araneis)
statements al ool less impotrment if any,

lmpacts f Covid = 19 Peodemic

Cavid - 19 puthreaks influsmes spreading in the world and Toreey, Cevid- |2 was declared as s pandetnic
by World Health Organization (WHO) in March 2020, and the resures wken agaiost (he pundemic,
exprsuce lo Lhe pandernie in all comtrics has led o dismptions in alimost 2l countries and haa adversaly
affected the economic eonditions bath globally and Locally.

Bassd an the evaluation made by the Group Management the eoonomic offeses of this pandemis liave
bztry evalunled as not having a significunt adverse effect on the Group = of the report date,

(15)



tonvenfemst tratition of Coosclidmied Fingneinl Stacemenin orlglnally ivvued lo Turkich)

C:(IRRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETI
Notes to the Consolidated Financlsl Stateromis 83 of December 31, 201
{Amonots expressed in Turkdah Livs (~TL") unlcyy otherwise Indleaied.)

NOTE @ - BASIS OF TUE PRESENTATHIN OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS {Cunt'd)

24 Summary of Signiflcant Accounting Palicies
2.4.1 Revenue

The Giroup has staned to use the Gve-step madel helow ju reeomizing revennes in accordance with
IFRS 15 *Reverue from Cenlracls wilh Custamers”, which is applicable as of January 1, 2016

Tdcitificalion ol cuslomer contracts
[deatificarion nf performance ghlipation:
Delemmipalion of rapsaction ptice n the comiract
Aliecation of pnoe to performanes obligalions

® Reommition of revenug

According to this mnde!, firstly, the comrunilted gools or services are evaluared n eseh conraet made
with the custormers and cach commitment 1mado Lo transfer the said goods or services is defermined 855
separats performance obligation. Aflerwards, it iz determiingd whether pocformance obiigations will be
fulfilled ower time or et 8 certain time, If the Group tansfers control of a good or service over time and
therefore fulfills fis petfocmiance abligations mgarding the related sales owver fithe, it measures the
progress fawards the fullilhment of such performance ablipations and tecopnrzes the revenue in the
comsolidated financial statermnenta aver time, Revenwss related to perfomancs oblipanons, which are (ke
transfer of goods or services, are recognized when (he control of goads o7 gervices puswed 1o e
CUSOLHETs,

" & ®

T Group takes into account the following conditions evaloating the leansier of control of the poods ot
services to the customer:

i) Right of the Group to eollear refed to goods or services,

b} Crencrship of Uie pood or services of the custoner,

&) Tranafer of posacasion of gouds or services,

d] Sighificanl ask anring fom e ownership of the cosiomer of goods or services
and the owmership of the retumes and

g} Avceplation of the gobds of 28rvics by th costomer,

1.4.2 Dividénd and ioterest income

The interest inconls is realized at the related pericd at mte of the cffective interest reducing the assumed
cish inpud gained from e related financizl asser with the romaining principal &monnt aver ite cxpeoted
life 1o the recorded value of the asser. Dividends from tha share investments e reconded when the
shareholders got right tor receive the dividensd.

2.4.3 Lease income

The renta] incotne from the real estate is accounted in acoordanca with liesr method during the related
leasing comtract is it elfecl.

2.4.4 I.enses — TEHS 16 (2 a Josgee)
Al inception ol a contraet, (he Group assesses whether the comract iy, or contains,  leass. & combrast is,

OF COMtRinG, & lease if the contragt cobveys the nght to control the wge of un identified asset for o period
af hme m exchange for socsideration,

(16)



{Codvenlency trapsistion of Commlideted Floanctal Stalements oefpionlly foued {m Turkish)

GRRE FABRIKALARI TOURK ANONIM SinRKETE
Mofea to the Cansalidated Financlal Statenizuls an of December 31, 2021
(Amounts expreased in “Turkish Lira (*TL") unless otherwise inlicated.)

MOTE 2 - DRASIE OF THE FPRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont*d)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounlivg Folldes (Cont*d)
4.4 Leases — TFRS L6 (a5 a leasee)

At inception of & gontesc], the Griup asseuyes whether the enntract is, or gomtaing, o lease. A contrect 11,
o conkains, & Jeass if the gontract couveys IBe rght w sonlol the use of an identified fsset for & period
of time in exchatge for eeasideration.

To asaess whether n contmet cocveys the nght ta contol the vse of an jdenrified asset The Girpup 255053
whether:

¢ The vontmuwt includes an ideniificd agset (coniracl inchwles o definicien of 8 specified asset
cxplicitly or implicicly},

* A gapacily porticn of an sasst is physically distukd or cepresents substantielly sll of the capaciny
of an asset (if the supplier has a substantive tight (0 subadnye the asset and obtgin economic
tremefits frum wie af the asset, then the azset is nod at ideonifed asse,

¢ {iraup has the fgli to obiain substardially 811 of the seonamic denefits from use of the tdend fed
pE3ed,

® Thez Growp has the dght e divest the use of an identified sssed. Group has te dehe o dicest the
uze of the asset Lhraugbout the peniod of usc only iF either
&} The Giroup has (1 right 10 dieent how and Bar what purpose the assat s used tooughout the
periosd ol use oc
by Belevant decisions uboul how and for what purpose the miced is used are predeterminad-

1. Geoup has the dphe 10 operate the 2zset {or to direct others Lo operete the aaset in & manner
ihat it deternunes) lhroughout the perind of use, without the supplier having the right to
change thoae nperating ishuections, o

i Greup designed the asser (or specefic aspects of (he asset) in o wey that prodetormines
how and for what purpose the assel will be used thronghont the period of use.

Tt Girmp cecognizes a ripht-ofense asset and a lease lishilicr ac the gommmencentent date of the lease
following the considetuion of the sbeve-mentioned faclors.

Right af uxe

At lhe commencemeant dase, the Growp measons the opht-nf-use asget ar cogl. The cost of the right-ni-
UG asect cotnprises:

o} the ameund of the injtial measurernent of the lease hability,
b} any lease payments made at or before che commencernent date, Jess any lease incenlives
regeived,
&} any indtial dicset coats inewred by the Groop, and
d} an estimale of coars to be incurred by the Growp in disiantling and rerooving the underlying
556l resluring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset w the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the leass (unless nse costs are incurred to produce inveotenes).

When applying the cost model, the Group measures the dghl-ofuse sssed at oos;

i) lews uny wecunulated depreciation and any aceyrylated impainment Insses: and
h} adjusied for any remeasurcment of the leass liability.
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(LM yedbence tromsintlon of Consd|dsted Flwanclal Swiements orfgloelly Jamued in Torkhb]

GUBRE FABRIKATARI TTRE ANONIM SIRKETL
~ptes to the Consclldated Financial Statements an of December 31, 2011
{Amomms expressed in Turddsh Lira (“1'L"7) unless otherwise Indlcaied.)

NOTE Z - BASIS OF THE PHESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL
STATEMENTS {Cant*d)

I.4 Nummary of Signiflcan Ac¢countioy Folicies (Cont'd)
244 Leasey — T'FRS 16 (as 2 Teniee)
Right of nae (Cont’d)

The Group applies the depreciation requitements in TAS 18 Property, Plant and Equiptienr Standard o
depresiating the righl-o[-use usset, firoup applics TAS 36 Impeitment of Asssts Standard to defermine
whether the night-pf-usc assct is impaired and o account for any impainnent Loes dentt Ged.

Lizse payments that are inchaded i Lhes ceasurement of the Qiroup's leage obligation and which have
oot been vealized of the actual date of the lease ane 45 Jollows:

4) Linesl puymenis, lesn any leasa ingerwives recsivable,

b} variable lease paymenits thut depend an an index or 4 rate, initielly measured using the index or rare
#% at (e commencenoent date,

¢) payments of penallies for tenmanaking the Lease, if the lease (orm reflects the leses erervising an
uplion L temminate tha lgase,

Adter the offective date of (he lease, the Group measunca the Jease obligation as fol lows:

a) increasing the carrying umount to refect incarest o the lease Lliahiljty,

b) reducing the carmying aniounl 1o reflect the leass payments nade, amd

¢) remeasurity the carrying smount 1o tellect any reassssament or lease modifGeations. The {irougr
reeognizes the amonnt of the remeasurement of the lease Bability as an adjusment to the rizht-of-
LLSC Assel.

Fraoiond exgredicnts

Short-lenm [ease apresments with 2 lease tenn of 12 months or less end comiracts for informatiog
techmalogy cquipment leases {predominantly printcrs, laplops, mobile telephones, ete.) designated by
the Group as low value have been evalunted witkin the scope of the exemption cesagmized by TFRS L6
Leases Srandard, The paymenis related to the eontracts continued 10 be recognized 33 expense in the
period in which they are incurred,

24.5 Toventories

Inventories arc calculated with the lower one of the g or 18 malizable value. Net reglizable walicis
caleulated by deducting the gompletion cost und assumed costs for sale From the saeumed gale price
fixed under peormal coranercial condiliona. Wlhen Uie nel realizahle value of inventeries fulle below ite
gost, the mventones value (s reduced to net realizahle value and reflected to the inorme staleren me um
expense onl The year when the vahue decrcase happened. IF the conditions causing the inventories 1o
récduce Lo the et reglizable value are no mare effective or il the ol realizrhle value inccease due @
changing economic condijons; (he provisien for dearcase in valuwe of the siocks is caneclled. The
vancelled smaunt is Jinited with 1he earlier detemmined amoune of docrease in value of the inventarics,
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[Coovenleoce rundatiom of onsohidated Financial Siptements ariginalty byyed In Turldsh)

GLEEE FAPRIKALARI TURK ANCNiM RiRKETE
Molrs 1o the Comyolidated Financinl Scatements as of Deermber 31, 2021
{Ambunly expreszad in Turkish Lica (“TL*} unless otherwize indisied.)

NOTE I - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMEMNTS {Cont*d}

1.4 sommary of Significant Acovuoliog Policles (Cant*d)
243 Inventorles (Cont*d)

The phase cost system is used 3z the cost system. First in fivst our tmethod is epplied for rawe materials,
finished goods and teade poods, where menthly moving average cost methnd is fot spore pans n
Invanfaries.

4.4 Investment pooperiics

The (revestrnent properlics sre presended for reqtal incone ordand value growth gain, snd they are initilly
vakuez] with their main cest a5 well as operatinnal cost. Following the ini*ial accounting, the invertment
properties are svaluatgd with the fair values reflecting morke realities as at 11 balanes shost date. Gains
 lozses oo the far value amendments are included in the incarme statement duning the perjod whan
they cecurred,

The real estate weed by the vwmer kas been considered as amortized wod they become investment
propécties shown on the basia of fair value, Sinee then, no amortization kas beeh caleawlated.

2.4.7 Property, plamt and equipment

Landen propeiticd and buildings that wre beld in wae for the poepose of delivednye pradogt fsepvice or for
adtrinislralive purposen arg oxpressod with their revalueted value. Re-evgluated value is delermined
by subtractng accwrnolated depresiatiomn and accricd depredation thal cocur within 1he pext pericd [rem
fair value meamared &1 the re-evaluation date. The re-cvaluations are dune vn o regular hesis in such &
way That il will nat differ from book value of fair value thal iz to ke detemmined a1 the re-evaluation date.

Increse resulting from the re-evaluation of the eforementioned landed properties end buildings is
recorded 1o re-evuluation fund in equity, If there is & deprocalion that has been showed prevdously in
INCOmmE staternent Sonesming (he rangible-fxed ssseta, incremont value resulling Gom the re—evaluarion
15 recorded 1o imeome statement gt the rate of said depreciation. Thecrease in book value resulling Gom
the re-evaluation of mettioned landed praoperty and building is recorded to the income staternenl in cose
the assut exceeds its halance in resevaluation fund relating its previows re-evalustion. Deprociacion ot
te-cvalualed building is included in ineome stateanent. When the te-cvaliaced real esiate [ sold or upon
iR Tetirerncet, remaining balance in re-evaloation fund is 1eans ferred to profits which are net disieibuted
directly Unless the ased is excleded from (he balance shect, it shall oot be transfermed from re-cvaluation
fund Lo profits which are not dismibaed dircetly.

Fxcept the lands end vngoing investmante, cosl value or valued amounts of tangible-fixed asscts ane
subject to deprecarion by using the straight-line method according 1o their expected usefil life, Expected
useful life, rexiduat velus pnd depeeciation method are reviewesd every yesr for possible effects of
changes in estimatiots and 17 there 1 a change in catimativns, they are accownted in advance. Proceeds
fnd legses resulting from disposal o retirement of tangible-fined assols ore delermined a5 8 difference
betargety sale reverue and book value of the nsser and included in consolidated ineome staternent,
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(Comveniemcs iranelation of Casselldated Flnanelel Statemenis origimully imued 1n Torklsh)

GUDBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM STRKET]
Sotes 1o the Conyolidated Financlal $tatements as of December 31, 2021
GAmennts expressed in Turkdsh Lirs (“TL") unkess oiberwise ingdicated )

NOTE @ - HaSIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATET FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont'd

24 Suvmmary of Significani Accounting Policies (Coeni*d)
247 Property, plant and squipment (Cont’d)

Tangible-fved assets are amortized considering below-mentioned coonmric lives by wsing the ordinary
depreciaticn method and on basia of prorete depreciation,

Buildings, land improvericnis 1{-50 Years

Machines, facililies and equipment 340} Yeurn

Vehiclea 10 Years

Fumiture and fixtures 3-15 Years

Leaschold inprovements 5 Yeary
2.4.8 Intangible asacty

intangible-fixed asset is sccouned i cese expected futura econotue benefits are possible for the
business and the cose of the ass=t can be mcastred celiably.

Ietangible assels are secounied with their eost value ar the initial recognition. The cost of a separelely
acquired intangible 45561 is caloulated by dedvcting 8l discounty from the purchase price and including
impott taxes and non-refundable purchuse taxes as well a3 all other kind of costs linked to the ass=t i
crdet b operatictaliee it

fn the: clrecat peried, the intangible assets are redeemed with straipht line methed accorditg: to their
eeanomic 1ife based on e wasl valoe, The amount bolad a1 the Bnancial siatement 15 tedormed ic 5
VCArS,

2.4.9 Goodwill

In the corsalidated Gnanciul statements, goodsil] shuwing the differance between the fair value of the
Group’s net mssete acquired and the purchase price which ia accounted within the fame of TFRS 3
Business Combinations Slundard, is esied ot the end of cach year to determine whethor there is
nparmead. and Bn inpairag provision is aet aside,

Tritle impairment test, goadwill is allocated ta cach cash genwrating unit ¢fthe Greup. o arder wa chek
whether there is bnpairment in cash-penerating umts where goodwill bas been ellocated, it is applied
more frequently each year or in cuscs whers there is an bulication of impairment.

[n cases where the recoversble amount of the cash frenerating unit is lowsr than the book value, the
empairaent is firsd used to reduce: e bouk value of the gocdwill allocated (o (he ¢ash EcucTating Wit
and then b reduce the book valus of other assets within ita rolative tates. Provision for (e decresze in
the value reserved for gondwill cannet be canceled in the following penods Profits and losses arisig
frvmt 1he sale of an cnterprise include the recorded value of the goodwill on the argarization sold.
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fConvenles s iramclation of Consdiinicd Financlal Stiemend orfglonDy lsued in Ty rideh)

GIRRE FABRIKALARI TTRX ANoNIM SIRKETE
Notes to the Consolidated Finaveial Statements 23 of December 31, 2021
{Arnomnts expressed in Turkizh Lira (“TL."j unley ctherwise indicated )

NOTE I -~ BASIS OF THE FRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMEMNTS {(Comt 3}

2.4 Summary of Signlficani Accvunting Policies (Coni*d)
2.4.10 lmprirmeni of sesets

Agsnts Wil indefimite livey, such as goodwill, Are ol subpec W amorization. An impairmoent reat is
performed annually for (hese assels. For thetangible and intaigible sssets tet are mibjest (o depreaiation
and ameorization, impeirment tegt shall be petfonmed i there i 5 situation o events io which il is not
peskible in recover the boak valus.

An impainment loss is recognized iCthe camying ammmt of the azzet cxeaeds i3 tevenerable spueomt.
The recoverable ameont is the higher of an ssset's ke value less costs ta sell or value i use. For the
purposes of amessing impaitmient, the assets aré grouped at the Jowest level of separately identifiatle
cash flows [cash-peneraling units). Mop-fioancial assets thal are mibjest to jinpainmetr, sxcept for
gucilwill and soonomic |ife are revigwed for possible reversal of the impairmoent ot cach repottitg dote.

1411 lscontinued operatlons, assct grovps beld for sale and relaiced lakdlites

Descontinued operation refers to the gaographic part of the main line of business f activities planned 1o
b disposed of ar undertaiken for sale within the framework of a coonbmared plan. The details of the
profh or loss before tax and the profit ot Joss of the discontinued operations thal are reflected in the
consoliduled financial statements dunng the disposal of the aseels or arsst proups thal compdse the
diszantinued opeérations are explained in the disclosures. In addition, (e el cash fows of the
hiscantinned aperations associated with the operaling, vestient and financing activities ere specificd
in the relevanl diseloaures,

Flred assct groups are classified as fixed assct groups beld [or sale where they ate to he recovered
ihraugh the sale irunsaction, not by using them. Liabilities directly 1sociated with theso aseets im
grauped sitniletly. Fired assets or assct growps that meet 1he classification criteria for sales parpozes are
moasured by the lower of fhe carrying valus and the Jower the carmying valus hv dedysting {he sules
coets from thair fait value,

L.4.17 Borrowinge custs
Fomowing cosla directly attmbutable (o (he scquisition, construction or prodoction of &n #sse that

necessarnly takes 3 substantial period of time o get wady for itz intended use or sale are capitalized as
pacl of Lhe cost of the respective ussets. All other horowing coets are expensed it the period they oo,
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(Cotivenbnes tramalation of Comsnlidaled Financhl Staletieats oclgfunlly lsroed 1y Turk)

GUBRE FABRIK AL ARI TITRK ANONIM SIRKETL
Nntes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements ar of December 31, 2021
{Amounts expreved In Torkish Lira (4T1."7 unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF THE PHESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS [Cont*d)

2.4 Snmomtary of Significant Accounting Policier ({Conk’d)

2.4.17 Finaneinl instrumenis

A finacial assel or a financial liability is recognized in the statement of financial position only when it
is & party i the conteact ol the financial instrument. Normal purchases or sules of financiat infruments
are recojmized in the financial statements or exchudled fom the Gnancial atatenyetis by wsing one of the
accounling methods on the transaction dale or delivery date, The purchose and asle of secoritics ace
recuynized on the delivery date, The initial tecopminon and classification of Atancial instruments
depetwds on e comtractusl terms and the relevant business model. A Gnuncial aseet or financial Labiliny
other than TVRE 15 Custormer Contracts are measured af fair valuc when fisl reeoynized in financial
glatemyenrs. Transaction comts dircetly attributable to the socouisition or the issuaoce of Anancial assets
and liahilities, excepr for the fair value chapges recognized in profil or loss, are also edded o the Fuir
value or deducted foom the fair value, The finangal asacts and liabilities of the Group under TFRS 9 are
a9 tollows:

Finoucix! Assars

Firtasrcisl ivvestmemis, cxcept Anancial assels classified at fair value through profil or loss and financial
BaActA imitial ly recogadeed al fair value, are reengnized at fair value et of ditect]y stribatable transaerion
o03es, [nvestments are rocognized sl derenognized an e tede dete where the purchase or sale of an
mvestrent iz under o conlmct whose tenme require delivery of the investment within the imefume
established by the matket concerned. Financial assets are classified imto the following apecified
calggones: “Mnancial assets at Fir valve throuph prolit ec loss ("FYTPL™", “financial assets measured
at amerized 08", and “Onancial assers &t i value throogh other comprebensive ocome
{“F¥TOCT)".

Financial assets ar fadr vadue througk profit or loss

Fiaticial assets sl [air value through profit or loss ere Bnancig) asscts held for treding. A financiel asse
i classified in diis calegory if scquired principally for the purpose of selling in the sheet-term,
Derivatives are alan catcgarized as fGnancial assets at FYTPL unless they are desigmated for hedging
Purposes.

Flaanof asiely measrred or amorttaed post

Financial assets measired at avacttized cosl ans those Anancial assets that ane held within the framewor
of 3 siness model aimed al collecting contractual vash Aows pver the 1ile of (he assel and wrhich result
i cazh flowa the inelude principal and mterest on toe principal amoun autstending at Specifc dares.
Financial assels imeusared at amortized sost with the inida) reogmition at fair value includ:ng tresgaction
vansts are subjeet 1o valuation with their discountad cost value by using the eifective intersst e methnd,
net ¢f any provisicn for impairnest, Inleresl income feem fipancial assets meanred 21 amortized cost
are recogrized in the itworne stafemeadt, a3 an iflecest income.
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{Convenlence irnndnllon of Consolldated Fisaoclal Satements orignnity |mued in Turkich)

G ERE FABRIKALART TORYK ANCKVIM SIRKETT
Mutes to dhe Congolidated Flnancial Siatementy as of December 31, 2021
iAmounts expresaed i Turkisa Lirs (*11.7) uniess otherwize indicated. )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATEDF FINANCLAL
BTATEMENTS {Cont*d)

2.4 Summary of Slpnificant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

24.15 Finanddal ingtrumenls (Cant*d)

Financiof assars af fair vadoe theough ather enmprehensive inconee

Fuaneinl azscts at fair value throwgh odher comprebensive incoime are financis] sasets thar are held ynder
A bsiness mode] thet eims bath to collect contractwl cash Bowe and Lo scll financial assels, and financial
essels with conractial tenns that lead to cash fows that are solely peyments of principal and interest
un the principle amount potatanding @i specifc dates.

Finapciel assets at fair value through okher comprehensive income are inilially recogiized st their fair
value including, their transection costs on the financial stalememy. However, if the fair value carowt be
detetinied reliably, for thase with 2 fixed motunty, the discount eate is caloulated wsiog the internal rate
af return methed for those who da not have a fixed maturity, they ape valued using fuir value pricing
medels ar discounted cash fow techniques. Unreslized pains or losses adsing from the chanpes in the
fair value of financial assels at fair value through profit and 1oss 6 rocoghiced in other comprehensive
incnme are shown below Financial Asscts Value Iocrease f Decrease Fund. In e event that the @i
valug differemees of fnancial assels thal are eflected in ather comprehenzive income gre climinated, the
value in the euily secounts es a result of the fir value upplication is reflected 1o the pencd profitlogs,

Recognition and derecopntflon of fnancial asvets

The Gring reflects the financial azsets or lishilities 1o its balanee theet when it beeomes a party ta the
relevanr financiel instrament conwacts, The Group deceeognizes an assed; all or pert of i, when it losss
tts pontros over 1s contrectual righrs, The Group derecognizes a Gnancial Liability coly if the ohligation
Jefined in the contract is eliminated ) cancelled or cxpirel,

Imiperirmend of fingrclal aesets S axpected crediy Jogs

Al each reporting period, each fnancial asset™s credic risk withm the scope of inpaitment is aesessed
Eronil thie dule which it ia first recognieed in the Ainencial sialements. Wilhin this assezsment, the change
of the: defalt risk of the financial asset is ko imoe consideration. The expected Toss provision estimate
is unbiazed, weighted according to probabilities, and ineludes informetion chat can e supported about
past evetils, cucrernl conditions, and forecosts for future soanentc coddilions.

The carrying ameunt of the finacial asset iz reduced by the mpaimment loss direclly Tor all finania)
asscts with the exceplion of made receivables where the carmying amount is reduced durough the use of
an allawance accoust, When o trade receivable is uncollecuble, it is wriiten off against the allowance
azeaunt, Subsequent meooverigs of amounts préndomshy writion off are credited againgl the allowancs
sooount. Thanges in the camming emoumt of the dllowance aeccunt ave récopmuzed in the statctton of
rrafic or loss. With the exception of equaty instruments at fair valus theougly other comprehensive
wncome, if, in A subsequent period, the anour of the impairment Joss decreases and the decrease can hi
relaled ohyectrvely ko an event cocwring afier the inpaicment was recognized, the previously resoprl ned
impairmant 105 ig réeversed through proft or loss to (e extent thal the carmying amount of the investment
a1 rhwe elate: the impainneat is noversed docs not exceed what the amortized cost wauld have been had the
irnpaiTracl Bt been recognizoed,

(13}



(Convealence tranpbtbon of Conadldated Fluaneinl Statemenis golplonly el in Torklsh]

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONKIM SIRKETI
Nodes to the Consglidated Financial Statenemts 18 of Desember 31, 2021
(Axiounts exprossed in Tockish Lira (“TL7) unlenn otherwise indieated.)

MOTE 2 - BASIE OF THE FPRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTY (Cont'd)

L4 Summary of Significant Accopnting Polcles (Cont*d)
2.4.13 Financial instruments {Coat'd)

Impgirmeny of finarcial gstels Mexpected credit bnse

In respect of cquity seeusities, any incresss In equity instruments at fair ealue through other
comprelienaive ineame, subasquent to an impairment 10ss is recopnized directly in equiry,

Derivative financiof assery

The Group helds derivative financial nstruments Lo hedge its fopeign currency sk and classifies it ag
Lioaowial instrument at faic value throwgh profit or loss. Dhaivalive instrumenis are indlially recognized
at their acguisition costs which reflect theie fair value at the date of contrect and are valued at their foir
value in the following periods, A fnuncial instrument is classified in this group it is weguired for zle
o repurehase at a later date, 1derivative financial insluments are recopnized 13 agsels whemn tbe fuir
value i5 pogitive aod as hahilifies when the fair valog is negative.

The derivative fnanclal instnmments at Fair value through profit or losa of the Ciroup consist of forward
foreign ourency pwchese / sale cordracts. Subsequent to inidal recopnition, derdvanve financial
Usthamells an: messured at Fair valoc and are reflected to profit or lose at the time of chanpes in Fr
valug,

Fingrcinl assers ovailaie for sale

Cruded equity invesunents and soime deb secunbies held by the Ciroup thar are traded in an ective market
arc <laesitied ax avelable-for-sale Grancial assets and are easured et fair value. The Group hes eymiy
instrurnents that aee ook teaded [b an setive market but are classiticd 85 available-for-sale fnencial agacts
A are stated al vost since thedr fair value canned be meaguored mhably.

Trods Aecelvadies

Trade receivahles that ore created az a ceault of previding products or séndces o the buyer are recozmized
al aunwrtized cost al the origing] invoice atnount by using ihe offertive interest meathod Shart-emmn
receivalles witlh o stated inberest rate are egsired at the orgioal invoics amount ynless the offect of
the: eriginal effective intereat cale 15 similicant.

For the calculatinn f impairment of trade recervahbles that are meastred ol amorized eosd atd has o
traprrtacd Fnaneial component (3 imatkeity with less than ppe year), “Simplified approach™ iz nasd. In
cascs where e Irade receivables are no¢ impaited due to eenuin ressons (excepl for the realized
impairment losses], the rrevisions [or Josses related (o teade receivables are measwred by an umount
equa] to the “'lifetitne sxpected credit [o3g™

Afler recogniadng allowance receivables, if the enlire amount or a pomion of the entrg amoust 09
callected, the amount deducted rom the provision for reseivables and the amaunt is recognized in ather
operating ifsome,
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(Coovepknes tranalathon of Condalidated Financlal Stalemeats orkgloaly meued fn Turkkh)

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRICETE
Noteg (o the Consalidated Financial Statenrents ax of December 31, 2021
pAmaunty expressed in Torldeb Lira {*TL™) unless otherwiye fndicated.)

NOTE 2 - BARIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTY (Cont'd)

24 ¥ummipry of Sipalllcant Acconniing Policies (Cont’d)
2.4.13 Flonocizl instruments {Contd)

Cash ared cash squivadents

Cash und gagh equivalent values are the shor-tem investments made up of cash, dunand depasits and
et short-term nvestmerts with ofiginal matunitics of 3 metths ar lekas, ehigible to be immedistely
cinverted into cash without being subjected Lo the nsk of steep value changes and have high Liquidity.

Finaneda! Liabilities

A finoocial lisbality i= measured sl Fair value ar initial recogmition. Durdng initial eccogmition of finoneial
liahlitics chat are not eccounted for ar faic valus teough profit of Joss, aneachon costs direatly
attributable to the tnarcial lisbility are zdded to the Fair velue. Finaneial Jiabilities are subsequently
measured ar amortized 5ost Using the elfective interest method plos the interest sxpenzge reoosmized on
an effective yield basis,

1.4.14 Impact of eachange ratoc

Financial statements of sach caterpeise of Group are preseired with carreney unit (funetional CUITEnTyY
urit) which iz valid for basic sconcmic environtiend Lhad they aperste Finswsial simation end aperation
TE5ILLEE Of emch enterprise are indicaied as L which iz valid cuwrrency umnit for compaty and presentaticn
unii for congolidated Anancial statements,

Forcign cutrency unithased Fansactions (other curmencies than TL) made during the preparation of
financial stetement of cach enterprise are reconled based on fweipn tmchanue rates thal are applcuble
oty (ke dute of ransaction. The menetary asgers and labilities indexed (o forcign currenay used in balance
sheet are couvered Lo Turkish Firg by nzing forergn sxchange bid stes valid gn balanes shed date,

Those won-monetacy tems which ane lollowed wilh their fur value and recorded in foreigm curmency
unit arc eonverted (o TL based on gachange mies on the date fair values are determined Marscnmetany
[tems in fureign cvrzeney ualt of whick dake is caleulated over carl ane not subjested b canvorsion again.

Exchange rate diffetences, except for the conditions hsted below, are pecounted as profit or loss i the
peLiod which Lhey come ino ¢xistence:

* Hxchanpe rate dilferences which sve bandled with as adjusiment atem to ioteresl coss on
payobles that are gsaociabed with assois consomcred in order to vse in future and indicated in
forcign surrency unit and which ave included 1 costs of such wssets,

o Exchinge mic diffcrences consed by transactions made in order to podvide foancial protection
BEAINSL TisX 4 ansing from {oreign curreney unit (aesmunting palicies related to providing financiaj
prolection against risks are sxpluined below),

*  Fxchange rate dilferences arising fromn monetary payables and receivables which compose # el
of nel investment in foreipn aperation, are accuwted in conversion teterve, e associated with
profit and loss in net invesimend sale and derdve from foreign operation of which there i no
payinent intention o possib:licy,
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GLBRE FABRIKALART TURK ANONIM SIRKETL
Nodca ta the Consalidaied Financial Statements a3 of December 31, 2021
{Amownts expressad in Turkish Lirg {“TL") unless otherwite indleated,)

NOTE I - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL
STATEMENTS [Cant™d)

1.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles {Coni*d)
2A.14 [mpect of exchange rates (Cont*d)

Aszgete and liahilitics of Group i fa foreign operations ere cxpressed in consclidated financial
statennents in TL by using exchange rates valid of the date of balunee shoe. Income and expense items
arg eofvenied by Nsing averape exchange cates doring the period, 3o case thal oo substantial Faehzation
bhus been oooured on foreign excliange mies during the pecind in which cxchange mues valid on the date
of mansaction shinild be used {in case a substantial flucmation eomrs, exchange tates on fransaciion dals
are used). Fxchange rate difference which has ooowrred is classified as equity and transferred 1o Geoup's
cenversivn fund. Comversion differences it question are recorded on consolidated income statement m
tbe period when foceign vpemations are sold out.

Goodwall and fair value adjustments amdsing from forcign operation parchase are cansidersd as agscts
ahd lisbililies of foreim operation and converted by wsing pericd-end cxchange rate.

2.4.15 Farnings per share

Barmings ped stvire stated m comsolidaled ipcome ialemnent is caloulated by dividing net profiv by
weighted average number of share centificate which exists 1 narket during the year,

I Takey companiey merease their capitals by means of “non-paid-up shares™ which they disoribued
frem. their previows year prefit w their sharehalders. Such kind of “nun-paud-up shares™ distribution i
evaluated as expartod shares in caleulation of eamings per share. Acconling 1o this, weighrert average
mumiber of ahares weed in thiz ealenlation 19 Tound by taking inte account pest effects of share distributinn
In guestion

L.4.1% Subseqoent Events

Even though the events afler halange sheed dare lave come up after sny anmoaneement tade about protit
or any public antoubcement about cther aclected fnancial infsmailon, they cover all the swenls
seeured betweoen balance sheet date and dale of puthorization for bulunce sheet publication.

In cuse that the evenls requiring adjusiment have enme up #fet bolance sheet date, Group adjosts the
amacvunts 1meluded in finareial statenients il complionee with this new gibuation,

21417 Provislons, conditdonal aancts anc Mabllides

A provision ig reserved it consolidated Bnancial staternents, in cass thut theee is a curment lability adsing
teom past evenls, il ik possible to camy out the Lisbility and the amoust of Lishility in question e be
eslimated in & safc way.

The amaount reserved A3 provision is celoulated by estimating in {he salest way the expenze (0 be made
in grderte Il the labiity as of balanes shewl date by toking inte acoouns risks and (moertaintics ghont
liability.

Iy case thal provision i meagored by wsing estimuied cagh flow requiced for mesting curren limhility,
the brok valus of provision in quastion is squal 1o present value of relevant cosh flows.

Iti case that eithgr a part of while of econamic benefit requinad for paying the provision is expected to
be met by third parties, the amount (o be eollested 1 gocounted in case thal the callection of ralevan
amuunts ig almost carinit amd can be meamired in 4 safe way.
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GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM strocet
Maofes to the Consolidated Financia] Statements as of December 31, 2021
(Amounis exprested in Tourkinh Lira {“TL*") nnless o¢herwise indiexted.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS [Cont'd)

2.4 Smmmary of Sdgnificant Accountng Policies (Cont'd)
2.4.18 Tix ealculated on the hagis of the Croop’s carnings

Sinee Turkish tax lepislation does ned allow preparation of consolidated tax satemant of 4 porent
compatty with it= subediary, tax provisions are caloulaled repareccly based on each enterprise as it is
reflected on sttached consalidated financial seacements, Expense of incama 8% consists ol sum of current
tax and defemed 1ax expense,

Current bzt

Current year tax liabilily # caloulated over the patt of pénod income which is subjested ta tax. The
preft subfected to tax is dilfaranr diab the profit included in income statement sines it excludes the fterms
which is taxabls in clher years or is tax deduciible as well as those which are impossible ty 1ax o could
et be tax deductible, Currenr tax fisbility of Girowp hias bewu caloulated hy using a2 rale which hau
heeome legol as of the date of belance shedt or became legal at a considerable extend.

Delerred lax liability or aszet is found wut by caleulating lempotary differences between ihe arsounts of
asgets and ligbilities shown in finengial satenenl aod the amounts caken e copsideration in caleulation
of legal 1ax base by balance sheet method takdng snio aceount legalized tax raves of @x effects. While
deferred tax liabilitics are celoulated for all of taxeble wmporary differences, deferrod tax assers
consisting of deductible lemporury differences are caleulaed provided that benefiting from the
dubfcrensees 1 queslion is highly likely by muking profit subjected to lax in furwce. The mentioned assets
and lighilitics are not accounied in case that ey erise from inclusion of tenporary &ifersnee, poaddwil]
telated Io mangaction not afecting eommercial o financial profitloss or ather assels amd Hubilitieg in
the finansial statement for the G gme (exespt for business colerprise terper}.

Dieferred tax lishilities are ealenlatod (or all of Laxahle temporary differences which are asmsoaaled with
invegtments n subsidiaties and affiliates and shares in joint venares except for the conditipns yader
which Group iz eble to eontrol remaval of emperary differences and under whicl poszibility of remanval
of these differences in near future is low Deferred tax assrts arising from tavable temporary differsnces
which are associated with such kind of investnients and shares are celewlated provided that benefiting
trom the diflerences in question is highly likely by making sufficient profit subjectad to 2% in oear fobure
and remeoval of relevant differences in fittuee ic peesible

Recorded value of defared tax asset is reviewed as of each bolanes aheet date, Recorded value of
deferred tax eardt i3 reduced al extend 0 which if is iinpessible t nhtain finaneial profit which will
tmable 10 benefit from o parlially or wholly,

Deferred tax assels and liahiliias ave caluulsted over 18x rate which has boome legal or bocome el
a* & conriderable exlend (lax regulstions) 85 of the date of halance sheot and which i expacied Lo be
valid in the perind during which sssets will realize or ligbilities ill be fulfilled, During the ealoulation
af deferred tax assels and hablitics, tax resulis of methods aticipated for Croup essers” regaining their
book value ar fulfilling its Liakifines g of balaees shect date are taken inte cunsiderating,
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GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETI
Notes 10 the Consolidated Financial Stalements as af December 31, 2021
{Ameunts éapressod in Turkdsh Liva (“TL' unkss otherwise indientord, )

NOTE 2 - BASIE OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

24 Surmmiacy of Nignificent Accormting Policles (Cont*d)
Z.4,18 Tax calcalated on 1he bxsis of the Giroop's earnings (Cont’d)

Defared lax ussels und ligheles are deducied in case that there 6 a logal right related 10 deducting
CLITent cax Agseds and cirvent tax fiubilitien or azrete and lighilities it question are assnciabed with ineotme
tax vollected by the same taxation audwrity or Group has the intencion to poy ic by way of clarifying 9
Crreyt 18X 42901 and babililies.

Currenl s exeepl for thoss which are associated with (he items accountead a5 receivable or puvable
diroctly in equicy funder these ciecurnstances defered tax relsted 1o relevant tems are accaunted dircetly
It eyuily] wr those whizh arises fom first recording of businezs cricrprise mergers as well as defered
tax of the peried are aceounted as income or expense In income stvement. Tax effect is faken mro
account during busincss enterprise mergers, caloulation of cost conloo] or determination of purchase-
cost excoedme part of share ebiained by purchaser at the fair valwe of idenlifable wssel, lishility and

contingsnl payables of purchased anbsidiary.
2,4.1% Beaefits for employees
SEVEraNOE pay

In avcorlance with provizions of current laws and collective labo: agreements i Turdoey, tormination
indeiiunity is enade in case af retivement or displicement. In compliance with TAS 19 Fmploves Benefils
Stenderd {“TAS 19") which hus been updated, such paytents in question are desecibed a= identified
vetiremenl benefit plans. In fast, Turkish and Irunian senionity indenanity syslemy sre similar, 1here are
not corg differences between them. Moreover, duzing Rewi's privatization, the right of sarly relirement
was granted to employees and (he ebligation ansing from such entitled dghts was eccounied for wilhiu
the seope of TAS 19 bw Hagj.

Terminatian indemmicy liability which was sccounted in balance sheet was caloulated according Lo ne
prescat value of esimated amaunt of liabdlity which was expected io arise in future due to relirement of
all employees and reflectad on fnencial staiemncies.

Severance incaniive pramiom

I accordunce with the prevailing collective labor agreemient, sepictity meentive premivm is paid 1o the
atafF within the scope of sgreement in the years when they complete certain setdority incomtive pecTicds,
The Labchty ealeplated for incenlive pramiom in questicn is reflected on cecords,

Facation Pay provisfon

The Uraup makes a provision for the wages corteaponding 1o the unused portion of veestion alfowaneesy
nf its employess in the provicus years.
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GIKRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM $iRKFTT
Notes ta the Congolidated Fluancial Staternceots ax of Irecember 31, 2021
pAamounic expressed i Turkish Lira (""I17) oniesz otherwsise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIATED FINANCIATL
STATEMENTS {Cuot'd}

244 Summry of Slyoificant Accoonfing Policles (Cont*d)
2 A Bitméement of cash Row

The cash Mlews pertaining tn the period are ¢lassiGed und ceported in 2 manner that wil] inelude the costs
of main activities, investmends and financing.

Cash fows engonating Grom mnain activilies indicate cash flow of Growp ansing from activities of
fertilizer and pettochemical products sale, Cash lows releled Lo invesanent operations indicate Group®y
cash flow used in and obtained (hrouph investment operations {(fxed investments and financial
ivestmeats). Cash flows relaed to finance operalions udicate reaourees of Group used in Anance
nperations and repainnent of these resaurnces,

Cash arkd cash equivalent values ars the short-term nvestuents mude up of cagh, demand deposics and
other ahart-{ermn investments with orginal maturicies of 3 1onths or less, eligble to be mmediazely
converted inta cash without hoang subjected o the sk of steep value changes and have high Gyuidiy.

2.4.21 Capftal apd dividends

Dpdinary shares are classificd a5 cquity capital, Dividends distributed on otdinary shares are recacded
by deducting from the accumulated profit in the period thae the dividend payment docision is reached

1.4.21 Crittcal accounting catimates and judzements

Ad thee process of prepanng of eensolidalel Mnanciul stetements pursuait to Turkish Financial Reporting
dtandards, The Group's cumagerment shauld make chtical ascomting eatimates #od judemoents that
determinis as dats of reporling period, umount of income and expenses end amount of probable
liahilitics and guarntess thal may be oconrred as date of balance sheet. Although these forecasts and
assumplians, i9 depesdan vn the groops' well knowledge then is associated curment event aml
ramgrctions, moy differ from actusl resulis. Forecasts are revicwed on 4 repulac basis, requined
adjuximents iz made and reflactad 1o peneds” income matemenr,

In the next fnaticral period, foreeasts and assumplions thal may risk of adjwsiment of azscts and
lLebilities’ registered values, ure sbawn as follows:

Ner realiceble vadus

Stock i3 valued a1 lower of cosl or net raalizalle value. Net realizable value is the estirated aglting price
tn the ardinary course of business, leus the conis of completion and selling expenscs.
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GUBRE FABRIKAL ARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETT
Motes fo the Comanlidated Financial Statements as af Decernber 31, 2021
{Amounls expressed o Turbdsh Tira (“TT.*} unless otherwise Indicated.)

NOTE @ - BASIE OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

14 Symmary of Slgnlficant Aveonmting Policies [(Cont™d}
Coodnill impairment

Uondwill iz tesied for impairment annually by the Groop, As of the balatce sheel date, goodwrill is
formed a¢ a mesult of the purchase of Razi and its subsidiary Arva sand Fazi is defined as the cash
penerating umt for the gowdwll inopaimment test. These value-in-use caleulabons inelude dizsounted
after-lax cash flow estinstes. Based on anowal buldgets spproved by group managernent, bn the value-
i-uge calewlations, the diseount rate is 1%, the growth rate s 4% (Cecenober 31, 20200 148%, digcount,
4% growth). The discount rats used is the post-Lax discount cate snd includes risks specific o Pazi's
activities Az of Devewnber 31, 2021, the Group has not detected aoy impuoment in the ameun of
goodwill 25 a rasult of (e impairment Lesly performed vsing ihe assumptions above.

Dreforred tox

The Group recogmizes deforred tax agdets and liabilitiss for lemporary timing differentees arising from
tne differences berwesn its tax base legal financial statements and its consolidared financial sthiements
prepared in accordance with TFRS3, The panially ur wholly recoverable amwouwt of deferred tax a=scts
bias been estimuted under currend eonditions, During The evaluaion, finure profit peojestions, losses in
muTent, periods, expiry dates ef unused losses and nther tax a8scts, and taa plunning strategies that can
b sed when neoeszary are teloen into congideration. In the light of the data obtained, if the [olure taxable
profic of the Group iz m sufleient to cover ali deferred (ax nseets, a provasian is masde for all and pert
ulthe deferred tax asset, [F fwfure operaling resulis exceed the Ciroup's custent expectations, it may he
NCCesdary to recopnize an unrecogrized defored tax assel.

Falr viedwe of properiies

The fair value of the Group's investment properties, land and buildinos ss of December 31, 2021 has
been delenmined aecording bo the valuetion carried oot by an independent valuation firm that is nol
relitesd o Lhe Grooap. TSKER Gayrimenkil Degerleme 4.5 is an independent vahiation fino, which is
amhcrized by the Turkish Capilal Markcts Board and Lhe Danking Regularion and Supervision Apeney,
has appropriate qualitications and expérience i valuation of inmovable prapertiss in the sAid pleccs.
Fair valug has been determined by the appropriate ane of the Market {Benchmark) Approach, Coat
Appmach and [ncome Approach methods, which are in accordatics with the Intemational Valoation
Staridards. [n Morket Approsch, ibe unir price is determinesd afier price adjustinel is marle within 1he
tramewark of critetia thol may affect the market value, takiog into accoent similar real estates thal huve
tecenlly been put on the macket and sold1ensed.

The sppraisal in the valuation dows not take (o sccount the tide deed encumbrances end i3 based oa
the sesurnplicn Lhat there is o lewswit rolatod to (e resl estate. The Cost Approach Methed ic based oo
the cost of rebuilding the existing struchire n today's condilions. The Income Approach Method, un the
®lser hand, 1= 2 toturn capitalizacion that caloulates with an appropriale return discount eate, inclyding
patentizl income solrtes, cash Dows, vacancy-renl losses, dedoctng operating oxpetites and including
remile revenue into the investie
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GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETL
Maoteq 1o fhe Consolidated Finnncial Statermenty ax of December 31, 2021
tAmount expresitd i Torkdsh Lica [MT1.7) wnbess otherwise fndieated.)

NOTE @ - DBASIS 0OF THE PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTYS (Cont'd)

13 Changes and Errors id Accountng Policies and Estiates (Cont*d)

Accounting policy changes resulting from the firs! application of u new standard, if any, are applied
relroapetively or prospeclively in accordance with the trangitional provisions. Clumstss that do oo
include any treneitional proviston, oplional signilicant changes in ageounting policy or acconmting
errers detected ave apprlied retroepectively and prior pericd Anancial stilaments are restated, Ohanges in
accounting egtimates are applied in the corent period it the change is casde, il it r=lat=s 1o gnly ooe
periukl, and beth in the period when the change is made und prospestively if it is relaied o fururs perods.

I accordunce with the Decision of the Beard of Diretorz dated Jaly 8, 2021 and numberad 1344, the
Company itdeaed ils Gxed assebs an the bagis of e revaluation miss and indiees determined by e
Mitistry of Finanee and revalued thern in its legal records in accomdancs with Law . 7336 related o
the Restructuriap of Certain Recervables and Making Amendmenrs in Certain | aws, Article Mo 1] aod
the Provisionsl article Mo, 31, added to the Tex Procodure Act, The revaluaion mode in sccordancs
willy the Tax Progedure Lew may differ from abveir fair values detenmned in apeardapes with TFRS
principles based on market approsch. The fair values of the land, buildings and underground snd sbeve-
ground properties owned by e Cirou have been determined 85 11, B14.396.000, which was appraised
in the valuation repart dated Celober 12, 2021 prepared by the CMT heensed valpation firnil, which
provides valuation services within the framework of the CMB legizlation, As af Degamber 71, 2021,
the wvaluaticn difference of TI. 153,120,578, TL 95287102, and TL 7.119.803 rotaling to TL
258327483 over (he appraised fuir values of the land and buildings, hay been refleeted in the financial
SlArernents.

2.6 Meryers

Asof Ieceiuber 31, 2021, there (s no merger {TDecemper 31, 2020 Mone)
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{Conrenicmer trandution of Caddanlidated Flupngal Statements originelly Bawed n Turkih)

CURRE FARRIKAL ARI TORK ANONIM SIRKETT

Wotes 1a the Consolidated Financlal Statements as of December 31, 2021
{Amonoils expresced in Turkleh Lirs (“TL"} unbess otherwise mdicated )

NOTE 3 - INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

The balance shegt and incomie staiement of the subsidiaries aceounied for using the equity method ate 18

follows:
Tarklm Bifki Korums San. ve Tle. A5,

Decemirer 31,2021 Deevenber 31,2020
Coroent asscts Iu7 131084 1481 494513
P On-cwurent assels 6750879 27,301,929
Short-tetiny Habilities (342,540, 8360 (117245 265)
Lang-termn liabilities (10,308 %70} (12.596.586)
Mel Assets 101.690.053 Y UEG 574

Tarkim Ritld Karuma San. ve Tic. A8,
Janpary 1 - January 1 -
Dreceluber A1, 202]  December 31, 2020

Met; sales 2519 471 124147310
Mel profit 2T 1234648 9.541.685

Met assets in the congglidated slalement of financiad position of associntes wxounted for using the equity
miethod are ag follows:

December 31,2021 Deeember 31,2020

Tarkith Bitki Kunma Sen. ve Tie, A3 40.676.621 23.582,630
Total Net Anset 4.6746.621 2356630

The oftect of the & Filiates acesunted for using the cquily metbod on ihe resuiiz ofthe period is as Fillows:

December 31,2021 December 31,2020

Terkom Fitki Komma San. ve Tie. A5, net profil 10,349 475 3H16.678
Tarkiny Bitki Koruma San. ve Tic. A%, 6.241.916
comprehensive income = B
Cotal 1709339 3.816.67A
' Tarkim Bitki Koruma San, ve Tic. AS.
riiry | 2020
Perticipation vate %40 %40
Toral wyuly 101.690.053 58050574
41 the date of Fannary 1 23582630 19.765.952
Toral eomprehensive incoane in (e carrent year 17.083,39] 3.816.678
Aa the date of December 31 40676621 23.552.6M)
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[Couvenleits randation of Conaolldated Fibaoeil Sintements origmally [ssued o Turkich)

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TITRE ANONIM RiRKET]
Nates to the Consolidated Floaocial Statements 85 of December 31, 2021
{Amriuniz expressed bn Turkish Lira (“T1.") nnless péherwise [mlicated)

NOTE 4 - SECMENT HEPORTING

The Group's competent anibority of making decision reviews the results and activities based on
geopraphical dvisions in oeder to make decision on resources 1o be allocaled to departments and
ovalyae the performanae of theae depamments, Gibrelay aperates in Turkey, whvereas Razi, s subgidiary,

aperales o lrun.

The Company is engaged i carmying aut the produstion and sales of chemieal fertilizer within Turkey.
Razi, is etgaged i carrving out the preduclion and trading of chemical Getilizers and fenilizer -aw

mualerigls.

Binge the Group menagement evaluates (he uperstional results and financial prrformance based on
tonsclidatod financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRS, TFRS cunsolidated Gnancial
statements Atv woed 10 propare segrmetl repoiimg.

The distnbalion of segment assets and lisbilities pertaining to the years ending December 31, 2021 g

Drepetnber 21, 20240 is as follows-

Consolidntion
Turkey Iran AdJustmoends Tutal
Decembar Decembar Decemiber December
12021 a1,202] 31,2421 31,2021
Adseds
Curren! azsets 6323 33%.550 T4 422,713 (60.032.022) G 25y 730,241
MNon-current asscts 1.5, 392 T8 21372397112 (336,742 2301 3. TROETR G50
Twial agzety 4.812.731231H 4.613%.651 525 [306.774.257) 13,049,609 591
Edubilitfes
Shart-lcrin labilites T30 3BT 044 1620, 728,232 (GO032,022) H.59%953,355
Long-term lighilitias O3 505 434 320,768,722 .- 43% 168,150
Bouities 1,650 346 454 2674153771 {336,742 2300 4028258379
Taotal Liabilitles 8512731318 4.613.051.825 (M6TTLISTY 13040609891
Conselidation
o ~ Torkey Iran Adjusmaents Total
Decembar Deermber Deecemiler Drecember
) 31,2020 31,202 L2020 3.2
Asyets
Currenl pusets 11329415 L 2T5.895 w3x [(ZAZ3E] 8479 J15T.EYT. 204
Moo-gurrent assals 1.471.511.164 916,140,738 {376 606, 245) 2011065657
T'otal assets 3.582.834.310) 1,195, 156606 {6N8.988.094) o 1 6821251
Linbilities
Slworl-lermme lahilities 2991521 b2, 323,215 (231130319 3220 345,064
Long-terne liahilities BOBO5 ATR EG 40T 522 - 176.303.000
_Bdquities B93.7RAE7AL [ dda 325479 (372857775 1.762 254885
Total Liabilitics 3582534370 2. 195,056,605 {604.958.004) £.168.902,9%]
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(Cumvenbmnce tranylgllon of Copsodldaced Flaanclal Salements origmmiby {psmed |n Turklsh)

CURRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKRTI

Motes to the Consolidated Fiosacisl Statements as of December 31, 2021

{Amonnls expressed in Turkish Lirs (*TL™) unless atherwise indicated,)

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REFDRTING { Cout*d)

The dhetribution of segment asses and Lisbilihes peraiming 1o the vears ending December 31, 2021 and

December 11, 2020 & as fillpwg:

Cowsatidaiion
Tuarkey Iran  Adjusiments Total
Jemuary 1, - Janudry 1, - Janoary 1, - JALLAry 1, -
Teesember 31, Deccmber 31,  December 31, December 3,
02 021 2021 w1
Sales BEZE.Q47,8q4 2134043 T (H2ACLIEY 10079401513
Cost of stles (6,047 4804057 (1. T7E.835.003) 42 ERL0T8  (R.144.433.43Y)
Carnsa prahil 2180, 754,345 44 210758 - Z 504006817
Markeding, selling aod distdbucon sxpense (350 352.C83) (21474 938 - [J51.55%.0%1)
CGeneral and adeniiliseragys sxpenss (107 REEEIDY (130230814 - (2381 16.647)
Mhor cpemting mzome ! Supenss, me £1.211 BRO. 1444 (31304120 = [LAELI00-554
Operating profit 0. 606,289 (67312 43%) — A&t 292850
Ineome Trom investments, not 244,247,884 DETRLA [185.726.8210 20,478 664
PFrofi from investments aceountl by
Bquily mrochod 10. 840,475 [.349.47%
Cperaton proflt hefore finnocial income
I {expenm] TES. T 643 (G IMEYT) (135 T24.811) $33.611,. 988
Financial expense, ned E5.833.461 (DGO 767) _ - 74, 541574
Frafii ! {lvss) bofore tax &71.337.109 177660 (1B5.726.822) Y, 163,583
Ceeferred s incoms f {empenes) [11148].285) (25,000 00 - {138.474.255)
Profli | (s} for the period TR 588.824 (L 339604}  (1BS.TIEEX 469, 789371
Conealidatlon
Turkey [ram  Adjuitments _ Tatwl
Jawwary 1, - Jaopumry 1, - Jagppry I, - Jaomary I, -
Ivettmober 31, December 31, December 31,  Desember 31,
i1} 1010 rlx:) 2020
Salen 4.01536,613,452 207152405 (600093802 5403712258
Cost of males [2ARSGTLIRT) (1115 477 164) TO2.L23.514 (4.127.02275T
ot permiil 506,004,255 6777224 12,035,412 1. 146.689.501
Matkuting, selliog and distribution expemss 247354 5040 (24],371.014) - HERTI5A4)
{renemal and edministranyve sxpomes (49421051 (91 4RS00 —  {LAngBd.951)
Crther opefaring iovime £ expense, net (122 817554 (A5.190.451) (L3220 6137 (LB 2050280
Operating profg 1734100 L0, 57, 440 (1251601 4T 763.048
Incomes om iorvestmenty, st ®5 553 LED -- (2317400 8,235,780
Frofic from inveshoents socounied b
_eguity method 3 SLA.67TE -- == 3.B16.478
Operaten profit before floancial incoeme
! {EApeTaE) ) 216710957 206,674,449 (28, 558,000y did_R1d 406
Finassial ¢apemse, oot (16891 OT&E} 23 285087 - [13.808. 85
Profit / {loss) efore tax ) LT3 BIR.98% 319,089,531 2H 550010 471208510
Cefered ma income ¢ (eapense) (37.721.213) CLTeT0ART) 15032 (55141380
Erodit f {loss) for ihe perind 14209 T.T74 302200049  [ZRILRAM)} 416068125
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(Comvenigmer framplation of Consdldated Flonocinl Statements origloally bBsucd by Tuckich)

GUBRE FARRIKAT ART TURK ANONIM SIRKETL
MNotey b 1he Conenlidated Financizl Statemenis 13 of Becember 31, 2021
(Ariounts capressed in Turkish Lirs (“TL™) unlegs otherwiae indleated.)

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REMORTING (Cent'd)

Irvesimcmt erpenditures petaiding & sepment espels for the year ending Decernber 31, 2001 and

Drhember 31, 2020 are a3 tollows:

January 1, - Jaouary 1, -

December 31, 2021 Decomber 31, 2020

Gibretas (TFettilizer Production) T2oE 172 111.386.561
{Gribrotag BMaden (Mining) 11181 .76 -
Iron {Fertilizer Produectiom) LIZTIT 101 26,821 434
Tatal ) 198 517.009 134.21%.04%

Depredailon and amsrtization:

Depreciation and amorizalion expenditures, perttaining 1o segict assets For (he year ending Theoctmbey

31, 2021 and Drevernber 31, 20020 are ag follows:

Tenuary 1, - Janoery 1, -

Detember 31, 2021 Necemiper A1, 2420

Gilibaretag (F cmtilizer Produetion) 52.16%.127 40,035 340
Gitbretay Madan (Mining) 3 402,862 --
Iran (Fertilizer Produetion) 146 032155 B3 3030149
Total 1604164 134,539, 558

NOTE 5 = CASH AND CASH FOQUIVALENTS

Ivccember 31,2021 December 3120
Cash an hands 935.227 288354
Bank LITa. 256732 G35,98],343
- demand depasils 153,216,852 6. TRO.996
- ime deposits 1023035 573 AER 200,347
Ciher cash equivalomis Aaan.025 3. THL340
Total ] 1.179.720.584 50,090,037
Blacked doposae (8.229.047) (2.481.935)
Cash anq cash equivalents af 1he stadement of 117491537 G57.80E.102
cash Aow _
%1 Time deposita {TL)
Taterest rate [Ya) __ Maiugty PDecarnber 31,2021
25,00 3 days 7.254.351
Total 7.254,3%]
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[Comved lemey frapsimtion of Cousolldaced Flnanela | Staietoeob ardginplly Baged in Turkish}

CUBRE FABRIKALAR] TURK ANONIM Sikker]
Motes 10 1he Consolidated Financial Starements a3 of December 31, 2021
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lirg (*TL) unkess otherwise indicated)

NOTE 5— CASIT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [Cont™d)

3.1 Tima Deposts (T1.) (Coot*d)

Imtergst rate (%) Tlaturity December 31,2030
19,00 3 days 176.629.065
Toial 176.629.065
5.2 Time deposits (Foreign Currency):
December 31,2021
o . Cwrreoey  Amopoi io TL
Inferest rate () Maturity Currency —
1,00 3 days EUR 15083, 480 22T 559.14]
10-11 3 days Mil. IRE | 854.057 QE.030.E14
1,30 3 days LK b SL.781.435 6Wl.194, Ta7
Total LS. TH5, 520
_ December 31,2620
. Currency  Amount in TL
Intcrcat race (Yo Mabhority Currency angount
0,65 7 iy ELR 53,514 53 390
10-15 3 days Mil. [RE 112,502 3202800
2,50-3,75 L5 days DED 51.739.030 370,790,714
Total 411.571.282

NOTE § - FINANCLAL BORRCHWINGS

Short-1erm And Long-term borrowings

Detember 31,2021 Drecember 31,2020

Fayahble within | year 2559 QUR.555 1568 205,792
Pavyahle within | — 5 years B.354.4a5 T35S I
_Tntal 2. 967.853.020 1,638,795, 741
A% of Deeember 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, defails of short-temm amnd lang-term bormowings rr;
#s follows:
Short-term borrowings December 31,2021  December 31,2020
Short-term borrgwings 2549 567 447 L.337.005,210
Short-lorm portion af lobg=tann bormuwings -- 25739366
Lease liahitibnes 7.513,393 5A445.214
Othyér short-term borrowings 2397715 -
Tedel 2559498 558 1.568.209.792
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(Convenleact tramalackan of Coasolldwied Finpechkl Statemanis orlglaally ioeed in Turkkh?

UBRE FABRIK 41 AR TUCREK ANONIM SIRICETi
Nutes io the Consolidated Financial Statements g3 of December 31, 2021
{Amouniy expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"} yoless mtherwise Indieated.)

NOTE 56— FINANCIAL BOHEDWINGS (Cont*d)

6.1 Short-term tsrrowlioge and shart-term partion of long-term borrowings

As of Decamber 31, 2021, and Decermher 31, 2020, the details of short-term and loag-term bormow ings

are as mfows:
Deegmber 31, 2021
Average cifooive
anoual Chripinal Amguni
Currency interesi rate { %} droueot In TL
Baok loans
ELTR 0,50 L.GeEdnd 58 24 587 124
TL PROT 2363042703 2.363.142,703
Other financial borrowings
Ml IEE (™) 1&,0H 30040 30 161 542 620
Tatul 1548, 567 447
Diecember 31, 2020
Average effectve
aozual Origioal Anount
Currency Ioterest Fate (%51 A Gt in TL
Bank loans
TL T = 1105 14T 735,344 [ 47273534
{ither financinl borrowings
ML LK {™) 18,00 1.126.470 u 00,232
Tatal E.562.744.576

(™) The amounts included in the shart-term and long-term other financial bormewrings of Ras represent
the: financial payables to its previous cwner befare the privatization.

4.2 Floancial Leasa Liabilifes
Ixccember 31, 2021 Average effective annual Criginal Amount
Cuwrrency interoy rate {%a) Amapni in TT.
TL 14 7.533.5393 7531393
“Total 7523303
December 31, 2020 Average effcctive anmaal Origina Amonm
_Currancy interest rafe (%) Amouni In TL
TL 12 3465218 5465214
Total 5.465.216
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{Conrenience trantlation of Consabidated Floancal Siatements orlginally dused In Turkl]

GUHRE FAPRIKAL ARI TIRK ANONIM SIRKETT
Nolr tu 1the Consolidated Finangial Statements 24 of December 31, 2021
{Amonat: expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless athernize mdicated}

NOTE 6 — FINANCIAL BORROWINGS (Cont*d)

6.3 Lung-term Barrawings

December 31,2021 December 31,2020

Long-tert bk loana - o0 T45.714
Lease Lbilitics {Mate 2.9} 8.354.465 9.540,235
“Taial ' ' 8354465 T0.585.040

Ag of December 31, 2021, thets are oo loogern loans. A5 Decendher 31, 2020 detajls of longs=tenm
borrowings are ws Tollows:

Avernge effective annual Original Awcuni
Currzocy Maturity interest rate (%) amunt in TL
TL Inerd 13,85-14,39 40745714 B0,745.714
Total ' 6. 745.714

Finance Lewse Lishilities

Idecember 31, 2021 Averame cifective moanal Oripinal Amoant
CUrrency Maturity frter el rate %% Empy nt in TL
TL 2025 14 K 354465 5.354.455
Tutal B354 465
December 31, 20240 Avernge affective anooal Crrigrinal Atsouui
CHEEenEY Maturiny imlerest rate (%) RMOUDL InTL
TL 2023 12 W a0 735 9340235
Total _ ' 9.840.135
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[Canvemknos tratisliton of Coosolideted Financial Sintermenis orkglually isued in Turkish)

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURE ANONIM SIRKETE
MNotex to the Consolldated Flnanciul Statrments ps of December 31, 2021
(Amounts cxprepsed o Turkdsh Lira #~1L™) onless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE T -TRADVE RECEIYABLES AND PAYARIFES
T.1 Short=term trade receivables;

December Drecemobeer

31,2020 31,20

Trade receivables BL7TI0R] 133,404 855
Rectrvables frany Iren O] Ministey's parlicipations {*} 201,521,657 1607 857271

674.294. 738 241.262.226

Provision for doubtful trade reeeivables (14.673.089) (9 124. 754}

Total 6E8.621.549 232137472

{*) As of Deember 31, 2021 and 2020, the related smounts heve nat been collvoted far 8 Jong period
of time. Megatiations continues for the collection of these wsezured rade receivables, and sinze the
trade with thete companies is coptinoing, bo peovision has begn made for Lk relevant amaunts.

Tl detmly af the Ciroup’s denbitful resivables and the allewances provided therein are g2 folows:

: Derember Dt emaher
Ticiv: alter maturity ) | 31,2071 31,2020
Mg thaul F micreles 14 5730589 B.124.7%4
Tatal 14673089 9124754

For the years ended Dhecember 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the movemcrs of doabifd made
reccrvables provision is oo follows:

Dsxembser December

32021 L, 200

Balance ot begioning of the perlod 0.124.754 L2.212.062
Feriod cost 5.548,335 (3.088.208)
Balance at end of the perlod 14,673,089 3,124,754

Aa December 31, 2021 and Drecember 31, 202 guarantees obtained tor receivables not due ver ave as
follovars;

Decetibyer December

31,2021 31,2025

Gusrantee [etters 111534, 453 131344008
Collziera’ cheques and noics 86T 841 22321581
Total ) 10526724 154.165.550
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(Cooreniroer transbaton of Contolidated Plaandpd Stnterments orlginalty itdued In Tarklih]

GUBRE FABRIK AL AR TORK ANONIM SIRKETT
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of Tecember 31, 2021
{Amounts expressed in Turkigh Lira (“TL) unlsss otherwise indicatd,)

NOTE 7- TRADNE RECEIVABLES AND PAYAHLES (Cont’d)

T.2 Short-term trade pavahleg

Decembor December

31,2021 31,2020

Limbilities to the: [ranian gas supplier 673023 337 129,363,408

Crinditors Awa0 Q52,257 1279 Ia8. 406

Clther trade payables £3.717.955 21.113.050

Total 4496604045  1.429.545.764
NOTE ¥—(THFR RECEI¥ABLES AND» FAYARLES

&.1 Ouher shart-term coceivables:

Decemiber Desember

31,2021 31,2020

¥AT rogeivables « Turkey R1.59% 028 233322730

Dwe fram parsonne] 35094 _ZR0 31272245

Receivables from Tabosan (%) 35,301 022 35.259.952

Receivables from offier povernme agencies - Kazi 35197073k 3.317.203

Oitler vanous receivahles 18457517 S07% 755

Toial 230134 55 T 106,865

(*3 The lotal receivables of the Group ansing from principal payasents inade us eo-guaranior and acerued
imerest receivable therson amounted fo TL 36.391.022 as of report date, The Group nanagernichi
requested rom the Bankmuptey Adimiuisiration to affect the franefer of Razi shares pertaining ta Tabosan
Miihendjslik v fitsalal ve Montaj Srn, A5, “Tabuzsun) et the rate gf 1,3]% eormespunding 10 paymments
b (he gmeunt of EUR 5.439.402 mede as co-puaraitor. Sinee this request was o1 accepted by the
HBankroptey Administration, the Sroup applied to cowit whereby i1 wos muled by the court W issiee an
1oterim infunction o June 27, 2013 in order (o avoid aoy EAVINgS 00 the shares and the distriburion of
1,31 % o Razi shares owned by Tabowan The ahare transfer lowsuit broughn oo the eourt by the LreQup
was dismiased and appealed hy the Group, ITosssver, the court maling »as spproved bv the Supreroe
Counl. The Group hence applied to the Supreme Cowrt in erder Lo s22k a revision ol the verdict. The
lawsuit filed by the Group againgt the Banktupey Court o scck shate transfs plea was rejecled

Since the request rade by the Girpup to register to the hankruptey evate the other receivables arising
from payments made 3% 4 co-guarantor was Jismisse), the Crooun rouglt 8 lawsuit agsinst the
Banknuptcy Admnistretion o scek approvel of reocivalles, The Bankruptey Admitisietion ruled for
the sccepance of the lorementioned lawsuit and the Conrt decided Lo accopt the [pwsyit regarding
recotding of receivables following ihus seesplanse declansrion oo July |3, 2017 Simke the acenmmulaled
dividend eercivables comesponding 1o 10,86% shurez of Tahosan sl Raxd roverted tg bankiuptey sstaie,
the Batknopley sdministiaiion paid its prineips] receivable ar an amaount of TL 25274 225 on July B,
2073, Thus, the said recaivable registration case was finalized. The Bunkruptey Adiivi sloalion peid TT.
5 545580 to dhe Group oo Avsmst 4, 24017, being the principal amownt receivable of the Group, The
Rankiupley Administration will be able 1o pay the Group's mmeining reccivables tw the sxtent of
dividend receivallc of Tubosan from Razi, provided thase receivables ore remigtered to e bankmuplay
table and wall be sufficicnt o cover Lhe remeindsr of the owstanding receivables of the Group.
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(Convenience tramslation of Concolldared Financisl Stalcments originally lsued In Torkih)

GUDRE FARHIKALARI TORK ANONIN SIRKETH

Notes b0 L Cunsolidated Fiaancizl Statements a5 of December 31, 2021
{Amonnts exprigsed in Turkish Lirs {“TL") unless otherwise indicatad,}

MOTE & - GTHER RECLEIVADBLES AND PAYARLES {(Cont*d)

8.2 Crher long-term receivables

Decembor December
31,2021 1. 2020
Deposits and puarantees given Y2R06TH £056.340
e from personnel 1535 30k 954 534
Otber long-term reccivables B.12]1.483 2959623
‘Total ] 14.937.471 0K, S5
&) Dther short-term pavahles
December Decembor
]l,!!]ll 31,2020
Dividend payables to con-cantrol]ing interests 112222501 17332 247
Other payables to related parties 3707468 1288840
Cther payables and liabilitics TAE5G 2R 43.0479(0
Total 192.789.251 58,678,797
#ud Oiber lobng-term payahles
one (December 31,2020; None).
NOTE 9 - INVENTORIES
Diccemhber Decerber
31,2021 31,2020
Rav materials and supplies 1.245 256,149 183 ¥52 53%
Finished guwuls 003 (kX p23 163,335 197
Trade goods 2530653548 TE2.811.591
CHher invemlories 245 06T 439 274517508
5034.531.259 1404518935
Frowision of impairment of invertones (=) £14_60, 409} {14.731 940}
Total 5.01%.321 850 1389.767.975

(41)



{Convenletee tratalation of Conyglidebed Floanckl Sixtenients origiaally lstwad n Turkibh)

GLURRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKET!
Notes tu the Consotidated Finangial Statements as of December 31, 2021
{(Amnnatc expressed i Turkish Livs (“TL") usless otherwise mdicated )

NOTE H - PREPALD EXPFENSES AND DEFERRED TNCOME

i Decembrr December
Shori-term prepaid sxpenass 31,200 31,2020
Ceder advatees gived for inventory purchasce 5&BIs 154 106.521.08d
Expenses far next month B4,059.041 5e, 895153
Trodal SO 044,195 163.416.237
) December Dvccmhber
Long-lerm prepeid expenses
pe 31,2021 31,2020
Cirder advances given for siock purchane 195_549, Tih 28,502 334
Cither prepaid capenses 32.471,130 L_EH 001
Tatal Z32.022.895 50,690,425
December December
Short terro deferred fpcome AE, 2021 31,2020
Eeceived advances 721,143, TE) 30.579.2481]
Cither deferred ineaome 1.6:29. 3549 -
Total 7oL 733,129 2,579,281
MOTE L1 -INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Decomber 31, 1021 __December 37, 2020
Lands and Lands and
parceln Buikling Tatal  parveely  Ewilding Total
:::1::]“* nt the beginaing of the o) 410 197 32068970 139506066 46.650.000 ITAETS S4ATEETE
Pumchazas . — - - . -
"I'renafer $hoon baegprhbe gy *= - -~ 55656209 3133048 55 TRD 25T
Transfer to lnngible aqpeis - -- - - (RO 5RE (5918 562)
Fair value inetase ¢ [decranne]
{Maie 251 Al p(1.442  LDZSETAS  SLOT2 227 5130078 (2954497 2| 74405
Tetal 1dG0d8.820  42d2d 664 IRL4TE.293 IF743T.1ET  3Z.004.ETD L35 506 056

Vring the year cinded December 31, 2021, the Group has obluined rental ineome of TL 4.64% 748 [rom
s invesirnend properties (December 31, 2020: T1. 5.003.547),

The investment properties of Gibreley conass of land and buildines, and their fair valoes have been
determited s TL 19517203 in the valuation tepon dated Ccwober 12, 2021 prepared by the CMB
licemsed valuation finm, which provides valuation sorvices withia Lhe Framewark of the CME lepsialaion
Tty dhe valaghion report propared by the valuation firm, the assets subject 1o viluation were determined
using the nuarkel apyproach und cost sppeaach method, As of December 31, 2021, the valuabon difference
of TL 31.972237, which i3 respencively TL 41,611,442 and TL 10.360.745, gver the appraised fair
values of the land ard binldings, hag botu reflected in the financial statemetis. The value of invesoment
properties belpnging o subsidiaries has beco determined as TL 15306293
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[Coovenience frmmslntion of Consrolldaced Hldeoclel Sintements origmally imued n TwrkBk}

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM siruETi
Notes 1o the Consolidated Finpancing S1atements as of Decembar 31, 2021
(Amouns expresséd in Twrideh Lira (“TL' unless otherwise indicabed,)

NOTE ]2 - PROTERTY, TLANT AND EQUNPMENT

The details of depreqation and amortization expenses caleulated by the Group as of December 31, 2061
and December 31, 2020 are given below.

- December 31, 2021
— L bretas Maden Rari Toial
Dopreciation expense 49,178,743 2652430 143.614,204 197.44% 267
Amarhization expense 2.500. 354 TH0.E52 417861 4.135.6%7
Lotal 53169127 3401832 146032155 201, 61,164

[urimg the yoar ended Deoember 31, 2021, depreciation and wmomigation expense armounting to 71
201.604.1654; TT. 185 107434 is included in peneral production expeoses, 1T, 3,538,459 in sales md
iatheling expenses, T 12.958.27] in penemal administralve expenses.

December 31, 2021

L-ibretas . ' Rari Tatal
Lrepreciation expense 37 724,180 35151328 122 875504
Amortizeation crponse 332169 151651 2.463,B60
Total _ 41.056.340 E5303.017 126,579,568

During the vear ended Doccmber 31, 2020, depreciation and amottizativn expenze rmeynting o TL
126,239 268, TL 1[5.365.05] is included in gereral posdoction expenzes, TL 2, 586469 in zalez and
murkeling expenses, TL £.337.848 in peneral administrative sxpenses.

The Fair values of the land, buildings and land improvenoents of the Group have been determned 55 TL
§14.395.000, which was appraised in the valuation report dated Cctaber 12, 7021 prepated by the CMH
licembed valugtion firm, which provides valuation services within the framewaork of the CME lzgislation.
In the veluation report prepared by the valuation Gra, the useets subject to valuation were determined
uging the mecked approach and cosl approwch method. Ag 3 resule, 1hems is sefficient sales data for the
assciy in the Markel Approach mcthod, where the value is appraized by comparing the =ales of similar
axacte m the open markel of by comparing the prices requested and the offers given In the Cost
Approach method, instead of purchasing the property, the possibility of constusting the ssime pTopeTy
nr another propenty that will provide the same beénefit is taken o aecoun and the remaining value afler
depreciation for old and less fumionel properties is evaloared as the ument value sver the cxfimated
values, As of December 31, 2021, 0w valuation difference of TL 153120578, TL 98,287,107 and '17.
T.1ERR03 tofaling to TL 258,527 487 aver e appraised fuir values of the land end buildings, has Besn
reflected in the financial stateinels.
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(Convenbust iramclation of Consolldscrd Flnancial Stlemnenis originwlly lmaed i Torkieh)

GUBRE FABRIKALART TORK ANQNTM SIRKET
Molcs to the Consolldated Financial Statemenis a3 of December 31, 2021
{Amtouoty eapresyed in Torkish Lira {“TL") wiless atherwise indicared )

NOTE 13 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13.1 Rights
December 31,2021 Rights " 1iDg Rescarch Total
i Fipenges
Cosl
Opcning balance al January 1 21312538 - 27319638
Inflation difference 264,739 - a0d 730
Purchasss B.298 575 53195874 Gl 40| 449
Foreipn cormeney translation differenses, net 6402657 - 0,402 657
Cindiog balance AL 2T 5HP ELi98 AT 95.3TH 4E3
Accumulsted Depreclation
Chpening balance ar January | {5.8074652) - (5.607.652)
Current peripd proortization expénze (41586977 - (4,158,697
Clozloy balaoce (12766340 - {1.1. 756349}
Net Boak Value 19.513.260 53.198.874 T 2LTL134
Mining Rescarch
e
ember 31,2020 Riyhts Expensca Total
Cost
COpeming balancs at Janvary | 21348692 - 27348692
Inflateon difference 68314 - BE.214
Purchpses 658121 -- 305K 121
Forsjgn cucreney translation differences, ner  (5.755,421) -- (5.755.491)
Clsing balooce ZT319.408 - T 319638
Artumuls bed repreciation
Opening halanee at Jaary 1 (5.143.792) - (5.142.752)
Comrant petiod amortzation cxpense (3263850 - (3531860
"Closing balance {%.607.652) - (8.607.652)
Wet Bock Value 18711986 — 18.711.956
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tCmnvenkenes tramelaton of Lawclidated Fluwancle] Stalements oelglaoally loued dm Turhich)

GUBRE FABKRIKALAR] TURK ANONIM SIRKETI
Notes to the Consolidated Financigl Statements as of December 31, 2021
(Amounts eapresed io Turkish Lira (*TL*) unless atherwise indicatpd,)

NOTE 13 = INCANGIBLHE ASSETS (Cont*d)

13.2 Goodwill;
- December Drecember
21,7021 31,2020
Cpenite balance at January | G572 973 87.0494 800
Inflation difference 17.020.405 10.65%.177
Foawigm curmeney translation differencas 41, 750232 [37.130.E05)
Closing balance _ 119.358.609 B.572.972

MI¥IE 14 - COMMITMENTS
14.1 Eazl’s share purchase

Related 10 Hazis purchase agreement, all shares of Razi are put in pledge by Frantan Privatization
Crzanization unitll Growp and otber consortium members snll pay all of their detms. The Group and
consortium members have cotamitied and agreed to the effect that they do not have sty right to be
inealved in any manipolation whatsoever or effect any changes during the perind the pledge comtinues,

As ot 1 Avgest 2016, o pertion of shares beld by Lhe Group and ather ciisoniim members were
released, und from 1,365 698,169 shares pertamng to the Group, 1.225.559.79% shares were physically
laken delivery. As ol the belance sheet date, all shares have been reecivied and there iz no pledge on tie
share cerhilicates.

14,2 Furchase commitments

s of December, 2021, the Groop bas a purchase commitment of 250,602 4068 (50D and 315 850 ELR
of raw materials and commercial goods plavoed t be impnned for whish purchase orders were related
letters uredil were ppened (December 31, 2020; 45,057 5530 USD and 12671 5454 LEUR}

NOTE 15 -GODVERNMENT GRANTS

The completion visa for the Investment lucenlive Certificate numbered 110061 was made on September
20, 2018 by the Ministry of Trade of Turkish Republic. The fixed inveatment aoioust is TL 290 3647 60,
The investraent supports to he utilized consist of Employer Shate Suppart, Custos Duty Exempticn,
Tax Reduciion Ratio (100%), Invesiment Comribuations (40%%) and VAT exemphon. In 2018, he
Cotngany benefited from Insurance Premiom Fmployer Share Suppert and VAT Excmyption in the
construggion of twin NPK plents and artnonia lacks.

The Investaent Incenbve Certificate dated May 16, 201% and numbered | 35984 wag oldzinad in repards
Lhe application dated March 36, 2018 end numbered 38928 made to the Minisy of Trade, The
Investnen Incentive Ceetifieae ie valid umil Mareh 26, 2021 and includes fixed asget investment plens
af TL 143300000, The investment sugports to be atilized consist of Tax Reduction Ratio (7094,
Investmen Cominbation Ratio {30%) VAT excuption wnd interest suppart, Tn 2002, VAT EXEmIplion
was utilized in the modemizalion procesees of [skendenm Fagilities.
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[Cemrreabeoce trensladion of Conapletsied Finanell Siatsenls origlnnby imaed in Turkih]

GUBAE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM $IRKET]
Notes to the Coosolidated Finapcial Staterents as af December 31, 2021
{Amaunts expressed in Torkdsh Lira (“TL™) unless olherwine imdicated.)

NOTE 13 GOYERNMENT CRANTS (Coot'd)

The Investnient Incentive Certificate deted 11 Tane 2018 and mumberad 137250 wus oblained in regards
lbe opplication dated March 26, 2018 und oumbered 38927 made to the Ministry of Trade. The
Ivesttrent Incentive Centificate is valid watil March 26, 2022 and includes fixed asaet investment plas
b T 235,000,000, The investaiear support elements to be utilized are 1he Tax Reduchon Ratio {50%%),
lovesiment Allowance Ratio {25%), Employer Share Support far Iesursnca Prejnivn and VaT
Exetopteon.

With the approval of the Mindstry of Indostry and Technalogy of Turkish Republic, the R Comoer
was esteblished on May 8, 2004 in Gilbrctas Yarnnea Facility. Accordingly, the Company benelit: from
K& D digoount, incotne @k withbolding incentive, insuranes premiwn suppor, stamp tax exempricn and
Cich contribulicn supproet.

NOTE 16 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITTES

h,] Short-ter i provisicos

Degember December

31,2021 31,2020

Frovigions fior cost expeases 141,339,517 7812478
Dezaler sules premiums - 3.600.000
Prawviziong for lawswil {*3 183394617 25, 2%7.0m0
Ceher short-tenm diokd provisions 0.43TELG 5.631,232
“Fatal ' . _ 18%. 136,960 72430797

(*3Thore is & lawsuil filed againsl Bazd in the loeal powrt in the sttt ol TL4 282 5013 367 TRE B0 995
billion) (December 31, 2020: TL 2,422,254, 731 (TRE 84.137 billion) dws (o the allegalivn of sxcesaive

gan use, Ag of Deceiniber 31, 2020, the (rroup Managemen: has made o provision of TL 20.845 177 {[RR
624 billion) regering (his issuc.

The movement of provigions lor lowsaits dunng the related pericds 18 préseoted belgw:

December December

31,2021 2120320

As of January I 25287069 4.653.112
Additirmal provision f (provisions oo longsr required’ 13,052 548 20623957
Closlng Balance IBAIRALT 25287060

A luwsuit has heen filed againgt Ure Group by Denizeiler Bidigl Deniz Maklivat ve Tieatet Anomm
Sirketi, for loss of prelit of TL. 785.193, The Group Management had not made & provision in the
sursplidated financial statenents reparding this fawsuit, conzidering the legal opinicn tecsived.
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{Coa vembence tranalstbon of Consolidated Floancisl Sielemedts origlaslly bzwed n Turklsh)

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TCRK ANONIM SIRKETE

MNotes 1o the Conselidaied Financial Statements as of December 31, 2021
(Amounts expressed fo Torkish Lira (7T} wniess otherwise indicated.)

NOFTE 16 — PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILLTIES (Contd)

162 Cuarantees glven

As of Decernber 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the tables celaled w the Graup's tsbles related to
Collateraly’ pledpes’ mongsgesbil] of pusmimtess (CPMB™) positicn are as followa:

December 31, 2021

Currescy  ampuniin

CTMT giveen by che pompany
A CPM D' given for Conpan’ s g Iogal
Fezonakinr

E. CPMB 3 given an bebalf of

lully comsclidoled companiss

C CPME s piven on Behalf of thicd
prartiy

for erdinary of busincas

. Tatal amount of aiber CPMD"S

£ Toual smoard of CPME's given oo behelf of
e maperty shercledder

il Lital aeeaumt of TFRIO5 given an behalf of
cdher Gronip companies whilch ara wol io soope
ef Hand

Currency _ Amount

TL 37919400
USD  1R.580 dxx}

Total

163 Contingent labilities and Asssta

Trao Comprebencive Actiun Plag

37933 400
248, 585850

Decemmbor A1, 220
Currenc¥  ympumcin
TI. Curredey A maounl TL.
TL LIL325558 10323550
DSD SA0ob md, 596,200
74921958

286505250

The Coemprehensive Jain Action Plan (ECEP™, "JCPOA™) signed in Tuly 2005 betwien Lren,
members of the United Nations Seconty Council, Gertaany and the Tunopean Uninn includes thi gboliion
of eonomic sanctions impesed 10 Iran as a result of its ouclear getivitics by the U'S, the Furopean Unigds
and the Uhiited Matioos Seamity Councdl and the swspension of suine of the mapclions in exchanee Far

restricting Fran's nuclcar setivitics,

L

Un May & 2017, the Linited States has stared that it hed withdeawn from KOEP and stated that it would
trigim lo re-apply sanctions Wha fad previously been repealed or suspanded.

The semcrions put imte etfect on November 4, 214, lrag's oil, pelrolewm products and petroclnical
pocuets were subject to zanstions. None of the Group's compamies i9 subject W sakdivn as of the daig of

Fese comsolidaled financial staterusds.

The comsalideted tinancial statements include the CGiroup managernem's nesmmptions phout the elfiss of the
curtelt smxdions umposed qan Iran on the operations aod financial position of the subaidiary, The Malare
cconmmic sitnation of (e Tslamic Repuhlic of fran o differ from the Group Matagserent's asUImpLIcHS,
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(Cooven lemce Cramulaiion af Conmdidated Fimnocl] Stmlements orlglonty [rsaed s Turkleb}

CGLUARF FABRIKALARI TORK ANONIM SIRKETI
Notes to the Conpsolidated Financial Statentents 28 of Docember 31, 2021
{Amguncy exprepsed in Turkigh Liva (“1L") onless atherwise indicated.)

NOTE 16— PROVISIING, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILTTTES (Cone*d)
Recetvahles firom Tabosan

Dhuring ded eoyuisition o[ Razi shares, the Growp and ather cousormiub ipemibers jointhy vouched on behalf
of each other apainst the fumciog banks and the Tranian Privalization Administreton. One of the
¢onanrlium mentbers, Talbosan Mdlendislik Undim ve Montaj A5, (¢ Tahosar™, the bankruptoy resuest of
Tabosan was rejested by the court in 201 1 and Tabosan's bankonpley and bankmpicy dosk was establisbesd,
and all transsctinns were eansfered to banlkmuptey desk. The {rovp roguested share transfer for aome of
the paymoems meds on behalf of the goarantor, Tabosan, snd applied to the hankouptcy desk for the
MetRining roceivable.

For the pavinents tnade o behalf of ‘Tebomn, the Group Hled 2 lawsuit for the mansfer of 13195 of the
shares of Tahosan in Raxi Pecrochamics] Company io lran Om Apnil 28, 2014, the coudt deeided to disues
the cage. Thereapon, (riibretag applied o0 the Cowt of Cassalion for comection of the decision, However,
this Togue was alsa rewsded, and the application was made to register the receivable as a receivable (o the
benhruptey desk and a part of this anoun wos wrtlen to the bankquptey desk,

Even though the Group applied to the bealnmtey adminisization for e repistration of other recquvahles
That tiad fea become subject 16 che share transfer case, U request made was refested by the sdminictretion.
This tirne 11e Group fled a lawsuil against the hankruptey administeation. The Bunkroptey Adminisisatgan
has eccepted the Croup's casc o e meistmtion of meeivables and upon this declumtion, te Court hag
cecided oo July 15, 2017 i ecoept the case of the Group's registrarion. A= of the reporing, date, the Group's
principal roceivable arsing from the paymens made on surety and toal inkerest receivable a5 o the
repucling date iz TE. 34,301,022 (31, 12.2020: TL 3525830

The Banknouey Adiministration may pay the Sooup's gutstanding receivables w the extent that it meets the
Group's bulance receivable, provided dust a dividend receivahle is received by Talosan a1 Rawd and thia is
trenstemed 10 the bankruptey table. The Group management has not made amy provising in the prior yeurs
aod cument period regarding Tahosan's dividend shere in moapect of Bazi shares and mortgages aud
LATAITGES trfnisTerres] o it by the bank.

Constal Line

[skenderun Fiseal Directorate {“Tressmry™) brought a lawanit ity order 1o hypothecal= oo behalf of puakel i
atd canel land register of property owned by Lhe Group having a surface ftea of 73350 m® located in
Hatay, Iskenderun, Sanseki i acoordancs with the Regulation en Inplementation of Coastal Law umd
il provisions since the Shore Edpe Lite passes through the aforemettioned land The net ook valee of
the afpreinenticned propery is TL 150,128,817 as of balaoce sheet date, The Crroup hos appealed against
the case in utr legal period and reguesled W re-prepaation of expent’s report Lssued towards determininge
shore Edge Litne which conslitytes g base for the wiorementinned case, Additivnelly, the Cmoup has
braught 2 suit tor the compensalion of property right through considenng that the case will result in
Frvor of Tremrury. [n March of 2008, [skenderun 37 Civil Coun partially accepred the case opatied by
the Froperty Dhrcctersle and decided to cancel the title dewd regisiration of 78.674,76 m? a® the
Umrtwavabile property of the Cooapaty located in Halay, Isbonden:n ard Sanseki borders, the const ruled
that the applicant had been denied the registeation with the ahandonment 38  Jine and rejecied the request
ceticerung the surplus and rejected ibe case against the group, Within the legal period, the Group das
applied for the appeal law, (e group has asceped the appeal and the Gazistep Begional Court of Justive
hos remeved the decisions given by the Law Depanment of the 15th Law Depanment and the o
actions and retumed the case 1o Ge local court for reconsideration. The Group Managemert has niot
Teeopded ANy provision in s accompanying censolidated financial statemcns sine the legal procedires
aave fid been [inalized e o the views of the legal advizors.
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(Ciomvenleace Irnoslutnm of Consolldaved Findielal Saatements origlioadly dyued in 'Turkish]

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKE 1]

Notes to The Consolidzied Finaocial S1atementy as of December 31, 2021
{Amnunts expressed lu Turkish Lira (#T1.") unlas otheraise Indleated )

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Liabilities for employec benefits

Drecerd bex December
31,2021 31,2020
True to the parsannl T3.344 785 24492805
Social seconty promiung pavable 3721065 2.374.759
Total 77.065.830 30857564
Frovislon fur Emphyee Beneflis
Deeember Decomber
Short-term 31,2021 31,2020
Provnaion for allowanse and employes termunation benefits 22.540.98] T62] 226
Provisic for premium E.935,04] 0.654,772
Frovizion tor ceely retivetnent salary [*) 19,949 _50r% 10 rat 036
Total 5L.430.512 28045036
December December
Long-term 11,2021 31,2020
Allowanee for retivement pay (Gilibretas) 27924, N&S 19,305 520
Allowrancs for retivcinend pay (Rezi) 261 557967 51471341
Provision for early retirement salary (%) 48,722,255 24 (458, [
Tntal 33820352 0,829,660

(*} During the period of Rar:®s privatization, the mght of carly refirement was stanted te emploveas amd
the obligation arising trom these mghis was accounted for in accrrdence with TAS 19 by Raui.

As of December 21, 2021, the severance pay hzbility of the Company hes been calenlaid wsing the
anmual real discount fale of 4.09% {December 31, 2020: 4.0%%,), which was determinsd by calimating
the annual inflation rate of | 5% uod the discoun rate of 12,508, The Group's sevetance pay provision
1 caliulaled over TT 10,84% (Janvary 1, 2021: T1. 7.639), effective aa of Jarmary |, 2022, sitce the
MAKIITAT SeveTunce pay is determined cvery six months. Movements in te provision for severance pay

during the year arg a3 follows:

January 1 - JEHUAEY ] -

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Pravistons a3 of January 1 St B IS 650 113 665254
Adjustments on opering balaks 17353565 {26.420,345)
REIVICE Cosl 23E.85.55] 55557710
Interest cost 303875063 T
Paynient tero nation indgrusty (@7.87T2T51) {3%.53%930)
Forewgn cunreney teanelation differences (26,622,204} [(5.478.850)
Actuorial painloss 2.142 434 el L4 )
Provlalon as of December 31 J3H. 34 352 04.810.66%
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(Cravoakeoct tanalelion of Consekdaied Financial Stalethents arkpinaily lzaned [0 Tueklah)

IRRE FABRIKALART TURK ANONIM SIRKE 1T
Notes to the Consolidared Financlal Statements a3 of Pecember 31, 2021
(Amounts expressed in TurKish Lirs ("TL") unless otherwlse indicatad.)

NOTE - 18§ OTHER ASSETS AND LLARII FTIEN

Dacember December

fher current asacts 31,2021 11,2020
Deferred VAT T2.T18. 068 23105 387
Job adviances 16280 554 d,%40,]19]
Chher various cument wusets 12669, 304 BET. 3
“Total 101.697.254 28.708.571

NOTE 19 - EQUITY
Taid-in capital

The equily stnecture a5 of Decomber 31, 2621 and Decernber 31 2020 18 85 follows:

December 31, Decernber 11,
e 2021 o 2020

Tirkive Tanm Kredi Kooperatifler
derkez Bicii 78,05 233684607 7504 231,684,607
Cither 2405 0315353 2405 &0.315.393
Tatal 1iK1,00 I OMLOM T H) 140000

Ag ol December 31, 2021, the capital of the Company consists of 33.400.000 000 shares and (here are
ﬁ%ﬁvileged sharzy (2020: 33, 400.000.0043 sharcs). The nominal vahie of U shares is T1. 0,00 (2020:
P13

Heseryed on retained egrpings

The legal ceserves eonsist of firsl end sceond composition of legal reserves sccarding o the Turkish
Cade of Coammerce. The frst composition of legal rererves is oomposed of 596 of the previous peijods
commerciel profitd unlit the date it reaches 20% of the paid eapital. The second sompeaihan of [ggal
reserves i dllocated a9 (Ko of the total cash dividend disigbutions Following the Srst ecrnpogilion of
legal reserves and dividends. The profit reserves wers comprised of az follows ac of Dhevernber 31, 2021
avd Degernber 31, 2024:

December Thecember

31,2021 31,2020

Logal reserves 531.K36.737 53.H3R.T37
Tatal 53.838.737 52,538,737
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(LCaovemicenes trendation of Consolidated Fltionds! Satements orlginally Isaued in Turkbih]

GUBRE FARRIKALAKI T{RK ANONIM SIRKETT
Mateg to the Congoliduied Fionncial Statemends as of December 31, 2021
(Amoonis expressed iy Turkish Lirs (*TL") noiess otherwise Indicated

NOTE 20 - DEERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Uroup uses derivative fnancisl instruments 1o procect apains Toreign eoreney Fgk and clagsifiss tham
g5 fnancial mstruments & fair wlwe thwough prodit of loss Derivative instruments are first recorded at
acquisition cost raflecting their fait value on the coontraet date and are valuel ul fair value in the periods
following their registration. If & financial (nstnutwen is acguired to be sold o bowatit back u  Luer date, it
[s claszified in this group. Derivative instnments anc recognized as assels if fir valug i3 pogitive, 2l
liakailitnes if nepane,

Thes demivative instrumients of the Group, whose fair valoe differences ore reflectad in profit ! loss, cormpitise
forcipn corrency forward contrecis. The Growp does net huve any derivative traneaetions withm the BCOpE
ofhedge accounting, For this reasen, ollowing the initdal recorliog of depvative firocial ingtrurnents, theyr
wite measired with their fair valuss end reflected 10 peofic or 1oss as soun ux changes in Geir Eir values

ook place.

There ere no degvative bsttments as of Docember 31, 2020, The details of derivative icstnmoents as af
Decetnber 31, 2021 e as fallgws-

Doceraber 21, 2001
Manwtnal vilne Falr waluz
Farward agreement Fatarlty {U5D) {TL)
LS buying January 2022 43.600.000 39.424.793
Toatl 43600000 39,424,793
MNOTE L - REVENUE
January | — Jaouary 1 -
Sales Ieccriver 11, 2021 Thegember 3, 20%)
Domestic sales Y 315.644.315 4,184,053,085
Fotzixrn sales 1.535.[K]9. 229 1. 2RE. 933,303
Bervice zalas 44 502 208 4 98F 3TR
Sales rEurns (- [l 366,828} (I5TZ410%
Sales discaunts {-) (1265380391 {S8.29T.831)
Chher discounts from sales (-} (738,470 (2.105,257)
Total 10.764.401 513 5413712258
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iConvenbenee tranalation of Consplidaied Fmancial Siabetmenrs riginally dsued {m Turldsh]

GURRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKET]

Moies fo the Conaolidated Finaneial Statements as of December 31, 2021
(Atpauots expressed in Torkdsh Lirm (1L} unless olherwise indbcuted.)

MNOTE 21 - REVEMTE (Cont'd)

January I — January 1 -
Drecember 31, Decemher 11,
Cust of sales 2021 Pl
Cost of goads produced 51732765824 1592 BOT M5
Change in the finished gnnds (RX0 6% 426) 147 438,449
~Finished powds at Lhe beginning of the pedad J63 335107 Ji TG
-bniatyed goosda et thee eid of L pericd fRed 029 823 13 335 197
Cost of finished poods aold 4. 343,552,398 T A0S 404
~Trade gonds a1 e beginning of the perod T82. 814,501 042 540,114
-Purchases 5584465324 £ 12 200w
-Trada poods 81 the end of the panod (23500353 848) FTREASS 5G]
Cost of oade goods sold 1316625967 1.971.251.614
Coal of wiher rales - 12.184.153
Cost of services sokd 242315074 325146
Total 8.184.433.439 4117012757

NOTE il - GENERAI ADMINISTRATIVE EXFENSES, MARKETING, SELLING AND

METRIRITION FXPENSES

Janmacy 1 - January 1-

December 30, 2021 Deeember 51, 2020

{retieral administrative cxpenges 235116047 L 40,804 951
Marketing, sclling #ud dislobulinn expenses 151 857021 488725574
Total 589.073.468 639.630.525
Jaouary | - January 1-

LAseneral adminisiralive pxpenyes December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Tetsonne] expenses 137.352.302 01,023 522
Chutsnurced erviees (*) B.130.104 4524 B11
Drepreciation and amartization ¢xpenscs 11.8001.211 338748
‘T'axes and dutics 248119838 530,368
CHher cxpenses S40T92 30438 185
Tuial IR AT 140,904,951
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(Coomvenlenes raosipton of Coosolidated Finpnels| Staesvean origloplby imwed In Turklak)

CUBRE FARRTKALART TORK ANONIM sleescertd
Mated o b Consulidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2021
fAmsunts cxpressed in Tuckbh Lz (“TL™) unles otherwise indicateds

NOTE 21 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING, SELLING AND

DMSTRIBUTION EXFENSES (Cont'd)

Janoary 1- Jinoery 1 -
Marketing, setiing and disiribaton expensey Derember 11,2021 Decembey 31, 2020
Dhutsourced serises (¥) 208,210,058 368,739,802
Fetulizer tracking syatem sxpenses [*9) RO 1E67TE T3 ES0.007
Fersonnel cxpensas 175150 23 08T
Advertzing expenacs 5,004,538 1273018
Deepreciation acd amarhzebon expenscs 2844166 2,350 469
Cxher cxpenses 15.506.355 13.192.531
Total ISLAST.0ZL 488725514

[*} Tl benwefils und servicss providing From the oulgide are Tormed mainly by the transpomation cosls,

mantEmanee-Fepair cxpenses, enetey, fuel, waler and commmanication coats,

[**) Gyslem wsnge expenses relatod to the fenilicer tacking system which staried o be impleosared at

the end of 2018 ard was wsed throughaut 2321,

MNOTE 13 - EXFENSES BY NATURE

Junoury 1- Jaduary 1 -
Derember 11, 2011 December 31, 2020
Cost of poods sold d 1560023 611 2.024.570 443
st of rade goods sold ARIE 625067 1971251604
Crubsoursed servicss 16E 157458 73263 621
Persotnel expenses 2016.346 202 114,102,242
Drepreciation and amertizalion expensos 20604 |54 126 350 368
Tax and duties 26,119 838 6.530.365
Advertizing expetses 6.004 538 T279.015
Cost of pther sales -- 12.084,153%
Coat of service sald 24225074 3251494
Cither expenses 158.700.255 117 430 954
Todal _ LT74.407.107 4. 750,653,282
NOTE 4 - OTHER QOIPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSFES
4.1 Other operating income
January 1 - Jeouary 1.

Deccmber 31, 221

Decechber 31, 2020

Forcign exchange income related to trade iramsactions 734.300.200 456,685,504
Inverest inconte 5845248 4,358,250
Chihet reveriuss d2 708 935 45265 952
Toial 782.R54.384 506,821,135
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fComvenicac iradtandios of Cunselldeted Flmanole] S temenis originnlly iesaed in o e}

GURRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETI
MNotes to the Consolidated Finaacial Statements 28 of Decembrr 31, 2021
(Amnunty expresyed in Turkdsh Liva (“TL") unless otherwise indicated )

MNOTE 24 - DTHER OI'ERATIMNG INCOME AND EXFENSES {(Cont )

4.2 Diher operating expense
Janoary 1 - Janvary 1-
Decemher 11, 2021 December 31, 20240
Forcign exclmnps cxpenses relaled to frede transactions 1315147 55 S18226.0%0)
Pravision expenscs 19,568,539 26_239.080
Unellested and wrtten-off ¥ AT reccivablos of Ear LE9. 791 K12 o7 oTe TS
{¥her cxpenscs LS. 025,65 4% 6T1.2TR
Total 2.314.554.940 691.115.163

NOIE 15 - INCOME ; (EXPENSE) FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

January 1 - Janwary 1-

lacome from Dovestieot aetivities December 31, 2021 Decernber 31, 2020

Trcrepsa’ideemtass) in the value of investment property 51.972.227 2.175.495
Profit on sale of the sybsidiary (Me 1) - 5750394
Crain on gales of property, plant end equipment 6.511.428 815
Olher income 120K 153 352.256
Tatal - 50.600.808 H.279.962
Expense from fovestment :nﬁviﬂm | January 1 - Jaduary 1-

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Lz o sabes of property, plant and squipoent 214144 44,182
Total ) ' 214.194 _44.182

NOTE 6= FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

] January k- Jnnpary 1-
Financial lncome Ihecember 3121 December 31, 2020
Foreign exchongs ineome 413,763,071 26,425 806
Interest income T3.975.99] A7.6dD342
Cither finaincial incone 42 243,186 2005914
Tolal 219986248 FT4.091.862
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(Comvenieacs franeaton of Coneelldaied Finnmciyl Statements sriginally lspued in Turklsh)

GUDRE FABRIKALAR] TCRK ANONIM SIRKETI
Motes 1o tThe Consulidated Financial Statements s of December 31, 2021
(Amounts expressed in Turkisk Lira (*TEL*) unless atheswise indicatgel)

NOTE 26- FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXTENSES (Coni*d)

Fi inl JAbuary 1 - Janamy L-
DANCIA] EXpenses December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Foreign exchange expensc JI00RT RIS 162 531 569
Interest expense 163 485 354 163,524,933
Cither fmanciel txpense 12448, 766 10,116,723
Tolal ' ] _ 495.019.975 1%.263.224
o Janpary 1 - Japuary 1-

Wel monetary position gains ! {losses) December 31, 2011 Becember 31, 2020

et manoiery position gaius / (high inflation} (*) 38.575.421 {5,425 534)

Total ' 39575421 (£3.425.534)

{*) Lue to the accumulative inflarion rate of lagt three yoars io lran exceeding 100%, e fnancial
stalemtents huve been prepaced according ta the effects of inflation instead ol historical cost hasis, as of
the baginning of the accounting period of 2020. 1AS 2§ "Financial Reporting in Highly Inflationary
Eeonomies" standard was applisd during the preparation of ike financal statcrments of Bazi consolidated
m the accompanying financial statements in Ien. The corment period effect of infatien sceounting
amounting to TL 39.675.421 (December 3, 2020: TL (53.425.534]} is accnounied for 45 net monetary
position pedl ¢ (loxs) wnder finance experses (Mote ).

NOTE 17- ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Mone.

NOTE 18 - INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING BEFEREED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)
Currenl 2ol deferred inecome (e

The tax expense for the year comprises current and doferred tux. Tax is recopnized in ihe income
slalement, except o e extent thal il relates bo Usms reeopmized directly it equity. In such case, the tax
15 also recagnized in shareholders' equity.

The carrent incoene lox charge i3 calealated in aceordance with the tax laws emacted or substagtively
enacied at the balance sheet dare in the counlrics wher the subsidiarics and associntes of the Group
cparate Under the Turkizh Tax Code, companies heving head office or place of haseness in Turkey are
subjtid fo corporace tax,

In the T'urkish t3x syacem, financial Iosaes aan be deducted with the financial profits in the fulloraring cive
years, and 1 19 not possible to deduet (retrespectively) frou peevious years' earnings, In addition, to he
Ceducred from the corponue lux in Turkey, & provishimal tax of 25% jg paid aver the tax bases declarsd
in tlee nberim perinds (it will be 23% for the taxation peried of 2022, and 20% for the year 2023 and
beyond). As of December 31, 20271 and 2020, tax provision has been reserved within the fnework of
(ke curren? tax legizlation.
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{Comvenieary raorlnton of Consotideted Flnanckal Sialeeants arighaally hemed {n Tarkish)

GUEBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKFETI
Marea La the Coosolidated Financizl Statements as of December 31, 2031
(Artounts tapressed in Turkish Lirs ("“TL™ unless otherwise indleated.)

NUTE 21 - INCOME TAXES [INCI.UINN(; DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)
{€ oart*d}

orrent aod deferved income taz (Cont"d)

Deferred 12x 33 calculated over the terporary differrnces botween the camrying values of assels and
liubilities (v the conaplidared financial siatements and thedr 12 values, using the liability method, In the
chloulation ol deferred wx, the tax rates valid a5 of the bafatce sheel dule are ussl in eocordanoes w1k
the eurrent (ax Legazlatiod,

Ag the corporate 1ax tate, which was 20% as of Bargh 31, 2021, has beet chanped ta 25%, for 2021
corporate camingz and 23% for 2022 corpocsle eumings, for temparary differences expected o be
rcalizodcloned in 2021 in the deferred tax calcolacion 85 of December 31, 2021 8 1ox rave of 25% |5 used
for temporary ditferences thal are espected 1o be realizediclased in 20322, and 20% for fenpomary
differenicea that are expected to be realized’closed in 2022 and after. Iranian corporace 13x is 25%
[Deoember 31, 20200 250},

Delerred rax habilites are recognized for all toable termporany dufferences, wheee deforred tax assers
resulzing frorn deductible temporary differences are recagnized to (e extent that ot s probable that future
taxable profit will he mvailable againgl which the deductible femporary difference can be ulilized.

Provided that deferred tax assets and deferred tax lisbihngs mlate o0 income faxes levied by the same
taxation authenty, and it is legally eligibte, they may be offeel arainst one engther.

Tax axacis and lizhilities
Corporate (ax

The ax expense for the year comprises curment and deferred @y, Tox is recopnized in the income
slatement, excopt 10 (he extent it it relates to iemy recognized directly in equity, 1n such case, the tax
i5 also recopniced in shareholders” equity

The corrent income tax charge is caleulated in aeeordance with the tax laws enacled or substentively
enacled Al the balance sheel date wn the eountrics whers the subsidianes and gzaociates of the Group
aperzte, Under the Turkish Tax Code, companies having head office or place of business in Torkey are
subjecl tw curporake tax.

In the Turkish 1axation system, s losses can be offset apanet fiatues taxable income for the next Bve
years and are i deductibte (rarogpestively Hirom previons years' sarmings. In addition, (emporary (axes
are levied at a rate of 25% {23% for taration period of 2022, 208 for taxation period of 2023 and after)
ower the bases declored in intesion pericds during the pear 10 be deduersd frony (he compocation tax.
Carporate tax iz declared until the evening of the twenty-fifi day ol the fourth manth Following the end
of the relevent year and 16 paid it the and of tbe rélevant month,

The companies calewlale 25% temporany e (will be applied as 23%, for 2022 and 20% for 2003 and
later tax periods} based on eamings generated for cach quarter. Temporary 1ax is declared by the LTih
dny of the second month following each quarter and paid unti] Uie evening of the 17th day of the same
month, The omounts thus celenlaned and paid are offset against the Bnel comporate tax Hability for the
vear. 1E there is excess temporary tax paid even if it is already offet, this amout may be refutidad or
ofTsel.
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{Coorenience Urantaton of Cansobdated Floaoc Statcaoents orlgioully based in Turkbh]

GIUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKFTT
Notes o Ibe Consolidaied Financial Statements ay of December 31, 2021
{Amounis éxpressed in Turbdsh Lira (“TL"} uniess athernize indicated.}

NOTE 28 - INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIAETLAITIES)
(Cont"d)

Tax aasets apnd Liabiliices {Cont*d)
Corparate fax (Cont’d}

Crrporete tax boaacs can be carrial forward for a maximum peried of 3 vears following the year in which
the Jnzees were maurr=d. The tax muthoricies can inspect tax reborms and the rolated sucounting records
for a retrospective max it perusd of Gve years.

1 3% withhelkling applies to drndends distribused by resident real persons, these Wl are out liable ta
income and corparation (ax, non-tesident teal persons, non-resident eorpomticns {exeluding those Lhal
aciuire divickmd through 2 permanent establishment or permanent representative in Turkey) apd non-
resident corporaticns cxampled from income and corporation tn.

Dividerd distribution by resident corporations to regident corporations is not subject to a withholding
tax. Furthermare, in the event the profit 1s not disteibuted or included in capural, oo withholding tax shall
be applicable.

Turkish tax lepislatlon doss pot permic § parensr cornpany and 1= subkidiaries (o file a consolidatod sax
raturn. ‘Therefore, tex Liabililies, as reflected in these consolidated fnaocial gtatenierty, have been
ealeulyted om o separate-cmtity hagis.,

Tax provision included in the slake sheel perlmining to the years eoded Dhecember 31, 3021 and
Drecember 21, 2020 is as follows:

December
_ _ AL 2021
C0breiay Ran Talal
Prowision for corrent pedod corporate tax (F2406 ¥ (ZT.864.84T (B0.2T1 50
Prepaid thx 1T 5004347 247 453 17,750,840
Frict yeor's eorpormte kEy ligbilities -~ (27.41%.230 (27.4149.231)
Tranalation dilferences - L7505 454 17 595 456
Tudal (M503586) (37441169 [F1.344,7T55)
néuemlieT
31,20
Gllbretay Euxl Tatal
Provigion for corent period corpombs tax -~ [14,330.476) (14.330.470)
Prepaid tax 2950 13 B.325.526 G AR5 209
Prior year's corporate tx liabililies - (241, 198 (2441, 198}
Translation differences - 1.219.061 [ 203 61
Total 295970  (9.252.487) (6,252,384}
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(Convenbeaes tunatafow ol Cosssidared Fonmeisl Statesn ety grigingdly baned 1n Tu rlklsh)

GURRF. FABRIKALARI TURK ANOND STRKETH
Motex te the Consolidated Financial Sistemamty as of Thecepber 31, 2021
{Amuunts expressed in Turkish Lira ("T1.") mlesx acherndse Indicaterl.)

NOTE 28 - INCOME TAXES {INCLLDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITEES)

{Cont*d}

iefererd tax assety aod liabiliden

The Group recopmives defemmad Lix asseds and liahilities nn the baris of the iemporany diffarences arising
fromn the difference between concolidaled [inancial stafernents thal ans prepared in accordanee with TFRS,
end the locel firancial statemgmis peepared for tax punpases In pepetal, the dilfemeness cemll from (e
inceme and expenae amounts inchided in the local finaneial siatements o take place in dilfernl perods in

the consolidared [inancal stalernents that are prepared in sceordancs with TFRS.

Decedbeer 31, M1 December 31, 2020
Deferred 132, Meferred tax,
Temporary maseis 3od Temporary MMt and
AT rences Hakellilen d et enicen 1EalslLithies
Ly looauye 204,264,695 SR AL L5%.40%.580 ANGT. TR
1wz N wsahle “nx - . AT ) L T AT6. 7K
Adjusrments for invenipeies e etk 2. Tk 5% 9,337,181 1 B, 4060
Trwde reatavahbiz d.LHT.EOS RIS L6393 R LY
Properoy plamt nrd equipmesnn * [neaagible 25010 gk
Invezmieni peoTeren - —~ 142,582,711 28 514,542
Chbw 1.21RAST 441,259 L3871 4eHp 230,147
Pruviikins for feminatiom irdamnicy HE |5 JHE 95T M3 N LNET d17.034
Reeeivehle se-diseounta L9 3 L2UE AL T.147,113 440 47
Loberesl asmoiualy - - TRE. 138 162y
Fapenxe nucruals 04011 I'T.CaT A9l - -
Irmessimend incentive 1.348 T 333 B43 & £H50 R Q31,554
Deferrel Lo usacts AHTLES BROBE1TE  SO2.E04.034 120,538 B0
I'rupexty plaol and equipment £ Iniangible aeets and
Innremtmer| propertics 554,200, 503 13240, 100 155 AR 14 71.793.648
Income ! Expense acoruals (e) 1.80H.214 45588 L0 22.022
Lravetaves finsnela | insmaments 39,424, 705 o067 T -- -
Trde recaiyghles 1.256.731] oA B T 174350
Payaale re-discnunes 2.119.503 405,20 L.513.5%4 171
U racalvables 15060, 232 Blagry L.5ZL.142 MITG2%
(Mh= 22 6T.ET 20267924 155535 Bdb 18,255 587
Treferred tan bl 316262418 Lid im0 SAE.ESETIS SLI7T.068
Net deferved tax neset (%6519 BER) 19,300 AdR
Bazl Co, dilerred tay ateet / {liablicy] *) {19 44T ATI) CLARTIASE)
Toinl deferred tax wqnrk ! [Iin'h-:llila-} {75,309 3% JHA I dB5

("] The liabilily of TL 19439471 ariges from the deferred Llax effecr ol the property valuation adjustment
of 1he Razi, (Deceuber 31, 2020: T 10.857,354).
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(Convemboes tranalaiion of Cabtsalbdaied ¥nameinl Stpbemeots priginely Bsued in Tuvklak)

GI/ERFE FAERIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKET!

Notes o the Congolidnted Flonncial Scatements as of Drecember 31, 2021
{Amowrts expressed in 'orkish Liva (T unless otherwdse inlleated. )

NOTE 28 - INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LTARILITIES)

(Comne*d}
Delerred Inx assets and liabilitiey (Cont"d)

Infonmation related 1o deleme! 1ax iransaction table:

2021 22
Cpeming balance v Jonuary 1 18,473,404 49.007.433
Impact of foreign currency rrenslacan
O leferred L of Fagi (1065614 10413175
Sub: total T.AL.2TE S420.668
Dufisried lax income /(exnense) {58.202,465) (0B 508}
Tax revenure recopnized in atker eomprthensive weome (25,424, 1507 (143.296)
Reconcillation of Lhe 1ux provisbon;
(15.800.3%3) 18475450
Japuary 1- Jasoacy 1-
Eecanciliatinn of the tax provision: Devember 31, December 31,
2zl 2020
Profit § (Loss) before ax 08,263 683 471,209,510
Caleulated fax (%25 %21) ] (15Z.065.921)  (103.666.092)
Impact of fondgn subsidianes subjected io differeml tax rabes - 13,802,919
[isallowablc cupinses 35,584 BI5) {6998 550)
Tax effests of difcount and cxciiptions 16042029 b1 58343
Previouws peciod tox expense of Rasi - r2.4d1,198)
Total discounts of investment incetwives 31.516.266 30697 79
her differences 5A1H.178 7255400
_Tax locome / eapense (138.474.2%5) {55.141.382)

NOTE 29 - EARNINGS PER SITARE

Larings per share stated in the consolidated income slatement are calenlated by dividing e net incame
to the woighted average number of ordinary shared oulstanling during the vear. The weighted averase

uof the shares and prefil per share caleulavions arc as follows:

Janary I- January 1-

December 31, Deccomber 31,

201 2020

bvet period (losa) on parcht’s shares) 523125635 262,056,082
Weighled averags number of jssued ordinary sharey (1 kr each)t 3400000000 33,400.000.000
Enrnings per share {kr) (*) . ' LSl 0,785

The eaemiyzs and dividends paid per diluced and basic shares do oot differ since the sharehalders have

equal rights an fic ghares and there is oo prefarred share,
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(Convembtogs [epngimibpn of Comgolideted Fippndpl Sinteocaty priglenlly ipued Io Tarklsh)

GIUBRE FABREIKAL ART TURK ANONIM SIREET1
Mates o the Consolidated Financial Statements a3 of Decemhber 31, 2021
(Amounis cxpresscd jo Turklsh Lirs (*TL™} unleys atberwise inmlicated.)

NOTE 30 - RELATED FARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Hel Helated Mary Baladces

December 31, Dheceraber 31,
Trade receivables Inn 2020
TEK [*) B35 479 /57 191,361,541
Tearthstar Fettilimer and Chemical Cn. 312607 BT A9R A7 303
Crher related parties 2,337 030,210
Tatal _1.1487T9.R13 S 60205

(*] Asof Docember 31, 2021, the Group had received advance amounting to TL 543,776,517 (December
31, 220: TL 1127.013) againel the frade recpivebles from 1K, The average maturity for solid
fertilizer salet 10 TEX 13 15 days, and for olber ferbilizer sales, the mobunity ranges between 15 end 120

davs,
Drecember M, Dretemibrer 31,
Trade payables 7] 2020
Tamet Tanm Ercdi Biligim ve [letisim Hizmetlen A5 3. 71961 1.276.536
T Tuyimuedik ve Lojistk A5 1142 567 742728
Bercket Sigorta A5, 2257964 406350
Hereket Emekhibk ve Heval A5, 8867 354
TEK . K] 10 --
Tarim Kredi Birdik Tanm Uninlerd 4. 5. 24,540
Tarkim Ditki Komann San, ve Tie AL a0
Tatal T.L1TA56 2.425.948
30.2 Transactions with Related FParties
Jaouary 1- January 1-
Decemnler 31, December 31,
Sales of poods and services 2RE1 2020
TKK G5 BT00RT 2MRATEA]
Merhstar Fentilizer snd Chemical Co. 64413272 5T5.921.085
Tarkim Bitki Eormmn San ve Tie, AS, 5285 B3 336
Tamet Tarm Kredi
Rilisim ve lletigitn Fliganetlen San ve Tie. A5 15.069 12524
TE Halding 44,997 41,014
Boreleet Sigopta AS 816.177 423,124
TR Tagimacilik ve Lojistile A%, 27.984 26,7490
Tatal 6.281.541.006 325447, 795
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(Conveolence iranskation of Conslkiated Finmncial Satemente origloall Isued in Turklah])

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TORK ANONIM SIRKETL
Mates o the Consolduted Financinl Statements as of December 31, 2021
{Amounb expressed in Turkish ira (“TL") unleos ptherwine indicabed )

NEXTE 30 - RECATED FARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Com'd)

Jatnuary 1- T January I
December 31, December 31,
Furchases of goods aod services 2021 o wma
TIEE 220463 3,861,559
Tama Tarum kredi
Dilisim ve llelyim Iliznellen San ve Tic. A%, H1L413.441 3639500
Tarm Kredi Birlik Tarw Urlinlerd &5, 235,155 35114
Tarkim Eitki Koruma San. ve Tig, A%, 163075 5T.120
Bercket Siporta &5 11494, 296G THZ6.020
Lereket Erneklililk ve Hayat A5, 7o 584 44 125
TK Terim Kredi Pararlama ve Markercilik A5, 30,061 -
TK Ilolding AS 41,857 -
TE Temmaghl ve Lojistik 4.3, 15871970 R.007. 245
Total 38.024.561 2643 653
January 1- Fanuacy 1-
December 31, Drecember 31,
Iotcrest income W21 2020
Tarm Kredi Holding 4 5. -- 70.959
Tarimn Eredi Bk Tanm Linkn,
Hayy, Ambalaj Ped. Mek. [th, Thr.
Jan, ve Tic, A5, -- 1.478.065
Tuotal — 1,54%9.0r24
Jaouary 1- January |-
Thecember M, December 3,
Interesi cxpense 201 220
Tarm Kredi Yem San, ve Tic A5, - 171.062
Totsl ) - 171062

303 Renumeration of beard of directions and executive management

"Ihe toa] benefita provided by the Group 1o its board of directors and cxecutive management during the
vears snded December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows;

December 31,2021 December 11,2020

Gilbretay Racl  Gibretay _Rad

Shin-Lemn employee benefits 3180812 TXTAM) 4175061 46757
Tuiel L145612 7275440 4175161 4675.TT7
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(Convemienge transintan of Consalldnied Fioamchl Staicments arkgfoally bsued io Turkfak]

GUBRE FARRIKALARI TURE ANONIM SIRKETI
Motbes 10 tha Canxalidated Financial Statements ax af ecemher 11, 221
(Amounts expreswed In Twrkdsh Lita “TL"}y unless oiherwise mdicated.)

NOT 31 - FINANSAL YATIRIMLAR

Short-term financial lovestments

Maturdty Ink pates (%0) - December 31,2021

Fublic sectar bends ot Bhills Marsh 2022 1518 151052 590
Total 191.1132.590
Short-term Guaacial iovenmenots Maturdy Inf. vetes (%a)  Thetember 31,2020
Private sector honds and hbills March 2021 15-18 19.087.380
Tedal 19.087.380
Long-term floancial Investments
Maturity Iut. rates [(S0) December 31,2021
Pulblic zsplor eduds and balls 2022 15 20.229.647
Total o 20.229.4647
Maturity fot rates {23) December 31,2020
Public sclur bonds arxl bills 2022 15 11.007.372
Total - 117372
Decemiper 31, 2081 December 31, 2020
Title Sabject of acHvites “e Amoual ol ¢ Amouot of
L Share partizipani Py partelpasi
Ibeeotet Secvice Providec
anmet te. 15,78  2.537.515 15,78  2.537515
Aymroulml Credil
Tareksav Conpasiive Fdusatinn
[Frundation 24,10 200.000 24,10 200.000
Tatal 2737518 2717518
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{Conveobmes runalation of Coesalutgied Financnl 3mtamenin oviging by aoed in Twrkib}

GUBRE FABRIKALARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETL
Maotes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements a3 of December 31, 2021
(Amonnty expressed in Torkish 1dra (*T1.") uniess otherwine indicated.}

NOTE 32 - FINANCTAL INSTREUMENTS AND FINANCLAL HISK MANAGEMENT

The Groap’s activitics cxpose 1t w0 a variely of financial risks, including the effers of chenoes in dekt
and equity marke prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group's risk
cranAgement projmam focuses on the fuctuations of financial markers angd sesks gy minieize petentiol
adverse efTects oo the [inancial performanee of the CGroup.

Capilal rivk mapagement

The Groop's main ohjectives for capilal manzpement are W keep the Group’s ubility w continue a5 a
poing comegmm io order 10 meresse the cetums provided to sharcholders and beeefits e otber
lakcholders and fo meiniain an oplimal debl | equity sioacture elfestively. The cepital structure of the
Croup eampracs af det, cash and cash equivalents and equity items includitg paid in capilal, equty
reserves and profit reserves, which are disclosed in Hote 19,

The Group evalusies the risks aszociaced with each ¢apiial jtem 1ogecher wily capital ¢ost and momturs
capital 1o obtaln the aptitnal debltotal égwity mbies, Debt/tota] equity mtio i=s calgulated dividing the oot
financial debt by tolgl capital. Net financial debt is caloulaed 5z total Fuancial labdlities less cash and
cash equivalents,

Net {ineneial debiitotal equily ralio as of December 31, 2021 wnd December 31, 20020 19 az follows;

Ikhecember 31, Mezember 31,

2021 20

Total debt 2021231512 3.406.548.0a8

Cash and cash equaivalenes (-) LT T20 584 (65999037

_Net debn TELAINGZE  2.746.658.029

Total equity 4008258379 1,702 254,885
Net debt / totnl equity Yp1¥5 9% 156

Medging activitles and derdvative instruments

Liquidity risk

The Gronp Management managss the qudity gk by managing the balance sheer and its cash News m
conphance. Accordingly, the Groop Management ensures thal the matifities of receivebles wnd
payables are in complianes; nel working capilal menagement 1argets 81 st 1o protect the shod-lerm
liquiditys liguidity oppetahities are képl available i the finangisl institutions 10 reet (he possible
liquidity problems and balatee sheet rations are g to be kept 1 sccoptable level,
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[Coavenlémt: ranelatinn of Coopedidated Flanmcbal Statemeats origioally bsued in Turklak)

GUERE FABRIKALART TUBRK ANONIM SIRKETI
otes ta the Conxalidated Finaocial Statements ax of December 31, 7021
{Amounis expressed in Torkish Lira (*T1."} unlex ptherwice indicated ]

NOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL BISK MANAGEMENT (Coat'd)
Linuidfty risk {Cang*d)

In medivin- aned lotg-tens liquidity managetmeant, Lhe Group's cash flow ssbimates are based on financiel
markels and indusiry dynamics, the cash Oow cyele is manitored and tesled aveonding Lo venous
ACEAITOE.

Total of
etember 51, 2021 contrachual cash Shorter thao Retaesn [ onper than 5
Book value auHlows | 3 months 3-12 momths yemrs
Non-der{vative finamclal
labllibe
Financial boororatogs 1.567.E53.020 25A7 850 LA 26937 T4B229177 R.35d,365
Trede payeblea 4. 705.E71.505 4703871505 4446 F14.217 219909 TEE LT.147.570
Cithar paybles 192 FHG.251 192,789 151 192,788,251 = -
Testal T.464,513, T 7404510, 706 S ATLETT Bde  WHE.LIR.69S5 25502035
Total of
Drecembeer 31, 2020 coptracioal caash  Shorter than Rerwesns | gaper than 5
Eooh yalus outlows 1 4 moothe 31X months Year:
Non-derivative inancial
Habllldes
Finuncial bormowings 1.638.795.741 166720251 6%W. 10622 BS30A.719  78.107.600
Trade pevahles LA322TET L2 143220102 14322071.712 - -
Oither payabley SE. GEE, T 5E.543.TRT FE.LHR.TRY -
Tednl - 3. 129,755, 5 158193050 125686731 B5430ET10 TA10T.60M

[nierest race risk

The Group i exposed te sigmificant inferest mibd nyk ansing from the mte changez on intenesd-boaring
lnahilities and aszels, The Group manages this sk by balancing the vepricing termes of interest-beming
wskers and lighilitiea with fixed-floating interest maindy,

December 31, rnocernuber 31,

20 212

Fized interest financlal instrunents
Fibakial assety

-Time depesils 10234039873 589200, 347

-Financial investments g I T L I2HILZAT
Fluarsial bortowings I.507 S5 (K20 1639 L9.47Y
Flasting rate floancinl (astruments

Time depasits -

Fundlog cisk

The funding nak ot current and prospoctive debt requitements is mansged by maintaining the availabiliiy
of sufficiert number of hiph-quality lenders,
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{Comveniemcs teannlecden of Conaolbdaied Floanclal Stalersnts ariginafy (esued I ‘Luckleh)

GUBRE FABRIK A1 ARI TURK ANONIM SIRKETL
Motes bo the Consolldated Finapcial Statenyents as of December 31, 2021
(Arnonots expressed in 'Terldgh Lita (*1TL™ noless otherwize indicated.)

NOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Coot'd)
TCredit risk

The Grovp is oxposed w crodit sk avising fiom reoeiables Trotm credil Rnanced sales and deposits with
banks,

In the management af the collection risk of trede receivahles, the pringiple of securing the receivables ar
1hie highest pussible mee [s acted upon, In tos conteat, bank guamantess Jater of guaranses, limits defined
o eustomers in dieees debit svseems) ane wscd i gencral,

For receivables thar are not secured be hatk puarancess, itdividual limdis ere delermoutied as @ result of the
evaluatinn nfthe credit quality ofthe custpmer, taking inuacoonnt the misk ootiens], the customer's firumedal
pusition, pest expericnes unil olher futors, and the use of theae credit limita is eomstantly manitosod.

Credlt Hlak mabs gement

The Cirmup is exposed to ceedic sk doe o the trade epecivelbles arizing from the sales o0 accowr,
IMonagernenl mitmnies 1he crodit rink fegarding its irade escavables by king pusrantess {such as bank
letter of gnarantee, mongage, te.) from costomers (except for relaced pariiesy. These ceedit rHsks are
monitared contiously by the Groop and the quality nf the recaivahles are sveluated by considering
past experiences and current econetmic cotdition, The irode receivables are preseoted inthe consolidated
halanee shoot in net amownt after deducting the allowanse for douba il recoivables not o be eollected.
Approximarely §4% of the Group sales were made 1o the main sharsholder TTE.
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(Comvonlence irannlation of Condlbdared Foadcial Sinteroeats prignnlly Baued in Turklahk)

GUBRE FARRIKALART TURK ANONTM SIRKETI]

MNotes to the Covsolidated Fioancial Statements ns of Decomber 31, 2021

i{.;i.muums expressed i Turkish Lirm ("“TL™} unlass otheradse indicated.) o

NOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Foreign carrency risk (Cont o}

Asof Decermber 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, i related curmencics had approciateddepreciated by
L0 apainst Turkdsh Lire with all other variables held constent, profit beforc tax and other
comprehensive income (before tax) as 8 resolt of foreign exchange logses o 1he 1eanslation of foceimm

cxchange poaition i as lollows:

December 31, 2011

Profitilos)
Appreclailon of Depreciation of
foreipn lorclgo
, Eurrency urrency
TChange of USD by %% 10 apainge TL
1- AzgeteTiabilicy denomninated in LS00 net (A10.216.036) 210,216,036
Z= The purt hedyed Tor TSD sk {-) aB. 1144440 (5E.114440%
3-'The imgpact of TL et prollt for the perod (152100 596) 152.101.59%
Change of EUR by %010 agaiust TE
1- Assetrliability denominated in EUR - nel 12116454 (12,116 454)
Z. The patt hedged for TUR sk () - -
3- Ihe impact of TL fet profit for the petiod 12.116.454 £12-116.454}
Decernber 31, 220
) Profitiioss)
Appreciation o Appreciation
foreign of foreign
CUFTENCY CUFPEHRY
Change of USD by %10 againgt TL
1- AggoteTiability denominated in TS — net (69812771} 69819771
2- The part hedged far 11513 risk [-) e >
3- The inmpacl uf TL nel prefit for the perind (69819771 B9.8149.701
Change of EUR by %al0 ayainyt TL
1- Asgetefighility denominated in ELUTE - ne 20,081,043 (20,001,041
- The part hedged Far EUR nsk {-) — -
J- The isnpact of TL eet provfat for the penod 29 051 043 (20,091,941
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GORRE FARRIKAT AR] TURK ANONIM SIRKETT
Motes to the Cotaolidited Finsorial Statementy a5 of December 31, 2021
(Ammount expressed in Turkish Lira (TL") uniess ntherwice indicared)

NOTE 33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE EXPLANATIHONS AND
EXFLANATIONS WITHIN THE FRAME OF HEDGE ACCOUNTING)

Fair vahues of floancial inntrubnents

Fair value is the prace thil would be received to zell a0 asgel or paid to transter & Babilily o an ordedy
Imnsaciion betwaen miitker particopinis at the meanrement date. ‘The estimated fair valwes of Aanneial
mstrurachts have boeny deterinerd by the Group, using available market information and sppropeizie
valuation methodologies. ITwwever, judgment is necessarily required to interpret marked data 10 catimale
Ibe fair value, Sccordingly, the esrmsates presented heran are not necessanity indicative of the anicants
the Ceroup conld realize in 3 curestit warket excliangre. Following methads and assumpiions were used
I estivngte the fair valuc of the financial insiouments for which is precticable to estimars fair viloe:

Fimancial ossels

The cavrying values of foreign curreney denominated monetacy assets which are translaled &t vear evd
cxchangs tates are corlsidersd W approxmmeale their fiir values,

The carrying values of cash arwd cash equivaleiis are eslionated 1o be ther Gir values singe they are short
term.

The carrving values nf rade receivables along with (the pelaied allowances for uneollectible are estimated
(o Be cheir foir valoes since they are shont temm.

Flaancial falaliiies

The fair values af short—term Bnangial Labilices and other finsowcial abilities are esiimated to be their
foir values since they are shott tem, The Fair values of loiygg-terrn bank borrawings wilh variable interest
are conmdered o approximate thewr mepective carrying velues, swob (he initial rates applied lo bank
borrowings are updaied peripdically by the [ender to roflegt aciive mances price quotabions. The fadr
value of [itamcial assets wod lubililies are determined a9 falloars:

v First level: Financial assels and liahilities are yalued over sbock exchange prices used o active
tnarkel tor asscta and Labililies which ans similur.

. Second lewrel: Finangial asacts Aind liatdlitics are valued over the inpuls used to find out oheervable
price of celevant assed or liahlity duwectly or indirestly in the matket ¢ther lban ils sloek exchange
price specified in ficst [evel.

¢ Thurd level: Firancial assels and liabilities are valued over the inpars nod based on en olbservable
dara in the market, which is wsed to find ot fair value of assct and liabiliry,

Faur valug hierarchy iable s of Decetber 31, 2021 and Drecember 31, 2020 iz as follows:

Deeember 31,3020 Leével 1 Levat2 Lewel 3
Financial investineuts 211.262.237 - 2.737.515
Derivative Fnancial assets ! (lianbilitics) - 39.424.793 =E
Dogcember 31,2020 Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 1
Finaocial invesmicnits 30.094.752 - 2,737.515

Perivative financial assets ¢ (liabilities} .- - -
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GUERE FABRIKALARI TORK ANONIM SIRKETI
MNndex to the ConsoHdated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2021
{Amouniz expresecd in Tozrkish i (“TL7} unbss otherwise indikated.)

NOTE 3 - SUBSEQUENT CEYENTS

Giibretas Maden Yatinmlan A%, signed an agreoment on Jamuary 3, 2022 with Teck Asadolu
Madencilik AL 5., which s $0% of Lhe shares of Kavak Madencilik A Y., 1o acquire these 80% shares
of Kavak Magdencilik A 5, which is the ownet of the license area 20070985] localed within the borders
ol Bilevik pravines, for & price of TSI 1800040 and with the conditions of making & 2% rooyally
paytent. Legal proceduras regarding the tmosfor of shargs started to be camed out. With the acquisition
ot the harcs of Kavak Madencilik A, 5., it i3 aimed to expand the explocilion and develooment actvibies
arciend the SSE0 Goald Mawe and o denaly possible new mineral resgurees,

An ipvesimend incenlive cerlificate numbered 531623 was igsucd by the Minisry of Industry a2
Technology, General Directorate of Inesntive Implementation and Foreygn Capdtal to CGribrotas Madon
Yetrimlan A.§. regarding the S8t Gold Mine Project. The foressen suppirt ¢lanents are ? years of
nsurence premium ernpleyers share, 30% lax peduction, 40% invesmuenr comribulion wate, customs
dury exemplio, VAT exeniplion aod ioterest supporl The investment emount has heen determined as
T 4.634.477 308, The cost of imported mechiney and equipmendt 3s TSR a6.607.53%, and the
estimated employmient 1z $70 peopte

Howrd Member Fahretlin Payraz, who lso served as the Chainman of the Board of Divectors al Gisbredas
and Gitbretas Mmden Yatiomlun A%, resignoerd [rom the Board as of Febrouary 3, 2022

Frof. D, Viahit Kiriggi, who appainted ea the Ministee of Agriculmes and Forestry, regipned from the
Board of Directors of Gilbtetas as of Manch 4, 2023

NOTE 35 - FEES FOR SERYICES RECEIYVED YROM THE INDEPENDENT AU TGRS

Jenuary 1- Japuery 1-

Docember 31, December 31,

- 1021 2024
Indeperdent audit feo 265.000 205.000
Tatal 65 LW} 2050

(74



